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President’s Foreword

At the RA we champion the value of artistic creation through our Academicians,
the RA Schools, and our world-class exhibition programme. We are committed to
the appreciation and understanding of the arts through exhibitions, learning and
the exchange of ideas.

Throughout the last year the Royal Academy has underscored the power of
culture to add depth and breadth to our everyday experience as we emerge from
the pandemic. We express our profound gratitude for the support and loyalty we
have received from our Friends, Patrons and donors, whose continuing generosity
makes our achievements possible.

It has been an extraordinary year of success for our Royal Academicians, with
awards, accolades and exhibitions on the international stage. In Venice, Sonia
Boyce OBE RA represented Britain at La Biennale’s 59th International Art
Exhibition, The Milk of Dreams. Sonia was awarded the prestigious Golden Lion
award for Best National Participation for her exhibition, Feeling Her Way. At the
Academy we are so proud of her success and the many achievements of all our
artists and architects.

In the past year several eminent new Academicians were elected. In September
2021, Amanda Levete was elected, followed by fellow architect Peter Barber, along
with artists Ryan Gander and Michael Armitage in December 2021. In March 2022,
Assemble, a multi-disciplinary collective working across architecture, design and art
was elected together with sculptor Hew Locke and printmaker Katherine Jones.
In June 2022, painter Clare Woods and sculptors Brian Griffiths and Shirazeh
Houshiary were elected. | am delighted to report that we have received two Diploma
Works in 2021/2022 from Amanda Levete RA and Jane and Louise Wilson RA.

In 2021, we elected two Honorary Royal Academicians, Ellen Gallagher and
Pipilotti Rist and two Fellows, Professor Dame Sarah Gilbert FMedSci and the
writer Hisham Matar.

I am delighted to welcome all the new Members and look forward to engaging with
them in the work of the Royal Academy.

In addition to welcoming our newly elected Academicians, Council approved
a review of the Royal Academy’s committee structure. This project commenced
in Spring 2021, with core aims to improve the effectiveness of the governance
structure, optimise how the Academy makes best use of the time and wisdom of
Academicians and reduce the resource demand on the organisation.

The project has been overseen by a Steering Group, which included fellow
Academicians, senior members of staff including RA General Counsel, together
with external governance advisors. It undertook extensive consultation with key
individuals across the Royal Academy, including Officers and committee chairs to
explore how effectively the committee structure was working, and to identify areas
for improvement.
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The consultation work revealed a clear case for change. At its meetings on 5
April and 7 June 2022, Council approved a new structure, together with Terms of
Reference, to govern the operation of that structure.

The new structure came into place on 1 September 2022 and includes five “core”
committees designed to directly support the oversight, assurance and leadership
elements of Council's fiduciary role. The delivery of other outcomes, which may be
equally valuable are to be delivered through programming and Advisory Groups.
The “core” committees are: Audit and Risk, Finance and Performance, People and
Remuneration, Exhibitions and Displays, and RA Schools.

The following Committees of Council ceased operation with effect on 1 September
2022: Architecture, Collections and Library, Buildings, and Learning. The Annual
Dinner Committee and the Summer Exhibition Committee did not form part of this
review and continue as before.

We hope that Advisory Groups will be taken up across the RA to support Council
and, without the formality of committees, will work more flexibly to examine specific
thematic topics, taking advantage of the insight and expertise of Academicians and
others to enhance the work of the Royal Academy.

Sadly, over the last year we have lost eight of our Royal Academicians. Chris
Wilkinson OBE RA - who served as Treasurer from 2018-2020, Lord Rogers of
Riverside CH RA, James Butler MBE RA, Fred Cuming HON Dlitt RA, Dame Paula
Rego DBE RA, Ken Howard OBE RA, Prof Brian Catling RA and Tom Phillips CBE
RA. All of whom will be dearly missed by the Royal Academy.

I would like to thank all our staff led by our Secretary and Chief Executive, Axel
Riger, for their extraordinary commitment and hard work in another challenging
year.

And finally, | offer my thanks to my fellow Officers, those serving on Council and
committees, for their support and my fellow Royal Academicians, Keeper Cathie
Pilkington RA, and Treasurer Prof Peter St John (Adam Caruso and Peter St John
RA) for helping to steer the RA in testing times.

As we put the pandemic years behind us, we are braced for tough economic
challenges ahead which we face with a renewed sense of purpose and confidence
in our vision.
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The Royal Academy has enjoyed another highly successful year of exhibitions
and ambitious public programmes that have inspired and delighted our visitors. As
an active, artist-led academy of art and architecture, we foreground creativity and
excellence while proudly maintaining our independence. The year under review
saw visitors return to our galleries, which gave us the opportunity to welcome back
many of our most loyal supporters.

The reintroduction of in-person events has seen some wonderful talks, workshops,
lectures, and debates, particularly in the magnificent Benjamin West Lecture
Theatre. Our commitment to learning and the exchange of ideas continues to be
a core value at the Academy and is reflected throughout the events programme.

Throughout the year, we have presented a highly ambitious programme of
exhibitions including, exceptionally, two Summer Exhibitions. The Summer
Exhibition 2021, co-ordinated by Yinka Shonibare CBE RA, was delayed due to the
pandemic until the autumn of 2021. Back in its regular slot, the Summer Exhibition
2022 was co-ordinated by Prof Alison Wilding OBE RA. We were also thrilled once
again to host the Young Artists’ Summer Show, now in its fourth year. This free,
annual, open-submission exhibition for students aged 4 to 19 studying in the UK
champions the role of art in education and attracted over 20,000 submissions this
year. Besides the display of 280 works on site, there is also an online edition that
includes many more works (519), all of which were carefully selected by judging
panels including RA Schools students and two Royal Academicians, Vanessa
Jackson and Neil Jeffries. We are immensely grateful to the late Robin Hambro for
her generous support in making this exhibition possible.

Other exhibitions illuminating the galleries over the past year have included Late
Constable, Light Lines: The Architectural Photographs of Héléne Binet, Francis
Bacon: Man and Beast, Whistler's Woman in White: Joanna Hiffernan, KyGsai:
The Israel Goldman Collection, and Milton Avery: American Colourist. We could
not be more pleased with the outcome and far-reaching impact of the past year'’s
exhibition programme.

In the Ronald and Rita McAulay Gallery, the space in which we now present our
architecture displays, we are showing John Hejduk: London Masque. During the
fourteen-month life of the display we have been working with groups of students
and young people to explore aspects of Hejduk's work while expanding the idea of
what architecture can be.

The Collections Gallery, free to the public, showcased Explorations in Paint, a
celebration of the legacy of Sir Joshua Reynolds PRA, our founding President The
display brought together artworks by current Royal Academicians, all exploring the
material possibilities of paint and its expressive potential.
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The RA Schools have had a highly successful year, with the reintroduction of both
Premiums and Open Studios alongside their big fundraising event, the RA Schools
Annual Dinner and Auction. We are delighted to have finished the first phase of
our restoration and renewal of the RA Schools. The construction of purpose-built
workshops on the lower ground floor of Burlington Gardens and the creation
of temporary studio spaces across our campus has ensured that students have
access to everything they need while we complete works on the historic home of
the RA Schools at Burlington House.

Each year the annual report allows us to highlight the RA's accomplishments and
recognise the contributions of so many people who are critical to our success. |
especially want to thank our loyal Friends and our incredibly generous Patrons,
donors and sponsors. Their friendship lies at the heart of our Academy, providing
essential patronage for the RAs inspiring exhibitions and impactful public
programmes. We are deeply indebted to them for their generosity of spirit and
financial support.

The RA Council, our governing body comprising Royal Academicians and external
members, invests much time and energy in leading our institution and supporting
the Senior Leadership Team. As ever, their work has been underpinned by the wise
advice and guidance of the members of our various committees.

The Royal Academy is, of course, led by its Royal Academicians, who inform the
direction of our strategic priorities, programmes and activities. | would like to take
this opportunity to thank them all for their support, guidance, passion and creative
force, which underpin all our endeavours. Our President, Rebecca Salter PRA, has
again this year provided us with steadfast leadership and support, for which we are
immensely grateful.

| would also like to express my gratitude to the trustees of the Royal Academy
Trust, who are guided by their Chair, Lady Alison Myners. Their enthusiasm and
generosity are vital to the Royal Academy. Equally, the Board of The Friends of
the Royal Academy, chaired by Clive Humby OBE, has helped greatly in ensuring
successful stewardship of the Friends organisation.

The Senior Leadership Team and | are immensely proud of the RAs skilled and
dedicated staff. Their expertise is crucial to everything we do. Thanks to their
extraordinary teamwork and camaraderie, the RA is thriving.

As we look back on a challenging year, the financial landscape has altered
dramatically, exacerbated by the start of the war in Ukraine in late February 2022.
The longer-term impacts of the Covid pandemic and Brexit mean that we now face
rising inflation and interest rates, pressure on supply chains, and an emerging risk
of a global recession. The immensely positive result of the financial year 2021-22
provides us with a buffer for the undoubtedly challenging times ahead.

S y and Chief E ive’s | tion

As we think about the RAs future we need to think about our future audiences.
To reaffirm this commitment, we will focus on developing programmes that are
relevant and exciting to a younger and more diverse audience.

Although we have been engaged more deeply in equity, diversity and inclusion
work for the past couple of years, we have recognised that we must redouble and
expand our efforts by broadening representation and opening pathways for artists
and staff from all backgrounds. Planning is underway for exhibitions that allow us
to reflect critically upon our past to ensure a more just future for the Academy.
This will include critical collaborations with scholars and artists, and we continue to
highlight diverse perspectives and expand narratives in all our programming.

This annual report looks back on a turbulent year and celebrates our recent
successes. Our wide network — be they our incredible, hardworking staff, our Royal
Academicians, our Council, the RAs trustees, our Friends, Patrons, donors and
supporters — has allowed us to flourish and to strengthen our resilience in the face
of social, economic and environmental challenges. With more challenges to come
in the year ahead, we know that art and artists will as always show us ways to move
onwards to new futures and reflect on the world around us. Our work at the RA is
more important now than ever.

Secretary and Chief Executive’s Introduction IX



Key Figures

Attendance figures note

Notes

The total attendance in 2021/22
for paid-for exhibitions includes

all visitors for exhibitions for which
the majority of the exhibition

took place during the period 1
September 2021 — 31 August
2022, so includes the full
exhibition run of Milton Avery:
American Colourist which closed
on 16 October 2022, but excludes
those visitors who attended
David Hockney: The Arrival of
Spring, Normandy 2020 and
Michael Armitage: Paradise Edict,
which closed on 26 September
2021 and 19 September 2021
respectively, during 2021/22.

The Royal Academy of Arts,
established in 1768 by Royal
Charter, was incorporated as a
company limited by guarantee
on 2 July 2007 under company
registration number 06298947
and is registered with the Charity
Commission under charity
registration number 1125383.
The Royal Academy of Arts has
three trading subsidiaries - RA.
Enterprises Limited, Burlington
House Limited and RA (Arts)
Limited - the results for which
are consolidated within the
financial statements.

The figures quoted on these
pages are drawn from the
“Consolidated SOFA", which
form part of the audited financial
statements, and represent the
income and expenditure from
ongoing activities and therefore
exclude the Burlington Project
financial activities.

For internal management reporting
purposes, The Royal Academy

of Arts uses net income from
ongoing activities (before interest,
depreciation and amortisation) as
a key reporting metric.

One of The Royal Academy of
Arts key performance indicators
is measuring this against a target
sustainable amount of £56.0m
per annum. This £6.0m target

is to provide funding for the
ongoing maintenance of our

25 acre campus and investment
in technology; periodic plant
upgrade and gallery refurbishment
programme; financing; and
financial obligations in respect

of our legacy defined benefit
pension scheme.

The figures in the charts (right)
are derived from those in the
Consolidated SOFA and exclude
£0.5m (£4.2m) Covid-19 support;
£0.4m (£0.5m) net interest
payable; and £3.6m (£39m)
depreciation and amortisation.
The 20/21 figures also exclude
£2.0m restructuring costs and
£0.7m exceptional write-down of
an investment property.

In the Consolidated SOFA, £0.4m
(£0.1m) credit from Museum and
Galleries Tax Relief is recognised
as an “other gain” but is included
in the charts as a reduction in
exhibition expenditure.

The net income from ongoing
activities (before interest,
depreciation and amortisation)
was £9.2m (£1.1m).

The financial results for this year
were extremely positive, but
considerable financial challenges
remain. The RA has benefited
this year from the exceptional
situation of having two Summer
Exhibitions and has operated with
a lower cost base following the
restructuring in 2021. The RA did
not bear the full impact of cost
inflation and salary increases this
year, including the very significant
rise in energy costs, as fixed tariff
contracts were in place until the
end of September 2022. The
impact of cost inflation and salary
increases will have a material
impact on the RAs cost base for
the next financial year and over
the shorter medium term. The
RA further faces the challenge

of growing back audiences
(which are still much lower

than before the pandemic) in

a competitive and changing
market, with the prospective
impact of the cost of living crisis
providing a further headwind to
increasing visitor figures.

Exhibitions 2021/22

Summer Exhibition 2021
Francis Bacon: Man and Beast
Summer Exhibition 2022

Light Lines:

The Architectural Photographs

of Héléne Binet

Whistler’'s Woman in White:
Joanna Hiffernan

Late Constable
Kyosai: The Israel Goldman Collection
Milton Avery: American Colourist

Total attendance in 2021/22

2021/22 Income £378m

Paid
66,637
81,129

70,112

7172

12,840

20,632

12

Friends Free

54,132 25623
48342 17223

46,664 22,454

9,385

29,205
34,333
21,398

28837

0.6% '
Charitable activities:
RA Schools/Collections/Education

Charitable activities: Exhibitions

Sponsorship, rent and other

24.8% 2°

Commercial activities

2021/22 Expenditure £286m

Key Figures

17.8%

Charitable activities:
RA Schools/Collections/Education

49.8% “°

Charitable activities: Exhibitions

Daily Average
1,632
2,066

2,360

2.9% °°

Donations: RA Trust

9.2%

Fundraising

Total Attendance

146,392
146,694

139,230

46,091
60,607
42,037
57,646

657,

29.5% *

Donations:
Friends of the RA

11.8% *

Donations: Other

23.2% 7"

Commercial activities
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The Royal Academy of Arts
Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Registered Charity No. 1125383
Registered Company No. 06298947

PRESIDENT AND COUNCIL:
In the financial year and at the date of signing:

President
Rebecca Salter PRA

Council

Sir David Adjaye OBE RA (appointed S October 2021; resigned 7 June 2022)
His Honour Judge Tony Baumgartner

Helen Boaden

Prof Sonia Boyce OBE RA (appointed 5 October 2021)

Stephen Chambers RA (resigned 4 October 2022)

Ann Christopher RA (resigned 5 October 2021)

Richard Deacon CBE RA (appointed 5 October 2021)

Simon Friend

Piers Gough CBE RA (resigned S October 2021)

Prof Lubaina Himid CBE RA

Gary Hume RA

Louisa Hutton OBE RA (appointed 5 October 2021; resigned 4 October 2022)
Vanessa Jackson RA (resigned 5 October 2021)

Sir Isaac Julien KBE RA (appointed 5 October 2021; resigned 4 October 2022)
Jock McFadyen RA (resigned 4 October 2022)

Niall McLaughlin MBE RA (resigned 5 October 2021)

Humphrey Ocean RA (resigned 5 October 2021)

Grayson Perry CBE RA

Fiona Rae RA (resigned 5 October 2021)

Eva Rothschild RA (resigned 4 October 2022)

Emma Stibbon RA (appointed 5 October 2021)

Prof Peter St John (Adam Caruso and Peter St John RA) (resigned from Council 5 October 2021)
Prof Alison Wilding OBE RA (appointed 5 October 2021)

Bob and Roberta Smith RA (appointed 4 October 2022)

Eric Parry RA (appointed 4 October 2022)

Cornelia Parker CBE RA (appointed 4 October 2022

Thomas Heatherwick CBE RA (appointed 4 October 2022)

Louise Wilson (Jane and Louise Wilson RA) (appointed 4 October 2022)

John Akomfrah CBE RA (appointed 4 October 2022)

Officers

Rebecca Salter PRA President

Professor Cathie Pilkington RA Keeper

Prof Peter St John (Adam Caruso and Peter St John RA) Treasurer

Axel Riiger Secretary and Chief Executive
Company Secretary

Benedict Anstey General Counsel

Senior Leadership Team

Charlotte Appleyard Director of Development & Business Innovation
Eliza Bonham Carter Curator and Director, RA Schools
Carl Hitchcock Director of Finance

Rebecca Lyons Director of Collections & Learning
Natasha Mitchell Director of Corporate Services

Jo Prosser Director of Audience & Experience
Andrea Tarsia Director of Exhibitions

Page: 1

The Royal Academy of Arts
Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Royal Academy Committees
at the date of signing":

Finance and Performance Committee Exhibitions and Displays Committee
Treasurer ex officio (Chair) Stephen Chambers RA (Chair)
Pesh Framjee Professor Josephine Dawn Ades CBE FBA
Simon Friend John Akomfrah CBE RA
Maria Lisogorskaya, A ble RA Elect Anne Desmet RA
Andrea O'Keeffe Professor Chantal Joffe RA
Paul Venabl Hew Locke RA Elect
Bill Woodrow RA Dorothy Price
Ben Thomas
President ex officio
Treasurer ex officio
Keeper ex officio

Secretary and Chief Executive
Secretary to the Committee: Carl Hitchcock (Director of | Secretary to the Committee: Andrea Tarsia (Director of

Finance) Exhibitions)

Audit and Risk Committee People and R ion Ci
Simon Friend (Chair) Helen Boaden (Chair)

John Collier Kerstin Mogull

Spencer de Grey RA Eric Parry RA

Anne Desmet RA Bill Woodrow RA

Clive Humby

Secretary to the Committee: Corl Hitcheock (Director of | Secretary to the Committee: Natosha Mitchell (Director
Finance) of Corporate Services)

RA Schools Committee

Gary Hume RA (Chair) Richard Kirwan

Keeper Mary Stephenson

Secretary and Chief Executive Adham Faramawy

Secretary to the Committee: Eliza Bonham Corter
(Curator and Director, RA Schools)

Professional Advisors:

Auditors:
Moore Kingston Smith LLP, 6™ Floor, 9 Appold Street, London. EC2A 2AP

Bankers:
Lloyds Bank Plc, 4" Floor, 25 Gresham Street, London. EC2R 8LA

Investment Managers:
Sarasin & Partners LLP, Juxon House, 100 5t Paul’s Churchyard, London. EC4M 8BU

Solicitors:
Macfarlanes LLP, 20 Cursitor Street, London. EC4A 1LT
Withers LLP, 16 Old Bailey, London. EC4M 7EG

Registered Office:
Burlington House, Piccadilly, London. W1J 0BD

! Dther committees of Council not detailed here are: Annual Dinner Committee and Summer Exhibition Committee.
Architecture Committee; Buildings Committee; Collections and Library Committee; and Learning Committee were committees
of Council until 31 August 2022.
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CONSTITUTION AND CHARITABLE OBJECTIVES
Constitution
The Royal Academy of Arts ("Royal Academy” or “RA” or “Academy") was incorporated as a company limited by guarantee on

2 July 2007, company registration number 06298947, and registered as a charity on 6 August 2008, charity registration number
1125383,

The incorporated Royal Academy commenced trading on 1 September 2009 following the transfer of the net assets and
undertakings from the unincorporated Royal Academy, charity registration number 212798.

The Royal Academy today continues to aspire, in the words of its 18" century founders, to “promote the arts of design”. It
beli in learning through first-hand experience of the arts and is unigue in its combination of practical work, exhibitions,
and learning programmes.

Royal Academicians are painters, sculptors, architects, engravers, printmakers, and draughters elected by their peers for their
distinction as artists. There are up to 100 active Academicians {under the age of 75) who form the General Assembly and a
number of Senior Academicians (over the age of 75). Royal Academicians and Senior Academicians constitute the membership
of the RA as a company and charity.

The Royal Academy receives no direct revenue support from the government or any other public body.
The Royal Academy’s charitable objects are:
« The promotion of the arts of design.

* The education of the public in the creation, enjoyment, appreciation, and understanding of the arts, through
exhibitions, educational programmes, and debate by all charitable means as the members of Council may think fit.

Governance and management
Council
The Royal Academy is governed by its Board of Directors or trustees, who are referred to as the Council of the Royal Academy.
Council consists of thirteen Academicians, up to three individuals who are not Academicians, and the President.
*  Sixseats in Council go by rotation/succession to all the Academicians. These individuals serve on Council for two years
and may be re-elected for two further terms of two years.
*  Three seats in Council go to newly elected Academicians. These individuals serve on Council for one year and may be
re-elected for two further terms of two years.
*  Four seats in Council are elected by the General Assembly from all serving Academicians. These individuals serve on
Council for two years and may be re-elected for two further terms of two years.
* Up to three “external” (non-Academician) members of Council are chosen and recommended by Council and
approved by the General A bly. These individuals serve on Council for two years and may be re-elected for two
further terms of two years.

The President is the Chair of Council. The President has no vote at Council unless the votes are equal, in which case the President
has the casting vote. The Keeper, the Treasurer and the Secretary and Chief Executive attend Council but are not members of
Council.

Council normally meets at least six times a year.

General Assembly

Royal Academicians meet collectively in General Assembly. There are at least two General Assemblies annually. Additional
General Assemblies may be held in accordance with the Laws.

The responsibilities of General Assembly include:
e  Election of the three Academician Officers: The President, the Keeper, and the Treasurer and approval of the
appointment of the Secretary and Chief Executive.
Approval of changes in the Laws.
Election of two Academicians to Council each year.
Approval of certain appointments made by Council, including external members of Council,
Election of Academician members of the Audit and Risk Committee.
Approval of the appointment of auditors and receiving a report on the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial
Statements each year.
Election of Professorships and other honorary positions.
e Consideration of matters relating to members’ affairs.
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Officers
The Officers of the Royal Academy are the President, the Keeper, the Treasurer, and the Secretary and Chief Executive.

The President:

e Acts as the formal representative of the RA to the outside world.

e Chairs General Assembly, Council and Committees of Council where appropriate.

e Works closely with the Secretary and Chief Executive to ensure that all aspects of the stewardship of the RA as
determined by Council are executed through the Secretary and Chief Executive by the Senior Leadership Team and
staff.

The Keeper:

s Acts as the formal representative of the RA Schools to the outside world, General Assembly and Council.

*  Works to ensure that the stewardship and academic performance of the RA Schools are maintained to the
appropriate standards.

e  Represents the Academicians in their dealings with the RA Schools.

The Treasurer:

e Acts as the formal representative of the Academicians on all matters concerning finance.

e  Chairs the Finance and Performance Committee and reports to Council on the Finance and Performance Committee’s
work.

»  Ensures that Council {through the Finance and Performance Committee) are provided with budgets and reports for
all exhibitions.

The Secretary and Chief Executive:

#  Acts in the accepted and generally understood role of Secretary and Chief Executive, both within the RA and
externally.

* |s responsible for the strategic, cultural, and business aspects of the organisation and the administration.

e Advises the President and Council on proposed strategies or changes in strategy to realise Council’s objectives.

Senior Leadership Team
The Senior Leadership Team (“SLT") comprises seven senior members of staff (directors) and is led by the Secretary and Chief
Executive. The SLT is responsible for implementing policies and strategies approved by Council.

Committees

The Finance and Performance Committee (formerly the Finance Committee to 31 August 2022) is responsible to Council for
overseeing and scrutinising the financial integrity and performance of the Royal Academy. The Committee’s specific duties span
the following areas: financial planning, management, and controls; investments; financing; major projects and estates strategy;
commercial and audience strategies; remuneration and pensions; and organisational performance. The Committee usually
meets at least four times a year.

The Exhibitions and Displays Committee (formerly the Exhibitions Committee to 31 August 2022} is responsible to Council for
overseeing the programming and development of the RA’s activities in its exhibitions and displays. The Committee reviews the
RA’s exhibitions strategy and satisfies itself that the programmes have artistic and educational coherence and reflect the aims,
aspirations, and charitable objects of the RA. The Committee usually meets at least four times a year.

The Audit and Risk Committee (formerly the Audit Committee to 31 August 2022) is responsible to both General Assembly and
Council. The Committee provides assurance that there is an effective framework in place for risk management and internal
controls assurance, including internal and external audit. The Committee also oversees the preparation and review of the RA's
Annual Report and C lidated Financial St ts. The Committee usually meets at least three times a year.

The People and Remuneration Committee (formerly the Remuneration Committee to 31 August 2022} is responsible to Council
for overseeing the broad remuneration policy of the RA (including pensions and redundancy) and specifically the remuneration
of the Secretary and Chief Executive, SLT and the stipends of the Officers. The Committee is further responsible to Council for
considering and making recommendations on significant policies and matters relating to RA staff and overarching people
strategy/priorities. The Committee usually meets at least three times a year.

The RA Schools Committee is responsible to Council for overseeing the care, management and development of the RA Schools
and their students. The Committee usually meets at least three times a year.
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Trading subsidiaries

The Royal Academy has three wholly owned trading subsidiaries: R.A. Enterprises Limited (company no. 1666333), Burlington
House Limited (company no. 2216104), and RA (Arts) Limited (company no. 2836364). Although these are separate legal
entities, they are regarded as part of the Royal Academy group and are included in the consolidated financial statements.

Connected charities

The Royal Academy Trust, set up in 1981 to provide funds for the support of the Royal Academy, is separately registered as a
charity with its own trustees (charity no. 1067270). As it is not controlled by the Royal Academy, its resources have not been
consolidated with those of the Royal Academy.

The Friends of the Royal Academy, a separate charity with its own trustees, was incorporated as a company limited by
guarantee in December 1976 to support the work of the Royal Academy (charity no. 272926, company no. 1291535). As with
the Royal Academy Trust, it is not controlled by the Royal Academy and its resources have not been consolidated with those of
the Royal Academy.

Trustees’ duties in relation to Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006

Members of Council, as directors of the Royal Academy, must act in accordance with a set of general duties as detailed in
Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, which includes a duty to promote the success of the organisation, and in doing so have
regard (amongst other matters) to:

The likely consequences of any long-term decision.

The interests of the organisation’s employees.

The need to foster the organisation’s business relationships with suppliers, customers, and others.
The impact of the organisation's operations on the c ity and the envir t

The desirability of the organisation to maintain a reputation for high standards of business conduct.

This report summarises above the Royal Academy’s governance framework. The Royal Academy’s values and behaviours and
how it has engaged with stakeholders throughout the year are considered further in this report. Council has considered the
views and needs of key stakeholders in Council discussions and decision making. The following are not ir fed to be an
exhaustive list but are illustrative of how Council has fulfilled its duties throughout the year.

Decision making
New Council members receive a comprehensive induction and ongoing training, including a detailed “induction pack” of
documents, which includes:

* Guidance on trustees’ roles and duties.
» A specific Code of Conduct for Council members.

* A copy of the Royal Academy’s constitutional doc (M d and Articles of Association and RA Laws),
together with the Administrative Instructions, which describe the administrative structure of the Royal Academy and
provide guidance as to its processes of management and administration.

+ Annual reports and financial management reports.
+ Minutes of previous meetings.
« Relevant RA policies and procedures.

They also have an induction session before the first (October) Council meeting of the financial year, conducted by the RA's
President, General Counsel, Secretary and Chief Executive, Director of Finance and Director of Corporate Services, which
includes key information on organisation finances and strategy, live issues requiring Council consideration, and an explanation
of Council roles and responsibilities.

The Secretary and Chief Executive, together with the SLT, have delegated authority for the day-to-day running of the Royal
Academy, and are accountable to Council for this. At each meeting, Council receives reports from the President and Secretary
and Chief Executive, assessing organisation impact, financial performance and updating on key operational issues.

Council, Committees, and the SLT keep principal organisational risks under review. For further details on our risk management
framework and principal risks and uncertainties please refer to page 24.
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Stakeholder engagement

Staff and volunteers

The Royal Academy’s staff, together with its casuals and volunteers, are central to its ability to deliver its charitable mission.
The Royal Academy has a clear set of values linked to its mission and is committed to being both an inclusive, diverse, and
flexible employer. The Royal Academy works to ensure that no disadvantage or prejudice is shown on account of race, age,
gender, disability, or any other protected characteristics. Further information on gender pay and reporting, diversity and
inclusion and disability and wellbeing is provided in other sections of this report. The Royal Academy will continue its work on
inclusion and racial equity across all aspects of the RA and is mindful of the ways that it can rebuild its programmes and the
organisation to make every visitor feel welcome, and to create a more equitable workplace and place of study.

Business relationships with suppliers, customers, and others

The delivery of the Royal Academy’s charitable aims and objectives is dependent on a range of relationships with suppliers and
other business partners. Council has encouraged the SLT and wider management to develop and maintain trusted partnerships
with both and expects the Royal Academy’s partners to be aligned with its values. The Royal Academy seeks to act with honesty
and integrity in all it does to deliver the best value for money in our mission to “work together to promote the arts of design;
and educate the public in creation, enjoyment and understanding of the arts through exhibition, education and debate.”
Partner organisations are expected to comply with the requirements of any professional standards, or trade bodies, depending
on their activities, and all applicable laws, statutes, regulations, and codes of practice relating to anti-bribery and anti-
corruption.

The Royal Academy has a zero-tolerance approach to modern slavery and strives to act ethically and with integrity in all its
business dealings and relationships to ensure that modern slavery does not take place in its own organisation or in any of its
supply chains. The Royal Academy will continue to ensure that this approach is clear to partner organisations.

Further details of the Royal Academy’s policies in relation to its business relationships with companies, suppliers, customers,
and others, including supplier Terms and Conditions are available on the Royal Academy’s website and a statement on Modern
Slavery can be found at: royalacademy.org.uk/modern-slavery-and-human-trafficking-statement.

Sustainability and environmental impact

The Royal Academy recognises that the climate emergency is a critical issue of our time. Reducing the environmental impact
of our activities is a key priority for the organisation. We have a way to go, but we are committed to the cause, and determined
to play our part in protecting the planet. The estate is now powered by 100% renewable energy and our spaces are almost
exclusively lit by efficient LED lighting. Since 2018 we have been committed to “zero landfill”. We are in the final stages of
attaining BREEAM “Very Good” accreditation to certify the sustainability of our Burlington Gardens campus. The RA's
exhibitions are increasingly being designed with an eye on sustainability. Travelling cases for works on loan are regularly being
reused, as are the plinths and display cases, where possible. We are also looking to reduce our carbon impact in relation to the
transportation of artworks for each exhibition. As much as possible we are looking to consolidate shipments. In the year ahead,
we will be working to develop a detailed roadmap to delivering a net zero target ahead of the UK Government's deadline of
2050. Further information on sustainability initiatives can be found on page 17, along with our Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting (SECR).

Responsible investment

The Royal Academy recognises the importance of being guided by strong ethical principles and ensuring that our values are
embedded in our plans and actions. As part of these guiding principles, the RA is committed to investing its funds in a socially
responsible basis. In June 2021, Council approved the RA's Ethical investment Policy and in October 2022 approved the updated
and renamed Responsible Investment Policy (“the Policy”). The Policy has been developed with the intention of active
promotion of investment in companies and investment funds which demonstrate policies and practices that are in line with
the RAvalues of strong ethical principles. The Policy applies to the full scope of the investments held by the RA. The RA believes
that to accord with its values when investing its funds, regard must be made to Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
issues. The Finance and Performance Committee monitors the operation and the effectiveness of the Policy and provides
Council with an annual update in October each year.

Approaches to governance and governance reviews
The Royal Academy and its trustees take good governance seriously and are aware of the Charity Governance Code, including
its seven main principles.

The Royal Academy regularly reviews its governance structure and processes, including commissioning external reviews in 2016
and 2020. This has included assessment against the seven Principles of the Charity Governance Code. Some improvements
made as a result of these reviews include:

- Reviewed memberships of committees and governance bodies and introducing clear and precise terms of reference.
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- Improved Council induction and training.
- Changed approaches to minute-taking, recording, and managing conflicts of interest.

Review of committees
The Royal Academy has undertaken a review of its committee structure. This review aimed to improve the effectiveness of the
RA's governance structure and reduce the resource d d on the organisation, particularly considering the strategy of

achieving sustainability and the recent organisational restructure.

The review project commenced in Spring 2021, and involved extensive consultation with key stakeholders across the RA. A
clear case for change was identified. In January 2022, Campbell Tickell (external governance advisors) were appointed to work
alongside the internal RA project steering group.

With effect on 1 September 2022, a new committee structure was implemented with new terms of reference. This consists of
five “core” committees: 1. Finance and Performance; 2. Exhibitions and Displays; 3. Audit and Risk; 4. People and Remuneration;
and 5. RA Schools, A standard format and guidance for writing board and committee papers was introduced at the same time,
for additional clarity.

Separately, provision has been made for the establishment of “Advisory Groups”, based on standard terms of reference, outside
the formal governance structure. These groups will work flexibly to examine specific thematic topics, accessing and channelling
the insight and expertise of Academicians and others.

The focus will now be on embedding the new structure and ensuring that organisational decision-making and governance is
improved as a result. In particular, the RA will continue to ensure its governance aligns with the Principles of the Charity
Governance Code.

RA Collections governance

The Royal Academy Collections are considered a "Designated Collection” by Arts Council England as a “pre-eminent collection
of national or international importance” held by a non-national institution. The Collection is accredited through the Arts Council
England Accreditation Scheme. Collection matters relating to the management of the collection —its care, audit and risk, report
annually to the Audit and Risk Committee; and the work and scholarship of the Collections, Library and Archive teams is
reported annually to Council, with loan requests and new acquisitions reported on as required (usually every meeting).

Disabled employees

The Royal Academy is committed to recruiting and developing a diverse and inclusive workforce at all levels. We want to ensure
that opportunities to work at the RA are open to all, including disabled people, and that disabled employees feel valued and
enabled to carry out their work and develop their careers with us.

Employee consultation

The Royal Academy places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep them informed
on matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the Royal Academy. This is
achieved through formal and informal meetings, including regular All Staff Meetings and on the Royal Academy’s intranet. In
July 2021, the RA announced the creation of the Staff Council. Staff repr ives were nominated in August 2021 and the
first meeting was held in September 2021. The new Staff Council met six times across the year with elected staff representatives
from across the RA meeting with a rotation of members of the SLT to discuss a range of topics relating to matters of concern
to staff. Notes from these meetings were also shared more broadly with the wider staff.

Strategic review

In autumn 2019, the Royal Academy began a strategic review of its operations and objectives. A first assessment of the state
of the RA was presented to Council in February 2020. This review followed the previous five-year Strategic Plan 2013-2018,
which covered the five years leading up to the RA's 250th anniversary —a period of substantial expansion. The review asserted
that significant changes to the organisation were needed to place the RA on a more sustainable financial footing. It reflected
the assessment of the Secretary and Chief Executive and identified the need to create a robust model for the future.

Covid-19 pandemic
As these changes were being considered the situation was exacerbated by the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic which forced

the RA to close its doors to the public in March 2020.

As reported in last year's strategic review, the pandemic had a severe impact on the RA's operations through the remainder of
the 2019/20 and for the entire 2020/21 financial year.
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During the first half of this financial year, the pandemic continued to have a significant impact. There was a gradual increase in
visitor capacity following the final government restrictions being lifted in late July 2021. Our staff and visitor safety and
confidence remained paramount, and we continued to have various safety protocols in place. We gradually increased
capacities, such that by early-mid Autumn 2021 we were no longer capacity constrained due to the pandemic. However, with
the emergence of the Omicron variant and the government measures put in place to combat this, we experienced a significant
fall in visitors at the end of Autumn 2021 and the start of Winter 2021/22. Many income-generating activities, including an
expanded public programme of events and lectures, did not resume until later in 2022.

The more positive prognosis on the pandemic, has been superseded by external global influences with the outbreak of the
Russian / Ukraine conflict in late February 2022. This, together with the longer-term impact of the pandemic as well as Brexit,
has contributed to the macro-economic situation the Royal Academy now finds itself in with pressure on supply chains; rising
inflation and interest rates; and an emerging risk of a global recession. There remains uncertainty as we recover from the
pandemic. The short-term signs are positive from a visitor viewpoint, albeit we are still attracting a significantly lower number
of visitors than before the pandemic. The 5 Exhibition 2022 which closed in late August 2022 was the first exhibition to
achieve visitor numbers comparable with pre-pandemic levels. The more immediate concern is the considerable challenge to
the cost base with rising inflation and increased labour, energy, and transportation costs and the prospective impact of the
"cost of living crisis” on visitor numbers.

It is against this backdrop that the 2022-27 Strategic Plan has been developed this year. The final version of this plan will be
formally adopted by Council later in 2022. This will effectively supersede the Vision 2021-25 put in place to drive strategic
direction during the last two years as an interim measure ahead of a new strategic plan being adopted.

Core RA and restructuring

In September 2020 the RA developed a vision for its programme of activity, audience strategy, and cost base to ensure its
survival over the five years to 2025. To ensure the long-term financial sustainability of the RA, a “core RA” organisational
structure was established, aimed to deliver significant annual cost savings. This formed the basis of an organisation-wide
restructure at the start of the financial year 2020/21.

Vision 2021-25

The Royal Academy of Arts is one of the oldest arts organisations in the United Kingdom. Founded in 1768 by a group of artists,
it has remained an artists’ association led by its members, the Royal Academicians, to the present day. As a "home for art,
artists, and architects” the RA has a founding mission to “work together to promote the arts of design; and educate the public
in creation, enjoyment and understanding of the arts through exhibition, education and debate”. In order to face the financial
challenges presented by the Covid-19 pandemic, the Vision 2021-25 focused on the core activity that supports these founding
principles: the membership of Royal Academicians, the RA Scheols, the exhibition programme, the Collections, and the
commitment to learning.

To protect and sustain the core RA activities, in the immediate future, the Vision 2021-25 set out the following principles:
*  Focus on an essential programme that serves its audiences

Continue to welcome and serve its audiences

Prioritise cost reduction for a five-year horizon

Proactively support equity and inclusion

Continue to improve the sustainability of its infrastructure

Continue to invest in a responsible way.

" & 8 8 @

2022-2027 Strategic Plan

This plan has been developed in 2022. The final version of the plan will be shared with Council later in 2022 for approval and
will supersede the Vision 2021-25. Once approved, it will be shared with the Committees of Council and the trustee boards of
The Friends of the Royal Academy and Royal Academy Trust before being published. As this has not yet been formally approved
or adopted, it is considered further in the “Future Plans” section of this report.

This strategic plan will set out the RA’s vision for the next five years and provide a clear roadmap supported by a coherent set
of priorities designed to help the RA to realise its ambition. The broad strategic aims outlined in this plan will be underpinned
by a series of operational plans which outline the details of implementation and provide metrics for evaluation. The strategy
has been developed by the Secretary and Chief Executive in cc Itation with bers of the Senior Leadership Team, the
Senior Management Team, the other Officers of the RA (The President, Treasurer and Keeper), as well as the Members, Council,
and the trustees of the Royal Academy Trust.
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Royal Academicians

The RA was saddened to learn of the deaths over the past year of our former Treasurer Chris Wilkinson OBE RA, Lord Rogers of
Riverside CH RA, James Butler MBE RA, Fred Cuming Hon DLitt RA, Dame Paula Rego RA, Ken Howard OBE RA, Professor Brian
Catling RA, Carmen Herrera Hon RA and the Honorary Fellows Harrison Birtwistle and lssey Miyake.

The following were elected as Honorary Academicians during the year:
*  On 9 September 2021, Pipilotti Rist and Ellen Gallagher.

The following were elected as Honorary Fellows during the year:
e  On 14 December 2021, Professor Dame Sarah Gilbert FMedSci and Hisham Matar.

The following were elected as Royal Academicians during the year:

*  On 9 September 2021, Amanda Levete in the category of Architecture.

®  On 14 December 2021, Michael Armitage in the category of Painting, Peter Barber in the category of Architecture,
and Ryan Gander in the category of Sculpture.

*  On 29 March 2022, the collective Assemble in the category of Architecture, Katherine Jones in the category of
Printmaking, and Hew Locke in the category of Sculpture.

e On 9 June 2022, Clare Woods in the category of Painting, Shirazeh Houshiary and Brian Griffiths in the category of
Sculpture.

Senior Leadership Team
Led by the Secretary and Chief Executive, seven directors have responsibility for the following areas: Exhibitions, Audience and
Experience, Collections and Learning, the RA Schools, Development, Corporate Services, and Finance.

ACTIVITIES, ACHIEVEMENTS, AND IMPACT

Review of activities
Looking back on 2021/22, we chart our progress in the seven areas described above.

1. Exhibitions

Main Galleries

Renowned artist Yinka Shonibare RA coordinated the Summer Exhibition 2021 (22 September 2021 = 2 lanuary 2022} which,
once again, was held in autumn / winter due to ongoing disruptions caused by the pandemic. Comprising over 1,300 works
across a variety of disciplines, the exhibition featured self-taught artists, artists with disabilities, artists from the African
diaspora, as well as artists trained in the Western tradition but who work in a more visceral manner. Selected under the rubric
of "Reclaiming Magic”, the exhibition took inspiration from the perceptions and ideas around magic that are ingrained in certain
Pan-African cultures and a continual source of cultural creation. Although magic is often perceived as being foreign to western
ideas and western enlightenment culture, the exhibition sought to transcend a Western art historical perspective to focus on
the transformative powers of the magical in art, and a return to the visceral, joyful aspects of artmaking. Rebecca Salter PRA
chaired a selection committee comprising Royal Academicians Tony Bevan RA, Vanessa Jackson RA, Mali Morris RA, Humphrey
Ocean RA, Eva Rothschild RA, Bob and Roberta Smith RA, Emma Stibbon RA and Sir David Adjaye RA. The exhibition was
generously supported by Insight Investment and was visited by a total of 146,392 people.

Spanning Francis Bacon's impressive 50-year career, Francis Bacon: Man and Beast (29 January 2022 — 17 April 2022) was the
first exhibition to chart the development of the artist's imagery through the lens of his fascination with animals and was
originally scheduled for 2020 but postponed due to the pandemic. A body of 45 works explored how this unerring fascination
both shaped Bacon's approach to the human body and distorted it; how, caught at the most extreme moments of existence,
his figures are barely recognisable as human or beast. The exhibition was org d th tically to emphasise Bacon's blurring
of human and animal properties, often to existential ends; recurring use of “furies”, or hybrid humanoid forms; his fascination
with studies of bodies in motion, and how these led to his distorted nudes, as well as works that directly related to his sexuality.
It featured many notable works, including the last painting Bacon worked on before his death. A trio of bullfight paintings,
displayed at the core of the exhibition in the Main Galleries’ Central Hall, were exhibited together for the first time. The Royal
Academy expresses its heartfelt thanks to the generosity of all the lenders to the exhibition, who without exception renewed
their support of the exhibition despite the revised dates. The exhibition, which drew rave reviews, was generously supported
by Christies, and was visited by a total of 146,694 people.
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After two years in winter, the Summer Exhibition 2022 (21 June 2022 - 21 August 2022) finally returned to its usual summer
schedule. Highly topical for our times, the theme chosen by exhibition coordinator, Alison Wilding RA, was “Climate”. A broad
and all-encompassing subject, the exhibition included more than 1,400 works across a variety of disciplines. All submissions
approached the theme with creativity and, whether presented as crisis or opportunity, nightmare, or memory, or simply as our
everyday experience of the weather, the exhibition demonstrated the extensive impact of the climate and its implications as a
defining issue in our modern age. Rebecca Salter PRA chaired a selection committee comprising Royal Academicians Stephen
Chambers RA, David Mach RA, Farshid Moussavi RA, Grayson Perry RA, Conrad Shawcross RA, and Bill Woodrow RA. Rana
Begum RA and Niall McLaughlin RA also curated a selection of architecture works across two galleries. Once again, the Summer
Exhibition was kindly supported by Insight Investment and was visited by a total of 139,230 people.

The Jillian and Arthur M. Sackler Wing of Galleries

Around 90 photographs made up the exhibition Light Lines: The Architectural Photographs of Héléne Binet (23 October 2021 -
23 January 2022) Supported by Pictet, the exhibition explored the various historic and contemporary buildings Binet has
photographed during her career and, in doing so, demonstrated her ability to capture the light, space and form that unites
architecture, be it 1970s Brutalism or an 18" century city church. Considered “the architect’s photographer” by many, the
exhibition foregrounded her close collaborations with Zaha Hadid RA, Daniel Libeskind Hon RA, and Peter Zumthor Hon RA,
who among others turned to Binet to interpret their work. Also included were Binet's photographs of Le Corbusier’s La
Tourette monastery in France and the Jantar Mantar Observatory in India, as well as a set of Five Churches in Cologne by
Gattfried Bohm, commissioned to celebrate the architect’s centenary, and an iconic yet rarely seen private house, Can Lis, by
Jgrn Utzon. An intimate show, the exhibition was visited by a total of 19,151 people.

Originally scheduled for 2020 but postponed due to the pandemic, Whistler’s Woman in White: Joanna Hiffernan (26 February
2022 - 22 May 2022) was organised in collaboration with the National Gallery of Art, Washington. Described as one of the
“most mesmerising figures in modern art history” (The Telegraph), Joanna Hiffernan was both a muse and confidante to the
artist James McNeill Whistler. The exhibition sought to uncover the role Hiffernan played in the artist's life and work and
discover how Whistler's revolutionary paintings featuring Hiffernan went on to influence other artists and artistic movements.
Supported by the TERRA Foundation for American Art, the exhibition was visited by a total of 46,091 people.

The Gabrielle Jungels-Winkler Galleries

Despite being one of Britain’s best-known artists, a graduate of the RA Schools and a regular exhibitor at the Summer Exhibition,
Late Constable (30 October 2021 - 13 February 2022) was the first major retrospective of John Constable’s work to be held at
the Academy. Spanning from 1825 until the artist's unexpected death in 1837, the exhibition explored Constable’s late and
increasingly expressive style, bringing together majestic oil paintings and plein air sketches of the British countryside, from
Hampstead Heath and Stonehenge to Brighton seafront, as well as studies of weather phenomena capturing ethereal cloud
formations, dramatic storms, dappled sunlight, and rainbows. Described by The Times as a "triumphant showcose”, the
exhibition was visited by a total of 60,607 people.

Kydisai: The Israel Goldman Collection (19 March 2022 - 19 June 2022) was the first UK exhibition in almost thirty years to
explore the work of Japanese painter Kawanabe Ky&sai. Known for his independent spirit but often overlooked in favour of his
earlier counterparts, Kydsai is celebrated for his ability to bridge popular culture and traditional art. Bringing together highly
finished paintings, woodcut prints and illustrated books, this exhibition sought to uncover both the environment in which
Kybsal's works were created as well as the great political, social, and cultural changes taking place in Japan at the end of the
nineteenth century. Kindly supported by Kajima, the exhibition was visited by a total of 42,037 people.

The first comprehensive exhibition of Milton Avery’s work in Europe, Milton Avery: American Colourist (15 July 2022 - 16
October 2022) brought together a careful selection of the artist's most celebrated works. Totalling around 70 paintings, all
dating from the 1930s-1960s, the exhibition sought to demonstrate the extent to which Avery perfected his unigue ability to
balance colour and form in increasingly abstracted compositions. In doing so, the exhibition also made clear the influential role
Avery played in the unfolding and developing of Abstract Expressionism. The growing interest in Avery's work and attempt
amongst art historians to re-evaluate the artist's achievements made this exhibition particularly timely. The exhibition was
organised in collaboration with The Modern Art Museum of Fort Worth and the Wadsworth Atheneum Museum of Art. Owing
to the pandemic, the exhibition was presented at the Academy at the end rather than at the start of the tour. We are deeply
indebted to all the lenders to the exhibition for agreeing the extension of the loans. The exhibition was kindly supported by the
Milton and Sally Avery Arts Foundation, TERRA Foundation for American Art, Cockayne: The London Community Foundation,
Victoria Miro, and Brook Barzun. A total of 57,646 people visited the exhibition.

Architecture programme

To coincide with Light Lines: The Architectural Photographs of Héléne Binet on show in the Jillian and Arthur M. Sackler Wing
of Galleries, RA curator and Head of Architecture Vicky Richardson was joined by Héléne Binet in a conversation celebrating
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the relationship between music and architecture (Héléne Binet in conversation: Architecture and music, Thursday 4 November
2021). Hosted as a live event at St George's Bloomsbury, the event explored how connections between music and architecture
can change our understanding of space. A short recital by cellist Cecilia Bignall followed by a small drinks reception was also
included as part of the event.

In March 2022, John Hejduk: London Masgue (22 March 2022 - 10 July 2023), opened in the Ronald and Rita McAulay Gallery.
The first, free installation in the RA’s new dedicated space for architecture, the large-scale installation presented Hejduk's
design for the Widow’s House, one of the 68 “objects” in his seminal artwork Lancaster / Hanover Masque. As popular royal
entertainments of the 16™ and 17'" centuries, the masque was used by Hejduk as a way to transform the way architecture is
taught and imagined. John Hejduk: London Masque seeks to embody this philosophy and celebrate Hejduk's belief that
architecture has the power to make alternative worlds. The installation was developed in collaboration with students from the
Royal College of Art MA Interior Design programme and, during the display, a series of presentations by students and young
people will explore Hejduk's Lancaster / Hanover Masque and the resulting models, with the theme "Building Worlds” shown
alongside the Widow’s House. The installation has been kindly supported by CDUK.

In June 2022, the RA partnered once again with the London Festival of Architecture for the RA Architecture Symposium
(Tuesday 7 June 2022). Hosted in the Benjamin West Lecture Theatre at the RA, presentations from spatial practitioners
explored topics such as activism, the agency of architects, theatricality, and narrative in architecture. Lina Ghotmeh, founder
and principal of Lina Ghotmeh Architects delivered a lunchtime keynote which explored her humanist approach to architecture
and the guiding principle of an “archaeology of the future”. This was followed by a debate, with a panel discussion inspired by
the question, “can architects make a difference?”.

Celebrating its 31* year, the Annual Architecture Lecture (Monday 18 July 2022) was delivered by Bruther founders, Stéphanie
Bru and Alexandre Theriot. The lecture explored Bruther's commi it to flexible, public buildings and the principles that drive
their influential practice. The event was supported by COUK and, through a media partnership with Dezeen, the lecture was
able to be live streamed for those unable to attend in person.

2. Audience and Experience

The Audience and Experience teams continue to support the RA mission by three means: Reach: developing and growing a
broad, diverse, and loyal audience for the RA and its work on site, online, and in wider cultural debate, with particular focus on
B2C relationships; Revenue: maximising the financial return of the RA offer to support its work and its future, in line with a
longstanding tradition of financial independence and self-sustainability; and Reputation: creating and delivering a consistently
excellent experience - welcoming, engaging and distinctively RA in character - across every visitor touchpoint and interaction.

Having reopened in May 2021 following closures due to the pandemic and an unpreced d period of uncertainty, the focus
for the Sales, Marketing and Loyalty teams this year was to build back visitor confidence across all our audiences: driving return
visits to the RA, encouraging existing members of The Friends of the Royal Academy membership scheme to renew and new
visitors to join, by means of joined-up loyalty, commercial, and campaign marketing. The figures achieved for the financial year
have exceeded plan, with admission income from exhibitions, the donation received from The Friends of the Royal Academy
and income from commercial activities all reflecting audience recovery post-pandemic and the RA's ability to maximise the
return from this demand.

At the heart of our date is our cc i 1t to welcoming visitors to the RA itself. The professionalism and service provided
by Front of House teams for visitors returning to socially distanced environments, and the quality of the guidance provided,
has helped rebuild audience confidence and loyalty. Upon reopening, a new feedback email was introduced and sent to all
visitors following their visit, providing valuable insight as well as a rapid, convenient means of direct communication. The quality
of the visitor experience continues to improve, including the launch of José Pizarro Restaurant and Poster Bar by Joséin 6
Burlington Gardens.

Alongside the retention of previous audiences, a key focus for this year was setting the groundwork for future growth and long-

term audience development and diversification. Analysis and research of market T 1 in recom
subsequently approved, to introduce a new half-price ticket scheme for those aged 25 and under from next year.

Continued efforts to improve customer service, data operations, insight and CRM delivered a range of optimisations improving
transactional efficiency for the customer and creating new opportunities for income. RA team members presented at the
Tessitura annual international conference, showcasing the industry-leading developments being achieved at the RA.
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A comprehensive review of digital activity and the changing expectations of audiences was undertaken, analysing RA audience
behaviour and appetites for digital content and benchmarking with the wider sector and beyond. Recruitment of the expertise
needed to take the RA forward is now complete and the next year will focus on developing content that meets digital audience
needs and connects them to our mission.

The increasing importance of digital was reflected in our commitment to digital infrastructure, and our successful bid for just
under £1m funding from Bloomberg Philanthropies’ Digital Accelerator Fund. This project will continue into 2023 and has three
separate strands aimed at updating the user experience and infrastructure of the main RA website; delivering a digital studio
for online events; and researching the organisation’s needs for digital asset management.

Digital infrastructure also supports the RA’s main website and subdomains, such as the Summer Exhibition Explorer, RA Shop
and Young Artists’ Summer Show website, which attracted 4.3m sessions. Activity was focused on maintaining a high quality of
user experience and functionality across all these platforms.

Through our trading subsidiaries, an exceptionally strong commercial performance was delivered, combining exhibition-led
sales with lessons learnt in the previous financial year, and the periods of closure during which other aspects of the RA were
successfully developed for sale via ecommerce. This broader approach, and continued evolution of the RA offer, was reflected
in record-breaking conversion rates and spends which accelerated recovery. Reflecting wider market trends, RA customers
returning to shop in person was reflected in a more subdued year for online retail. However, this channel still achieved record
sales in Christmas cards by Royal Academicians and invited artists. New for this financial year, were cards and products
developed with the young artists from the Young Artists' Summer Show ("YASS"), which proved hugely popular.

Throughout the year, David Hockney's Arrival of Spring catalogue continued to achieve very strong sales at its Brussels, Istanbul,
and Chicago tour venues, in bookshops worldwide and online. A range of exhibition catalogues was also published: Late
Constable exploring the work of a key figure in the Academy’s history by a leading scholar of his work. Light Lines featured
Héléne Binet's beautifully installed show of architectural photographs and produced in record time. Milton Avery, whose tour
had been rescheduled due to the pandemic, was a strong performer at Fort Worth and Hartford and in the American bookshops
and performed similarly well in London.

The biggest success was Francis Bacon, which sold 14,455 copies at the RA during its run, alongside healthy sales worldwide,
with trade co-editions in French and Dutch. For Kydsai, a scholarly catalogue and a smaller gift book were designed for the
more modest audience. Collaborations with three Royal Academicians were also published: a volume of David Remfry RA's
watercolours, a book of new work made in the Lammermuirs by Barbara Rae RA during the pandemic, and an Irish sketchbook
by Norman Ackroyd RA.

3. Collections and Learning

Collections

Collections staff coordinated the delivery and presentation of the Platinum Jubilee portfolio, a gift from selected Royal
Academicians including Rana Begum RA, Yinka Shonibare RA, and Wolfgang Tillmans RA, to Queen Elizabeth 11, on the occasion
of her Platinum Jubilee. The works will be displayed at The Queen's Gallery, Buckingham Palace in January 2023,

New acquisitions included Diploma Works from Amanda Levete RA and Jane and Louise Wilson RA. Other notable new
acquisitions included gifts from Rebecca Salter PRA, Sir Christopher Le Brun PPRA, Michael Armitage RA, Kobby Adi RA Schoaols,
Emma Stibbon RA, and all contributing artists for the Varnishing Day portfolio. We were also given an album of photographs of
students at work in the Royal Academy Schools, dating from the early 1900s and compiled by student Kate Olver while studying
here (1901-6).

Taking a lead from Sir Joshua Reynolds’s Studio Experiments, the display at the front of the Collections Gallery, “Explorations
in Paint”, featured artworks by seven current Royal Academicians, all investigating the material qualities and expressive
potential of paint. It includes Diploma Works by Basil Beattie RA, lan McKeever RA, Fiona Rae RA, Sean Scully RA, and Terry
Setch RA, together with loans from Sir Frank Bowling RA and Sir Christopher Le Brun PPRA.

Jock McFadyen RA: Tourist without o Guidebook opened in the RA Weston Rooms on 5 February 2022 and ran until 10 April
2022, attracting 20,995 visitors during its 9-week run. Originally planned to mark the artist's 70" birthday in 2020, this free
exhibition focused on McFadyen's London paintings, encompassing large-scale urban vistas and recent figure paintings.
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In April 2022, the RA Collections team, along with sculpture conservators and a dedicated team of art handlers, removed and
packed 82 plaster casts from the RA Schaools, ready for the main works of the RA Schools Project in Burlington House. The casts
were deinstalled from three main locations across the RA Schools - the Life Room, the First Year Studios (formerly the
Architecture Studio) and the Cast Corridor. A huge variety of casts have been stored during the RA Schools Project, ranging
from small rectangular reliefs to colossal 200kg casts of Roman temple architectural features. Two architectural casts, found
behind the fake walls of the Dark Room in the First Year Studios, were formerly thought to be lost, and were identified using
photographs of the RA Schools from 1876.

Library, Picture Library and Archive

The Main Library and Archive re-opened to Academicians, staff, RA Schools students and external readers throughout the past
Academic year. Behind the scenes tours of the library and archive for groups of patrons, corporate members and educational
groups recommenced in March 2022. Between March and August 2022, we welcomed over 140 people to the library on these
tours, and over 50 RA staff, offering them an insight into the rich history of the RA through first hand access to treasures from
our historic book and manuscript collections.

The Picture Library Manager, Head of Library Services and Archivist have been part of the core team charged with delivering
the third strand of the Bloomberg funded project, scoping an Academy-wide Digital Asset Management System, ready to be
put forward for further funding.

Learning
The Learning team’s flagship Teachers programme was successfully launched in this year with a suite of events for teachers
and a consultancy project to evaluate local engag it and to propose and deliver new teacher resources. The fourth year of

the Young Artists’ Summer Show took place, with 21,000+ students submitting artworks from across the UK. Neil Jeffries RA
and Vanessa Jackson RA were joined by RA Schools students and RA staff for the judging. Together, they selected 519 artworks
to be exhibited online and 280 onsite in the Clore Learning Centre.

The 2022 attRAct programme continued as a virtual offer for 15-19 year olds, with young people attending the year-long series
of free online workshops. In collaboration with Architecture and the RA Schools, attRAct had its first Summer School, where
the students took part in an intensive week-long workshop producing work for display scheduled for October 2022.

In Spring 2022, we relaunched our Family Studio programme with a monthly offer of artmaking workshops and trialled our first
cross-campus summer Family Day which explored the theme “think like an artist”. The team also delivered a week of outdoor
play sessions at Grosvenor Square, during June 2022 half-term, led by Assemble Play and welcoming up to 600 participants per
day.

Our filmmaking project for local young people with caring responsibilities culminated in a screening for friends and family and
was documented in an RA Magazine article in the Summer 2022 edition.

The regular programme of family workshops for children with SEND (Special Educational Needs and Disability) moved back
onsite, and we hosted an additional project for a select group of long-standing participants, at which they produced work for
the architecture display, John Hejduk: London Masgue. Their contribution, titled “Friendship and Alchemy” was on display
between July and October 2022.

Adult Learning continued the success of its online prog ne with livestr d artists conversations with Yinka Shonibare RA
and Ryan Gander RA Elect, and Curators talks exploring the exhibitions Late C ble and Whistler's Wi in White: Joanna
Hiffernan. The programme also included an online discussion highlighting the connections between the work of artist
Kawanabe Kydsai and Manga, and a panel discussion in which artists and campaigners discussed the role of the future
generation of artists in tackling the issue of global warming and climate change.

The Ce porary Art S School and the Painting Summer School were the most popular, sold-out courses across our
successful practical courses and classes programme. Well-attended art history weekends also included Japan, the muse in art,
Francis Bacon, and John Constable and the landscape art tradition. The Learning team also worked across the RA to ensure a
successful proposition for the Bloomberg digital studio project building on the success of the Saturday Sketch Club in 2021
which had 22,000 participants, across 54 different countries.

After the disruptions in international travel, the Executive Master in Cultural Leadership’s year was dedicated to working on
delivery backlog both in Maastricht (March and September 2022) and in London (October 2021 and July 2022), to enable
international students to catch up with their peers. In total six full modules were delivered, which drew excellent feedback on
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the curated mix of academic and high-profile professional speakers. International appetite for the programme was confirmed
in March 2022 when the fourth EMCL cohort started with students drawn from eight countries.

The teams across Collections and Learning continued to contribute widely to scholarly publications, university lectures, TV and
radio interviews and writing for our own RA magazine and online content.

4. RA Schools

RA Schools Show

The RA Schools 2022 Graduation Show was installed across The Weston Studio, Life Drawing Room, RA Schools studios and the
RA Schools sculpture workshop. Built in 1868 the RA Schools studios in Burlington House are on the brink of restoration and
renewal. Aware that they were the last students to show in the studio prior to the building project, much of the work presented
by the graduating students at the RA Schools Show 2022 acknowledged and actively engaged with the RA Schools’ architecture
and history.

Graduation

15 students graduated this year - 14 of whom had completed four years at the RA Schools, including the pandemic catch-up
year. Divine Southgate-Smith elected to join the graduating students from the second year, and made this year their final one,
therefore completing the programme in three years. The graduation ceremony took place, in the presence of the whole RA
Schools for the first time, alongside family, friends and staff in the Benjamin West Lecture Theatre.

Programme
We were finally able to welcome the Class of 2024 - all of whom have been waiting an extra year to take up their place at the
RA Schools as their arrival had been postponed by lockdown and the catch-up year.

The academic programme for the year included lectures from Frank B Wildenstien IIl, Farshid Moussavi RA, and Dawn Ades, RA
Professor of the History of Art; artist talks included Rabz Lansiquot, of Languid Hands, Yinka Shonibare RA, and Dean Kenning,
as well as colour theory workshops given by Emyr Williams.

Year-group crits were led by the Senior Lecturers and guests including Simeon Barclay, Milika Muritu, Sebastian Jefford,
Clémentine Bedos, Phoebe Unwin, Christ Fite-Wassilak and Philip Lai.

Tutorials were given by Federico Campagna, Andreas Reiter Raabe, Mike Nelson RA, Damien Roach, Harold Offeh, Alison
Wilding RA, Emma Hart, and Jennifer Martin amongst others. Our Professors Lubaina Himid RA, Alison Wilding RA, Fiona Banner
RA Elect, Mike Nelson RA, and Chantal Joffe RA also gave tutorials.

Admissions

From 711 applications, we shortlisted 49 for interview and selected 10 students, all of whom accepted their places. Despite the
constraints we are under given our lack of access to International Student Visas, we have managed to recruit an international
group which includes artists from Nigeria, Pakistan, The Netherlands, Brazil and also individuals with Anglo-French and
Nepalese heritage.

We have appointed Unyimeabasi Udoh to be the Starr Fellow 2022-2023, they have joined us from Chicago. The Starr
Fellowship is a year-long residency at the RA Schools for an American artist supported by the Starr Foundation.

Student Support Fund and bursaries
We have had a greater number of applications to the Student Support Fund this year, which have only been manageable due
to the support given by Dunard and from the RA Schools Auction funds.

Workshops

The new RA Schools workshops in Burlington Gardens have been in full use since opening earlier in 2022. The new spaces allow
for more flexible and versatile working methods and have been made possible by funds raised at the RA Schools Annual Dinner
and Auction. The location of the workshops has activated the previously passive space and somewhat under-used Lovelace
Courtyard, transforming it into a new focal point where staff and students across the campus are encouraged to meet, interact,
work, and socialise.
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People
Professors — We thank Farshid Moussavi RA who has come to the end of her term as Professor of Architecture and will be
replaced by Prof Peter 5t John (Adam Caruso and Peter 5t John RA).

Critical Practice Fellow - We thank Nina Trivedi for her contribution as Critical Fellow to the RA Schools 2021-2022.

Weston Studio programme

We mounted five shows in the Weston Studio over the year, three smaller group shows by Year Two students - Premiums; the
emphasis of this series is one of experimentation, a testing ground which provides a critical and pedagogic point, midway
through the programme. This is also an opportunity for visitors to encounter a living art school at work in the Academy.
Premiums shows were followed by the RA Schools Show in June 2022.

The new Weston Studio programme opened the opportunity for our Starr Fellow, U.S. artist Kevin Gallagher, to show his work.
His show Beacon ran through December 2021.

Open Studios

We held our vibrant annual Open Studios event for Patrons and other supporters on 25 November 2021. Students put together
a show-reel of films which was presented in the Life Room, and a live performance rehearsal by Catinca Malaimare in The
Keeper's Room. The evening came to a climactic close with Daria Blum's live performance bringing together live looped music,
video, vocals, and dance.

Collak ions, resid ies and prizes
Chris Heun Sin Kan undertook the K11 Art Foundation residency at the RA Schools over luly and August 2022.

The Richard Ford Award, which funds six artists from different art schools to travel to Madrid and draw in the Prado, awarded
the opportunity to Clark Keatley (2022). He will be travelling to Madrid over the Summer 2022.

Phone box commission

As part of the Burlington Gardens Public Realm Scheme, we were approached by the project leader, Cynthia Grant, who
proposed a commission project to further enhance Burlington Gardens. The project aimed to resolve the use and appearance
of the three phone boxes outside the east entrance to Burlington Gardens, the future entrance to the RA Schools. The winning
proposal was by second year student Max Boyla whose work “SO5" was installed and launched in November 2021.

Turner’'s House residency 2021

In August 2021, Anna Patterson (2016) exhibited work at Turner's House, Sandycombe Lodge, in Twickenham at the culmination
of her residency there. The selection process for a graduate of the RA is facilitated by the RA Schools annually. The graduate
receives a stipend, has access to the house and contributes to the Turner's House Learning Programme.

St James, Piccadilly, Cop 26 commission

We were approached by the Rev. Lucy Winkett, Chaplain to the Royal Academy, to identify an artist to fulfil a commission for
St James's Piccadilly, to be installed at the time of Cop 26. The Keeper, Cathie Pilkington RA, and Eranda Professor of Drawing
Alison Wilding RA, Rev. Lucy Winkett and another representative of 5t. James's selected artist graduate, Esmerelda Valencia
Lindstrom, whose work was exhibited in the church.

5. Development

We were delighted to receive outstanding support across the RA this year, which began strongly with a very successful event
hosted by the Royal Academy Trustees Dame Carolyn McCall and Varun Chandra. Following the event, Viking River Cruises
joined as the RA’s first Collection Supporter since 2018,

Regarding the exhibitions programme, we were pleased to welcome the sponsorship of Christies for Francis Bacon: Man and
Beast in January 2022. This was their second exhibition sponsorship since Rodical Geometry in 2014. The following month, we
opened Whistler's Woman in White: Joanna Hiffernan, for which we were grateful to Terra Foundation for their support of this
and their ongoing support of exhibitions at the RA. Further ahead in the programme, we look forward to Making Modernism
this autumn and Impressionists on Paper in 2023. We have received confirmation of a generous grant of £200k from the Huo
Family Foundation that will go towards both these exhibitions. For the Exhibitions and Collections departments, we are also
excited to introduce two 2-year Curatorial through our partnership with the Genesis Foundation.
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In the summer and for the sixteenth year running, Insight Investment enjoyed sponsorship of the Summer Exhibition. We are
hugely grateful for their continued support. At the same time, we welcomed Burberry as supporters of the Summer Exhibition
Preview Party in both Autumn 2021 and Summer 2022, Alongside the Summer Exhibition 2022, Chris Huen Sin Kan became the
fifth artist-in-residence to have a showcase at the RA in an ongoing partnership between the RA and the K11 Art Foundation.

This year we have received much support towards our aim of deepened digital engagement. Bloomberg Philanthropies has
given a just under £1m grant as part of their Digital Accelerator Programme. This will greatly refresh and enhance our current
digital infrastructure.

Across 2021 and 2022, the Natalia Cola Foundation has supported online artists talks, and this support will continue into 2023
as we embark on a hybrid programme of events in the Benjamin West Lecture Theatre.

We were sorry to learn of the passing of Robin Hambro in June 2022. Robin was the driving force behind the founding of the
Young Artists Summer Show in 2018. Her continued support made the Young Artists Summer Show possible in its fourth year
with the project successfully established in the RA's annual calendar.

We were pleased to see the return of in-person events to the Patrons programme. Some of the highlights included international
trips to La Biennale di Venezia and the Morosov Collection at Foundation Louis Vuitton.

Lastly, we were deeply grateful for the support of many individuals who generously left the RA legacy donations, which
amounted to £214k for the year.

6. Corporate Services

The Corporate Services pillar combi the t of Estates, IT, HR, Legal and Governance.

People

The Royal Academy employs a wide range of people with differing skill sets from curators, art handlers and fundraisers through
to access officers, event managers and accountants. Our colleagues are dedicated and highly talented people who are
committed to delivering the highest standards to our visitors. As at 31 August 2022, the RA employed 312 staff to support the
organisation in delivering its mission. Headcount grew by 5% in the year as the RA re-established its programme following long
periods of closure due to the pandemic, but its staffing level remains 16% below the pre-pandemic level, reflecting a continued
attention to cost control across the organisation.

Our 2021/22 People Plan set out to build resilience across the organisational structure and improve the operational
effectiveness of the HR function to ensure we have solid foundations on which to develop our longer-term strategic ambition
for people at the RA.

The RA is committed to ensuring equity, diversity, and inclusion across all we do. We operate under the core assumption that
a Royal Academy which encourages different ways of thinking, different approaches to problem solving, and different ways of
working together will inevitably defiver stronger results than a more homogenous alternative.

Our annual report on the Gender Pay Gap (issued in June 2022) once again demonstrated our continued commitment to pay
equity across gender. The report highlighted that on 5 April 2021 (the government’s “snapshot date” for capturing the gender
pay data of businesses and charities), 60% of the RA's 302 employees were female. This distribution of gender is largely
maintained across pay guartiles and does not skew towards men as you move up the quartiles.

We continue to recognise that gender diversity is a key strength and needs to start from the top. In April 2021, our Senior
Leadership Team comprised 63% women, an increase of 6% on the 2020 data. Our 2021 submission demonstrates a three-
percentage point decrease in the RA's mean hourly pay gap from 7% in 2020 to 4% in 2021 and our median hourly pay gap
remains very slightly positively skewed towards women. We promote a culture of gender equality, including encouraging both
flexible and agile working, and providing parents with a generous maternity and shared parental leave package.

We have continued the work on race equity and inclusion that we launched last year, focusing on education and awareness for
our teams, access to and progression of careers at the RA, diversity, and inclusion within our exhibition programme and for our
visitor experience, and we launched the RA’s first ever employee network group promoting the interests of the RA's LGBTO+
communities.
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Finally, the RA continues to maintain its commitment as a Living Wage Employer, offering the London Living Wage for eligible
staff and ensuring that third-party organisations operating at the RA, pay staff on site the London Living Wage as a minimum.

The new RA Staff Council {with elected staff representatives) met six times in the year to discuss a range of topics from pay
equity, to agile working, our approach to equity and diversity and inclusion and our work on sustainability. After the first full
year we are confident that the aims of this group (to provide a forum for open communication with management, encourage
debate and offer new suggestions for working practices) are being delivered.

Estates and Facilities

The pandemic had a significant impact on the management of the estate given restricted access to the site over prolonged
periods for core mair e and compliance revi The Estates Plan for this year set out to bring the RA's estate back to
pre-pandemic levels of i ance and compliance and ensure best practice was applied across our wider estates

4 o) .

management programme. Key performance indicators for compliance and pl pr e were brought
back up to expected levels over the financial year and all policies have been updated. In addition, best practices were reinforced
across the RA's approach to Health and Safety; the Health and Safety Ce i was re-instated; and all items in the Fire Risk
Assessment have either been completed or included in our capital expenditure programme.

Capital projects: RA Schools Project

The RA Schools Project has progressed significantly during the year. In early 2022, the student workshops in Burlington Gardens
were completed on programme and on budget. A Planning Application and Listed Building Consent for Burlington House works
was submitted in Winter 2021 and the RA entered a Pre-Construction Services Agreement in 2022 ahead of the Burlington
House main works with the same contractor who completed the works in Burlington Gardens (Knight Harwood). We have also
advanced our logistical and operational preparations for the main phase of work. The Collection of plaster casts and sculpture
based at the RA Schools was moved to off-site storage over Easter 2022 and will remain there until construction is complete.
We have designed and tendered temporary studios for the students, to be built on site in the Jillian and Arthur M. Sackler Wing
of Galleries and the space formerly occupied by Pace Gallery on the ground floor of 6 Burlington Gardens, and to be occupied
during construction. The main works in Burlington House are due to start in late 2022.

Environmental sustainability

The RA has taken several steps to minimise energy consumption and carbon emissions, The organisation is powered by 100%
renewable energy sources. The RA’s exhibitions are increasingly being designed with an eye on sustainability. We have moved
from paper-based to digital document management. We are committed to reducing our carbon footprint when it comes to the
design and build for exhibitions by engaging with 3D and 2D designers in discussions about the use of more sustainable
materials, such us recyclable papers and eco-friendly inks for our interpretation materials and recyclable products for our free
standing walls and display cases. We have also been consistently reusing free standing walls, plinths, and display cases for our
exhibitions. We consolidate shipments and reduce the number of overseas loans as much as possible to reduce our carbon
footprint. We request the use of existing crates and turtlebox crates in all our transport tenders to reduce wastage. We reuse
packing materials, such as polythene wrap and use more sustainable materials where possible.

The RAis committed to reducing the environmental impact of its activities and the organisation intends to renew its efforts in
this area in the next financial year. In line with Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) requirements, the RA reported
its total emissions for the year as 1,475.73 tCO2e (2021: 1,720.48 tCO2e). The largest proportion of the RA's Greenhouse Gas
{GHG) emissions was accounted for by the electricity consumed in internal areas within its commercial and academic buildings,
which represents 53.89% (2021: 51.91%) of total emissions, equating to 795.72 tCO2e (2021: 891.45 tCO2e). This data
demonstrates a 14% reduction in carbon emissions across the estate and is largely accounted for due to LED Lighting upgrades
throughout the buildings; a reduced exhibition programme; and two Summer Exhibitions scheduled in year.

7. Finance

As reported last year, back in February 2020 the RA undertook a financial sustainability review. This was informed by actual
financial performance in 2018/19, the first full financial year in which the RA had operated its newly expanded campus. The
review highlighted that the organisation needed significant changes even before the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, including

year-on-year cost savings, to ensure a robust and financially sustainable operating model.

With the impact of the pandemic, the financial situation of the RA deteriorated further. This was despite government support
in the form of the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme and generous donations to the RA’s Coronavirus Emergency Support
Fund. The RA has undertaken stringent cost-cutting measures, including an organisational restructure and the deferral of all
non-critical capital expenditure projects that has helped mitigate the impact over the last two and a half years.
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As described in more detail in the Financial Review section below, the RA is reporting a very positive set of financial results for
this year. However, considerable financial challenges remain.

The RA has benefited this year from the exceptional situation of having two Summer Exhibitions {with the § Exhibiti
2021 being deferred to Autumn 2021 due to the pandemic) accounting for significant additional contribution over and above
a “normal year”. The RA has also operated with a lower cost base following the restructuring with less activity this year and has
not had the full impact of operating cost inflation and salary increases, including the rise in energy costs, as fixed tariff contracts
were in place until the end of September 2022. The impact of cost inflation and salary increases will have a material impact on
our cost base for the next financial year and over the medium term. However, the positive financial performance this year
means that we are in a far better funding position than we had planned, with healthy unrestricted operating cash reserves of
£6.4m. We are also not utilising our Revolving Credit Facilities which are committed to 31 August 2025, which do however
reduce to £5.0m during 2023. This will provide a welcome financial buffer over the next couple of financial years, which are
likely to be challenging.

Our operating budget for the next financial year reflects the very difficult financial position the RA now finds itself in. The RA
faces the challenge of growing back audiences, which are still much lower than before the pandemic, with the prospective
impact of the “cost of living crisis” providing a further headwind to increasing visitor numbers. This is against a backdrop of
increasing costs, with a substantial increase in energy tariffs forecast from the end of September 2022 (when our three year
fixed tariff agreements expired); salary increases from September 2022 (following an extended period of freezing RA wide
annual salary increases); broader inflation; and a small increase in activity and staff numbers. We are budgeting a significant
headline loss for the next financial year even with the support of a £2.0m donation from the Royal Academy Trust (pledged
back in November 2022) for emergency support for the pandemic.

Based on current projections, compared to pre-pandemic levels, the RA is faced with a material reduction in income from
exhibition admission and other on-site sources of income for at least the next two to three years, together with a smaller annual
donation from The Friends of the Royal Academy, such that there is an expectation that it will take even longer to return to
pre-Covid-19 levels of income and achieve the sustainable annual net income from ongoing activities target of £5.0m (before
interest, depreciation, and amortisation).

IMPACT AND PUBLIC BENEFIT

As a "Home for art, artists and architects” the Royal Academy has as its founding mission to “work together to promote the
arts of design; and educate the public in creation, enjoyment and understanding of the arts through exhibition, education and
debate.” This mission holds true until today and going forward the RA is committed to continuing to deliver on this mission.

As an independent institution, the RA has a two-pronged goal: to deliver on its mission, whilst at the same time securing the
financial sustainability required to ensure its future. The RA faced unprecedented challenges in terms of the operational and
financial impact of the pandemic and the organisation was forced to reassess its priorities and reinforce its focus on the core
principles and activities which have guided the RA since its inception. This Vision 2021-25 was designed to guide the RA during
the pandemic and its immediate aftermath. It is to be superseded by a new strategy that will be approved later in 2022.

The Core RA based on the Vision 2021-25

The core constituent parts of the RA are the Membership of the Royal Academicians, the RA Schools, the exhibitions programme
(including the Summer Exhibition), the Collection, and learning. The respective strength and unique quality of each of these
aspects, and their combination under one roof give the RA a unique character that is not shared by any other institution in the
world.

The Membership

The RA was founded by a group of pre-eminent artists and architects. To this day the Academy is led by its Membership, a
group of nationally and internationally renowned artists and architects, elected by their peers and appointed for life. They are
involved in leading the RA through its topmost governing body, the Council, as well as the General Assembly and its committees.
They are the lifeblood of the Academy.

The RA Schools

The original impetus for setting up the Royal Academy of Arts was to professionalise the training of young artists in an art
school much like had been happening elsewhere in Europe. Today it is a three-year post-graduate programme for 15 students
per year. The RA Schools, led by the Keeper and the Curator and Director of the RA Schools, is considered as one of the leading
art schools in the UK and attracts a wide range of European students.

During Summer 2021, the RA Schools embarked upon the first phase of works for a significant restoration and renewal of the
RA Schools. The expected cost of the project has increased significantly during the past year, primarily due to inflation, such
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that the total project budget of £22.0m approved by Council in November 2022 was £4.2m higher than the £17.8m budget
approved by Council in April 2021. The work has been split into two phases — the first created new workshop spaces in &
Burlington Gardens, which came into use early in 2022, and the second more significant phase will refurbish the Burlington
House side of the RA Schools from late 2022 to early 2024.

The exhibitions programme

When the RA was founded, its members established annual exhibitions with a two-fold aim: for the Royal Academicians to
display and sell their works and to generate income to finance the RA Schools. This tradition continues with the annual Summer
Exhibition that has been held without interruption since the RA's inception.

Besides the annual Summer Exhibition, the RA now runs a wide-ranging, ambitious, and much respected programme of
international loan exhibitions on art and architecture. Of these, three are held in the Main Galleries, one of the grandest
temporary exhibition spaces in the UK, if not in the world. The other gallery spaces are The Jillian and Arthur M. Sackler Wing
of Galleries and the Gabrielle Jungels-Winkler Galleries.

The Collection

The RA's unigue and wide-ranging Collection was started as a teaching collection for the RA Schools. From the beginning the
Academy also required every Academician to donate a “diploma work” to the Collection. Over time the Collection has grown
into a visual record of the RA's membership and history. Valuable works in the Collection range from Michelangelo's Taddei
Tondo, John Constable’s Leaping Horse and George Stubbs's anatomical drawings and studies of the horse, to diploma works
by living artists such as Lubaina Himid RA and Tracey Emin RA. The Collection also contains historic copies after Leonardo's Last
Supper and Raphael's cartoons for the Sistine Chapel. There is a considerable collection of plaster casts after famous works of
art, a sizeable collection of works on paper, photographs, an increasing amount of film, and then silver, furniture, coins, medals,
and artists’ materials. Our Collection includes an important historic Archive of artists' papers and other records, and a Library
collection of rare books. The Library and Archive are well-documented with much available digitally. The Collection is on free
public display in the designated Collection Gallery, the Julia and Hans Rausing Gallery, in various parts of the building as part of
the ceilings and walls, and in the Fine Rooms which are open selectively at the moment. Access for scholars and researchers is
provided several days per week for our Library, Archive and Prints and Drawings Collections, as well as a busy information
service by email and a Picture Library service by request.

Learning

In the Academy's founding mission, the Royal Academicians stated that the RA was to "educate the public in creation,
enjoyment and understanding of the arts” and learning, by definition, is at the core of any academy. Our learning programmes
range from the engagement of teachers and the provision of Collection-based resources for formal learning to families and
communities and informal and intergenerational learning with some access-specific programmes. We have a thriving onsite
and online public programme offering a range of artists, architects and curators in conversation and there is a termly courses
provision offering paid-for practical and art history classes connecting to our Collection and our exhibitions. The Executive
Masters in Cultural Leadership is entering a fifth year in partnership with the University of Maastricht, foregrounding the
Academy's particular role in leading an independent, artist-led arts charity.

IMPACT MEASURES

Like many charities, the RA has a two-pronged goal: to deliver on its mission, whilst at the same time securing financial
sustainability to ensure its continued relevance. The RA’s Medium Term Plan explicitly articulates the goal to achieve an average
net income of at least £5.0m p.a. from ongoing activities (before interest, depreciation, and amortisation) to fund the ongoing
maintenance of our 2.5 acre campus and the required investment in technology; periodic plant upgrades and gallery
refurbishment programmes; to repay its borrowings and to service its financing costs; and to maintain a level of free reserves,
as outlined in the reserves policy on page 22. This financial sustainability target has been severely challenged by the impact of
pandemic, which is considered further in the Strategic Report below, and given the current macro-economic situation, as
considered further on page 24 in "Principal risks and uncertainties and risk management” will continue to be challenged over
the coming financial year and beyond.

Alongside the financial goal to achieve sustainability the RA has identified a set of mission related goals.

The RA tracks and monitors a variety of impact es (as distinguished from Key Performance Indicators, which are
considered separately in the Strategic Report below). These measures include those pertaining to the RA's activities across
exhibitions, RA Schools, Library and Collections, and education; where possible, we aim to e the delivery of our mission
and impact goals numerically, as well as qualitatively and anecdotall

The current measures will evolve as the organisation better understands which measures are most reliable and informative,
and as it introduces new means of tracking and assessing the impact it has but will now also have to be further considered in
light of what is possible for the organisation given the financial constraints due to the effect of the pandemic.
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The exhibition programme provides a mix of subject matter and content for a range of public tastes and is complemented by a
programme of activities such as lectures, and workshops aimed at providing opportunities for the public to engage with the
subject matter and the institution. The RA’s exhibition and public programme continue to measure success and impact both in
terms of the overall attendance or reach activities achieve as well as the degree to which the RA is able to welcome new
audiences who might otherwise face barriers to attending. The Royal Academy’s pricing policy includes opportunities for those
on lower incomes to visit the Royal Academy and participate in its programmes by taking advantage of reduced ticket prices
and free activities.

Various closures to the public during the pandemic have pr i significant challenges to the RA in delivering its public
benefit. However, throughout this period the RA increased its focus on digital programming to keep audiences engaged and
support its mission despite closure.

In implementing the stated objectives through the strategies described, the trustees confirm that they comply with their duty
to have regard to the Charity Commission guidance on public benefit.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Business review

The “Strategic review” section above sets out the RA’s activities in this area over the past year or so, as well as its vision for
2021-25. A review of the Royal Academy’s activities, achievements, and impact has been included in the "Activities,
achievements and impact” section, also above. The “Future plans” section of this report, which follows, sets out in further
detail our strategy for the next five years.

Sustainability review

As noted in the review of activities above, in parallel with the wider strategic review in the period to February 2020, a financial
sustainability review was undertaken informed by the actual financial performance in 2018/19, the first full financial year in
which the RA operated its expanded campus. This review highlighted significant organisational changes were needed, including
the delivery of year-on-year cost savings, to ensure a robust and financially sustainable operating model. This review also
identified a series of key financial metrics providing a benchmark towards achieving financial sustainability. During the Covid-
19 global pandemic and the recovery period we are now in, these metrics cannot reasonably be measured or delivered against
in the short term but will provide a useful framework as the RA establishes its post Covid-19 “new normal”. Several of these
key financial metrics are included in the key performance indicators below.

Key performance indicators

The following key performance indicators (“KPIs”) have been identified as key measures of our progress against our strategic
objectives. Targets for overall audience figures and KPls with direct financial impact (e.g., Friends membership numbers) are
embedded into our Medium Term Plan, which is updated annually and reflect the financial sustainability metrics referenced
above and in 8. “Financial sustainability” below. Targets for more qualitative measures (e.g., visitor experience, audience
diversity) continue to be refined on an ongoing basis.

1. Exhibitions
s Number of exhibition and wider campus visitors
e Critical reception of exhibitions
= Number of exhibitions realised

2. Audience and Experience
s Secondary spend per visitor (retail and catering spend) and trade/wholesale/licensing income
= Visitor experience (rating of exhibition and of overall visit)
s Engagement and number of digital visitors (unique visitors, website sessions, social media following)

3. Collections and Learning
*  Impact and reach of learning and public programme {online and onsite)
s Audience for Collections (physical displays, website visits, appointments)
*  Range and type of new Collection acquisitions and successful care and management of all Collections

4. RA Schools
s  Number of RA Schools applications (per place and from outside London/UK/Europe)
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5. Development
e Fundraising ROIl, amounts raised

6. People
*  Academician engagement (board and committee attendance of new nc
*  Staff engagement (engagement survey, appraisal completion, staff turnover)

h

7. Estates — major projects
*  Completion of Burlington Project - the RA Schools restoration and renewal project on programme and budget

8. Financial sustainability

*  Target to achieve sustainable net income from ongoing activities (before interest, depreciation, and amortisation) of
at least £5.0m per annum

*  Insupporting this £5.0m target, overall net contribution metrics for exhibitions (including admission and sponsorship
income and exhibition costs); membership schemes (Patrons, Corporate, Academicians’ Room) (including lets and
events); annual donation from The Friends of the Royal Academy; and the net contribution from retail, publishing,
and broader commercial trading activities

e Staff costs as a percentage of income and as percentage of total staff and operating costs

9. Environmental sustainability
e Energy consumption and Green House Gas (GHG) emissions

10. Equity, diversity, and inclusion
e Diversity profile within each stakeholder group (audience, staff, Academicians, students, trustees, artists, speakers)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial result for the year

The results for the current year show net income of £5.1m (2021: net expenditure of £1.8m) for core activities, being those
ongoing activities directly associated with delivering the charitable objectives, and net income of £5.0m (2021: £7.9m) for the
Burlington Project, being the refurbishment and redevelopment of the Royal Academy’s buildings and estate. Net income of
£5.1m (2021: net expenditure of £1.8m) for core activities includes £0.4m (2021: £0.5m) of interest payable; £0.0m (2021:
£0.0m) of interest receivable; and £0.1m of investment losses (2021: £0.1m of investment gains). There was net income of
£5.6m (2021: net expenditure £1.5m) excluding net interest payable and investment losses/gains.

Total net movement in funds, includes the recognition of the actuarial loss on the pension scheme totalling £2.4m (2021: gain
of £1.9m), and a tax credit of £0.4m (2021: £0.1m) in respect of Museum and Galleries Tax Relief, resulting in a surplus of £8.0m
(2021: £8.1m).

The ongoing activities surplus, excluding net interest payable and investment gains was £5.6m (2021: deficit £1.5m). These
results are significantly up on those of the previous year, with an increase of £7.1m. Both years have benefited from income
from donations to the Coronavirus Emergency Support Fund (“CESF”) of £0.2m (2021: £0.8m), as well as legacy income
designated to the CESF of £0.2m (2021: £0.8m); and grant income of £0.1m (2021: £2.5m) from the Government's Coronavirus
Job Retention Scheme (“CJRS"). Excluding the impact of these items, the surplus would have been £5.1m (2021: deficit of £5.7m
£4.0m); an increase in surplus of £10.8m. However, the prior year expenditure did also include the cost of the restructuring, in
response to the pandemic, of £2.2m (£2.0m net of a recharge made to The Friends of the Royal Academy).

This year's results benefited significantly from the exceptional situation of having two Summer Exhibitions in one financial year,
with the Summer Exhibition 2021 being deferred to Autumn 2021 due to the pandemic. Despite, the emergence of the Omicron
variant and the government measures put in place to combat this, which reduced visitor numbers towards the end of the
exhibition’s run in late 2021 and early 2022, the exhibition still generated a significant contribution, including from the
commission earned from arts sales. The Summer Exhibition 2022 back in its normal summer slot performed extremely well,
being the first Main Gallery exhibition to see visitor numbers at a level similar to those experienced before the pandemic and
doing equally as well as Summer Exhibition 2021 in arts sales commission. The other Main Gallery exhibition Francis Bacon:
Man and Beast, which ran from late January 2022 to mid-April 2022, also performed well ahead of plan although visitor
numbers were around 25% lower than we might have expected before the pandemic. Following the restructuring in 2021, the
Royal Academy continued to operate with a lower cost base and whilst there was some impact of inflation on both staff and
operating costs, this will be far more keenly felt in the next financial year. This is particularly true of energy costs, for which
three year fixed tariff contracts expired at the end of September 2022, and for which much higher tariffs are forecast in the
short to medium term notwithstanding the government support provided to the end of March 2023.
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Total income from ongoing activities for the current year was 32.7% up on the previous year at £38.2m (2021: £28.8m), with
expenditure (excluding interest payable) increasing by 7.4% over the same period to £32.6m (2021: £30.3m). Excluding income
from the CESF and CJRS, total income was 53.2% up on the previous year at £37.8m (2021: £24.6m). The previous year
expenditure includes £2.0m restructuring costs, as well as an exceptional provision for diminution in value of an investment
property of £0.7m; excluding these, expenditure increased by 18.0% to £32.6m (2021: £27.6m).

The Friends of the Royal Academy, a separate registered charity, donated £11.1m (2021: £10.4m) to the Royal Academy, 6.2%
higher than the previous year; but also donated a further £0.1m (2021: £0.7m) of legacy income towards the CESF. The total
donation of £11.2m (2021: £11.1m) represented over 29% (2021: 39%) of the RA’s total income from ongoing activities.

Exhibition income increased by 174.5% to £8.6m (2021: £3.1m).

There was an 89.2% increase in income from our trading subsidiaries to £9.4m (2021: £5.0m). Income from commercial
activities of £6.3m was 52.8% up (2021: £4.1m), with income from entertaining services to the corporate sector 137.5% up at
£2.0m (2021: £0.8m) and income from ticketed fundraising events of £1.1m over £1.0m up (2021: £0.1m).

Other income including sponsorship at £2.9m was 36.1% up (2021: £2.1m); with other donations at £3.8m, 6.1% up (2021:
£3.6m), including £0.2m emergency fundraising {2021: £0.8m). Grant income at £1.1m was 60.6% down (2021: £2.8m). This
included £0.1m from the CJRS (2021: £2.5m); excluding this, grant income was £0.8m higher due primarily to the just under
£1.0m received from Bloomberg for digital infrastructure development.

The increase in expenditure included a 14.3% decrease in staff costs to £12.4m (2021: £14.5m), with average full-time
equivalent permanent employees decreasing to 269 (2021: 284), with the restructuring completed in January 2021 only
impacting the previous year in part. Staff costs in the previous year also include £1.9m of the total £2.0m restructuring costs.

Other expenditure (excluding depreciation and amortisation) has increased by 38.6% to £16.5m (2021: £11.9m), primarily
reflecting an increase in direct exhibition costs and retail cost of sales, with operating costs also increasing slightly following
the cost savings initiatives in the previous year due to the pandemic. Depreciation and amortisation charges were down 6.8%
at £3.6m (2021: £3.9m) - the comparatively high charge reflecting the Academy’s recent investment in both the plant upgrade
and gallery refurbishment programme and systems technology, as well as the assets brought into service primarily in 2018 with
completion of Phase | of the Burlington Project.

The Royal Academy put in place a five year £5.0m committed Masterplan Revolving Credit Facility {“Masterplan RCF”") in May
2017 to provide the required working capital for the completion of the Burlington Project, as redevelopment costs were
incurred in advance of the receipt of pledged donations and to fund the final cost overruns on the project. The facility has since
been extended with the £5.0m commitment running to June 2023 and thereafter reducing to a £3.5m commitment to 31
August 2025, which can be drawn down in advances with a minimum value of £0.5m. Each advance is repayable after one
month; at the end of the one-month period the advance can either be rolled over for another one-month period or repaid,
with the amount then being available again for draw down. This £5.0m facility was not drawn down at the year end, with the
£3.7m drawn at the end of the previous financial year repaid in September 2021. An extension of the £3.5m facility to 31 August
2027 has been approved, with the facility agreement due to be signed in early 2023.

The Royal Academy put in place a five year £2.5m committed Operating Revolving Credit Facility ("Operating RCF”) in March
2018 to manage operating working capital requirements. The facility has since been extended with the £2.5m commitment
running to February 2023 and thereafter reducing to a £1.5m commitment to 31 August 2025, which can be drawn down in
advances with a minimum value of £0.15m. Each advance is repayable after one month; at the end of the one-month period
the advance can either be rolled over for another one-month period or repaid, with the amount then being available again for
draw down. This facility was not drawn down at the year end. An extension of the £1.5m facility to 31 August 2027 has been
approved, with the facility agreement due to be signed in early 2023,

The Royal Academy has benefited significantly from the introduction of the Museums and Galleries Tax relief from 1 April 2017,
providing much needed financial support to the exhibitions and free display programme amounting to about £0.4m each year
to date, although this reduced to less than £0.2m last year with the impact of cancelling exhibitions due to the pandemic. The
announcement last year of the extension of this relief until at least 31 March 2024 and increase in the rate of relief with effect
from 27 October 2021 was much welcomed.

Reserves

The policy of the Royal Academy is to maintain a sufficient level of free reserves to enable operating activities to be maintained,
taking account of potential risks and contingencies that may arise from time to time. A formal policy on reserves was originally
agreed at the meeting of Council on 4 October 2011 and approved annually thereafter which states:
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The trustees have set a reserves policy which requires:

*  Reserves to be maintained at a level which ensures that the Royal Academy’s core activities could continue during a
period of unforeseen difficulty and that current and future ¢ itments can be he ed.

* A proportion of reserves to be maintained in a readily realisable form.

*  The palicy is reviewed annually by Council.

Free reserves comprise that part of the total unrestricted funds that are freely available. Arising from the most recent review,
the trustees have adopted a risk-based approach to determine an appropriate level of free reserves. The trustees consider it
appropriate to have free reserves sufficient to cover a peried of unforeseen difficulties and consider this to be the greater of a
period of three months, being the normal duration of a main gallery exhibition, such that this would allow the Royal Academy
to continue running in the circumstances that an exhibition is cancelled without an alternative being viable, and a period of six
months, during which the Royal Academy has less than budgeted visitor numbers, due to the impact of external factors, such
as the threat of terrorism or a pandemic, reducing the number of visitors to London generally and the RA's campus more
specifically.

The trustees have specifically considered the prospective financial impact of the key risks identified in the Royal Academy’s Risk
Register, including those pertaining to meeting the budget approved for the year ended 31 August 2023 and have further
considered the medium term cash flow forecasts of the Royal Academy to 31 August 2027 and the long term loan funding in
place. The trustees have also considered expenditures that could be deferred or avoided to mitigate the detrimental impact
of unforeseen difficulties.

Based on this detailed review and analysis, the trustees consider that an appropriate level of free reserves would be in the
order of £4.5m to be held by way of operating contingency at all times to enable the Royal Academy to continue operating for
a period of three months to cover both a fall in exhibition, trading and voluntary income and fixed operating costs (including
salaries) and the prospective financial impact of other uninsured risks or six months, in the event of reduced visitor numbers
due to external factors, such as the threat of terrorism or a pandemic.

Actual free reserves as at 31 August 2022

As at 31 August 2022, total unrestricted and non-designated funds stood at £92.7m, including £90.8m of fixed assets. Free
reserves, which exclude fixed assets, are therefore in surplus by £1.9m, after taking account of the pension scheme asset of
£6.4m and are £2.6m less than the desired level of £4.5m.

The free reserves surplus of £1.9m is represented by net current assets of £5.9m less long term liabilities of £10.4m, of which
£10.0m is repayable in ten equal instalments from 2035-2044; and the pension scheme asset of £6.4m.

In addition to the net current assets of £5.9m as at 31 August 2022, the Royal Academy has access to a £5.0m Masterplan RCF
(the facility commitment reduces to £3.5m from June 2023 to 31 August 2025) and a committed £2.5m Operating RCF to
February 2023 {reducing to £1.5m from March 2023 to 31 August 2025) and an annually renewable £0.5m overdraft facility,
none of which were drawn upon at the year end. A two year extension to 31 August 2027 has been approved for both the
Masterplan and Operating RCF.

In November 2020, the Royal Academy Trust pledged a £2.0m donation to the Royal Academy, which may be drawn down over
the period to 31 August 2023 as emergency support funding to mitigate the financial impact of Covid-19. This pledge had not
been called upon at the year end but will be drawn in 2023.

In view of the level of current liquid resources, future pledged donations and the long term loan funding and short term facilities
in place, which are all available for operational purposes, the trustees consider that the Royal Academy has both sufficient
funding and liquidity for the foreseeable future.

As outlined above, in parallel with the wider strategic review in the period to February 2020, a financial sustainability review
was undertaken informed by the actual financial performance in 2018/19, the first full financial year in which the RA operated
its expanded campus. Part of the scope of this review was to identify a series of key financial metrics providing a benchmark
towards achieving financial sustainability, which included delivering the required level of surplus funds to achieve the target
level of free reserves over the long term (being a period of five to seven years). Due to the impact of the pandemic and the
broader macro-economic situation that has followed, these metrics are unlikely to be delivered against for an extended period,
and the period to achieving the target level of free reserves will inevitably be prolonged.
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The trustees also take comfort from the fact that the Royal Academy Trust, an indep 1t charity d under a Trust
Deed dated 11 February 1981 specifically to provide support to the Royal Academy, held funds of £53.1m at 31 August 2022 in
trust for the Royal Academy, of which £18.3m represents unrestricted funds, including £11.9m that is both unrestricted and
not designated. A further £21.2m represents permanent endowment funds, which are accounted for on a total return basis
(such that both income and capital appreciation may be distributed), with the remaining £13.6m being restricted funds
(including £0.9m which may be used for the general purposes of the Royal Academy). These amounts are held by the Royal
Academy Trust until these are required by the Royal Academy for specific purposes and are invested by the Royal Academy
Trust to provide future funding for the Royal Academy. As noted above, in November 2020 the Royal Academy Trust made a
pledge of £2.0m, which may be drawn down over the period to 31 August 2023 as emergency support funding to mitigate the
financial impact of Covid-19 which will be drawn in 2023 from these funds.

FUTURE PLANS

QOur priorities for the years to come

Like many organisations, the Royal Academy, struggled to articulate a long term strategy through the pandemic years of 2020-
2021. However, in early 2022, the organisation started work on defining its strategic ambition and roadmap for the five year
period to 2027. This strategy remains in development and will be formally approved and adopted by Council later in 2022.
However, the plan will reinforce the Royal Academy’s founding mission and adapt to its changing environment by focusing on
three main objectives:

1. Reinforcing our ¢ i as an artist led, practice centred academy
The Academy exists to inspire and develop artistic practice at all levels of engagement. Over the next five year period, we aim
to reinforce our reputation and proposition as an "academy” — a place for exploration and ideation and a leading advocate for
the importance of the creative process and arts education more specifically. As an artist led institution with an art school at
our core, we see it as our responsibility to advocate for and enable greater access to art education in the UK.

2. Deepening the connections we make with the world around us
We believe that art is for everyone and, we are committed to ensuring that the RA is relevant and accessible to the broadest
audience. We see it as our responsibility to open new ways into art and to develop a programme which is relevant to and
reflects the interests of the diverse society we serve. Over the next five years the RA targets to become more connected with
the world around us. We will do this by opening new doors to our mission {online and on site), extending a warm welcome for
all who share our passion; showcasing excellence across an ever-more diverse spectrum of contemporary art and architecture;
and fostering deeper connections with the practice of art and living artists.

3. Building our financial, envir I, and organisational resilience
When the Royal Academy was founded 254 years ago, it was based on the principle that it would fund itself. Over the next five
years, in order to preserve our independence and ensure our mission continues to endure the test of time, we must strengthen
our resilience to the financial, social and environmental challenges we face. We will achieve this by growing audiences,
optimising our assets, maximising the commercial opportunities around our offer; strengthening our resilience to the
environmental challenges we face; and ensuring we have the right talent and skills to deliver the ambition we set.

Principal risks and uncertainties and risk 1:{
Council, advised by the 5LT and other specialist committees, evaluate and monitor risks and ensure systems and controls are
subject to regular review. Where appropriate, mitigating actions and improvements are put in place by the 5LT.

All risks identified are recorded in an on-line Risk Register, which is maintained on an ongoing basis and not only includes details
of all risks considered but also provides a mechanism for assessing and monitoring those risks, detailing the 5LT member
responsible and the actions taken to mitigate the risk.

The Risk Register is formulated by the SLT; is reviewed quarterly; and is formally reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee on
an annual basis. Each risk is given a ranking score, based on impact and likelihood. The highest scoring risks are reviewed by
Council and are given the highest priority in terms of management focus and mitigating actions are put into place. The Risk
Register also provides the basis for an ongoing programme of Internal Audit reviews, the findings of which are reported to the
Audit and Risk Committee.

The Covid-19 pandemic and subseguent lockdowns and closure of the Royal Academy has had a significant impact on the RA's
operations, financial sustainability and the wider risk landscape and this will continue for some time yet. The more positive
situation with the pandemic has been superseded by external global influences. The ongoing Russian / Ukraine conflict,
together with the longer-term impact of the pandemic as well as Brexit, has contributed to the macro-economic situation the
RA now finds itself in with pressure on supply chains; rising inflation and interest rates; and an emerging risk of a global
recession. The more immediate concern is the considerable challenge to the cost base with rising inflation and increased labour,
energy, and transportation costs.
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With general inflationary pressures pushing up costs and procurement issues with certain materials, this is also a very
challenging time in the construction market. The main works in Burlington House of the RA Schools Project are due to start in
late 2022, with the project likely to run into early 2024. This project was fully funded, but due to these issues is now facing a
material cost overrun, with further fundraising required and the risk of a funding shortfall.

There remains uncertainty as we recover from the pandemic and the impact of the "cost of living crisis” on growing back visitor
numbers represents a further risk, both in terms of reduced visitor numbers to our exhibition programme and a reduction in
The Friends of the Royal Academy donation to the Royal Academy arising from diminished Friends’ membership income.

The other highest scoring risks include staff recruitment and retention due to volatility in the labour market, including the
“Great Resignation” following the pandemic; the longer term impact of Brexit on the diversity of the student body in the RA
Schools and staff due to the changes in immigration law; the risk of the possibility of plant failure in the galleries, including the
impact of extreme weather; and the threat of a data security breach or cyber-attack. External risks include business interruption
arising from a significant external event including civil unrest, terrorism, another pandemic or extreme weather.

These risks are all subject to i diate manag 1t consideration to provide mitigation. Mitigation steps include robust
financial planning and analysis supporting the medium term cash flow forecasts of the Royal Academy to inform strategic
decisions; having procurement processes and stategies to achieve value-for-money when selecting suppliers and during the
course of contracts; robust project governance, supported by a strong internal and external project team; developing strategies
to attract the best staff, to promote wellbeing, and proactively plan development pathways for key staff; seeking alternative
available routes to ensure diversity of students in the RA Schools; completion of the plant upgrade programme, together with
planned preventative maintenance; cyber security and working practices in place; continued improvement to data protection
policies, procedures and controls, including emergency response planning; and disaster recovery and business continuity
planning and procedures.

FUNDRAISING

The RA's approach to fundraising is largely relationship led, through individual donor giving, memberships of the RA, capital
appeals, legacies, and corporate sponsorship. The RA does not generally engage with commercial participators and
professional fundraisers. The RA does not carry out house-to-house fundraising or street collections.

The RA is registered with the Fundraising Regulator and has submitted its annual complaints return to the Fundraising
Regulator. The RA complies with applicable regulation with regard to fundraising and in addition puts the privacy of our
supporter data at the heart of everything we do. We manage personal data respectfully and responsibly in accordance with
our published privacy policy.

The RA received 143 complaints associated with fundraising and membership in this financial year, compared to 77 in the
previous financial year. As in previous years, most of these complaints related to membership cancellations due to increased
price, rather than complaints in the strict sense. The number of complaints in this category is higher than the previous year.
This is still a comparatively low figure for the sector and given our activities. This represents the degree with which we have
developed our processes to ensure we put our supporters and the safeguarding of their data at the centre of everything we
do. Nevertheless, we are committed to studying any expression of dissatisfaction and identifying ways to improve. Our
supporter relations team investigate each complaint and we do all we can to resolve complaints and ensure supporters are
happy with our work.
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The trustees or members of Council (who are also directors of the Royal Academy for the purpose of company law) are
responsible for preparing the trustees’ report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and of the incoming resources, including the income and
expenditure of the charitable group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charity will
continue in business; and

e observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP.

The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

AUDIT INFORMATION

So far as each of the trustees at the time the trustees’ report is approved is aware:

*  there is no relevant information of which the auditors are unaware; and

s they have taken all relevant steps they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint Moore Kingston Smith LLP as the Royal Academy’s auditors will be put to the forthcoming General
Assembly.

On behalf of the Council

Rebecca Salter PRA
President

prof Peter 5t John (Adam Caruso and Peter 5t John RA)

The Royal Academy of Arts
Burlington House
Piccadilly

London W1) OBD

Date:& H\ w 7,07.:‘---
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Royal Academy of Arts (the "parent charitable company") and
its subsidiaries (the "group") for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the group Statement of
Financial Activities, the group and parent charitable company Balance Sheets, the group Cash Flow Statement
and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and the parent charitable company's affairs as at 31
August 2022 and of the group's incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and parent charitable
company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditors' report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information contained in
the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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Other information (continued)

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

o the information given in the trustees’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the trustees’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and parent charitable company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report

to you if, in our opinion:

« the parent charitable company has not kept adequate and sufficient accounting records, or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

the parent charitable company’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

« certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of trustees’ responsibilities set out on page 26, the trustees (who are also
the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the group and parent charitable
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the group or parent
charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustees of
The Royal Academy of Arts

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

.

.

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
group and parent charitable company’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the trustees.

conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the group and parent charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the group or parent charitable company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
report.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below.
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Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
(continued)

The objectives of our audit in respect of fraud are to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed
risks of material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to
those assessed risks; and to respond appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud identified during the
audit. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both
management and those charged with governance of the group and parent charitable company.

Our approach was as follows:

* we obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the charitable
company and considered that the most significant are the Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act 2011, the
Charity SORP, and UK financial reporting standards as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

* we obtained an understanding of how the group and charitable company complies with these requirements
by discussions with management and those charged with governance.

» we assessed the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, including the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud and how it might occur, by holding discussions with management and those
charged with governance.

« we inquired of management and those charged with governance as to any known instances of non-

compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations.

based on this understanding, we designed specific appropriate audit procedures to identify instances of non-

compliance with laws and regulations. This included making enquiries of management and those charged

with governance and obtaining additional corroborative evidence as required.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is
higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by,
for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Use of this report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
charitable company's members those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to any
party other than the charitable company and charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Mase kol Fak-ted

Andrew Stickland (Senior Statutory Auditor) 6" Floor
for and on behalf of Moore Kingston Smith LLP 9 Appold Street
London EC2A 2AP

Date: & qum\v-«r 2022
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income from:

Donations and legacies
General donations from RAT*
Other donations from RAT*:
Burlington Project
Cataloguing project
Other projects
Donations from Friends of the RA
Other donations
Grant income
Charitable activities
Exhibitions
Schools
Collections
Education
Other trading activities
Income from trading subsidiaries
Sponsorship, rent and other receipts
Investments
Bank interest
Dividends

Total income
Expenditure on:

Raising funds

Fundraising

Expenditure from trading subsidiaries
Charitable activities
Other

Relocation costs

Donation to RAT®

Diminution in value of i

property

Total expenditure
Net {losses) / gains on investments
Net income / [expenditure)
Transfers between funds
Other gains / (losses)
Tax credit
Remeasurement of defined
benefit pension scheme asset
Net movement in funds

Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

* RAT denotes Royal Academy Trust

The Royal Academy of Arts
Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities
(including an income and expenditure account)

For the year ended 31 August 2022

Burlington
‘Ongoing activities Project
3 red : - i
funds funds funds. funds funds Total Total
Note 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £ E
640,000 640,000 351,196
- - 2,000,000
16,976 16,976 16,828
# 398,913 398,913 601,474
11,099,320 57,967 - 11,157,287 11,144,509
5 1,654,680 459,960 1,734,244 5,141,811 8,990,695 9,534,394
6 89,946 996,926 1,086,872 2,756,765
8,607,068 8,607,068 3,135,618
23,608 = 23,608 21,092
16,647 16,647 11,100
180,143 180,143 82,097
i 9,383,026 9,383,026 4,959,471
2,876,385 2,876,385 2,113,737
5,617 5,617 8
323 323 462
34,576,763 517,927 3,147,059 5,141,811 43,383,560 36,728,751
9 (2,762,857) (2,762,857)  (3,041,237)
7 (6,668,150) - . (6,668,190)  (5,229,640)
10 (20,660,094)  (504,986) (2,408,560) (23,574,040)  (21,803,387)
- (169,044)  (169,048) -
(1,648) * (1,648) (15,328)
184 (8,173) (8,173) (720,521)
{30,091,141) (504,986) (2,418,781) (169,044) (33,183,952) (30,810,113)
19 (42,789) (21,880) (63,363) (128,032) 138,784
11 4,485,622 (29,848) 706,398 (63,363) 4,972,767 10,071,576 6,057,422
24-26 1,622,428 (142,876) (33,005) (1,446,547)
15 372,854 372,854 137,385
29 (2,430,000) (2,430,000) 1,921,000
4,050,904 (29,848) 563,522 (96,368) 3,526,220 8,014,430 8,115,807
88,690,264 672,362 3,471,941 888,478 11,765,819 105,488,864 97,373,057
92,741,168 642,514 4,035,463 792,110 15,292,039 113,503,294 105,488,864
All gains and losses arisihg in the year are included in the Statement of Financial Activities and derive from continuing activities.
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Fixed assets

Intangible assets

6 Burlington Gardens
Other tangible fixed assets
Heritage assets
Investment property
Other investments

Total fixed assets

Current assets

Stock

Debtors

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Creditors - amounts falling due
within one year

Net current assets
Total assets less current assets

Creditors - amounts falling due
after more than one year

Note

17
18.c
18.a,b

18.d
19

20

21

22

Net assets excluding pension scheme asset

Defined benefit pension scheme asset 29

Total net assets
The funds of the charity:
Endowment funds

Restricted funds

Unrestricted funds:
Designated funds
General funds
Pension reserve

Total unrestricted funds

Total charity funds

Rebecca Salter PRA

Registered Company No. 06298947

24

25

26

29

The Royal Academy of Arts
Balance Sheets as at 31 August 2022
Group Royal Academy
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
93,707 312,437 90,650 284,006
66,646,902 65,201,863 66,646,902 65,201,863
28,696,005 29,753,888 28,677,018 29,732,164
1,392,110 1,392,110 1,392,110 1,392,110
1,155,000 1,155,000 1,155,000 1,155,000
1,742,057 1,870,089 1,742,165 1,870,197
99,725,781 99,685,387 99,703,846 99,635,340
961,730 916,916 - -
4,308,075 2,865,734 4,692,122 4,190,577
17,518,488 13,040,769 17,304,604 12,962,709
22,788,293 16,823,419 21,996,726 17,153,286
(5,072,057)  (9,151,619) (4,222,534)  (8,592,863)
17,716,236 7,671,800 17,774,192 8,560,423
117,442,017 107,357,187 117,478,038 108,195,763
(10,382,723)  (10,602,323) (10,382,723) (10,602,323)
107,059,294 96,754,864 107,095,315 97,593,440
6,444,000 8,734,000 6,444,000 8,734,000
113,503,294 105,488,864 113,539,315 106,327,440
792,110 888,478 792,110 888,478
19,327,502 15,237,760 19,327,502 15,237,760
642,514 672,362 642,514 672,362
86,297,168 79,956,264 86,333,189 80,794,840
6,444,000 8,734,000 6,444,000 8,734,000
93,383,682 89,362,626 93,419,703 90,201,202
113,503,294 105,488,864 113,539,315 106,327,440
CH-Dearc 21

President

Pe

Treasurer

(Adam Caruso and Peter St John RA)
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The Royal Academy of Arts
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Note

Net cash provided by operating activities 28
Tax credit received

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest paid 11
Interest received

Payments to acquire intangible fixed assets 17.a
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets 18.a,cd
Payments to acquire fixed asset investments 15

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net repayment on revolving credit facilities 21
Bank loan repayments 22

Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash at bank and in hand

Total cash and cash equivalents

Analysis of changes in net debt:

Cash
Loans falling due within one year 21
Loans falling due after more than one year 22

Total

2022 2021

£ £

12,379,784 10,648,851

268,361 -

(438,370) (483,703)

5,618 8

- (99,652)
(3,818,074) (3,858,743)
- (925,000)
(4,250,826) (5,367,090)

(3,700,000) -
(219,600) (219,600)
(3,919,600) (219,600)

4,477,719 5,062,161

13,040,769 7,978,608

17,518,488 13,040,769

17,518,488 13,040,769

17,518,488 13,040,769
Opening  Cash flows Closing
£ £ £
13,040,769 4,477,719 17,518,488
(3,919,600) 3,700,000 (219,600)
(10,602,323) 219,600 (10,382,723)
(1,481,154) 8,397,319 6,916,165
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The Royal Academy of Arts
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022

1 General information

The Royal Academy of Arts ("Royal Academy") and its subsidiaries (together "the Group") continues to aspire
to promote the arts of design and educate the public in the creation, appreciation and enjoyment of arts. The
registered office is Burlington House, Piccadilly, London.

The Royal Academy is a company limited by guarantee and a registered charity and incorporated in England
and Wales.

The Royal Academy is a Public Benefit Entity as defined by FRS 102.
Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of investments to market value and in compliance with Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their financial statements in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 102, "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland" ("FRS 102"), the Charities Act 2011 and Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling which is the functional currency of the Group. Monetary
amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest pound.

. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Royal Academy and its three
trading subsidiaries: RA (Arts) Limited, Burlington House Limited and R.A. Enterprises Limited made up to 31
August 2022, The total income and expenditure of these entities is shown in the Statement of Financial
Activities ("SOFA") and the detailed results are disclosed in note 7 of the financial statements. The statements
are consolidated on a line by line basis.

The Royal Academy has taken advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from
disclosing its individual SOFA. The Royal Academy only surplus (net movement in funds) was £8,050,451
(2021: £8,954,383).

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out in the
notes below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

. Going concern

The trustees have assessed whether the use of the going concern basis is appropriate and have considered
possible events or conditions that might cast significant doubt on the ability of the Royal Academy to continue
as a going concern. The trustees have made this assessment for a period of at least one year from the date of
approval of the financial statements and have considered the continued impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, as
well as the macro-economic situation the Royal Academy now finds itself in with pressure on supply chains;
rising inflation and interest rates; and an emerging risk of a global recession.
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The Royal Academy of Arts
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
b. Going concern (continued)

In particular, the trustees have considered the sensitivity of forecasts, including that of a slower recovery from
the pandemic. They have taken account of the related pressures on its key sources of income from donations,
in particular the annual donation from the Friends of the Royal Academy; sponsorship and admission income
from its exhibitions programme; and from its trading activities, including onsite and online retail and
corporate membership and lets. The trustees have further reviewed its underlying cost base and its
expenditure on both its charitable and fundraising activities, as well as from commercial trading, supporting
these key sources of income and the prospective impact of rising inflation, higher energy tariffs and salary
increases on these.

The Group has unrestricted net current assets of £5.9m as at the year end. The Group also has access to a
committed £3.5m Masterplan Revolving Credit Facility (reducing from £5.0m in May 2023) and £1.5m
Operating Revolving Credit Facility (reducing from £2.5m in March 2023) to August 2025 and an annually
renewable £0.5m overdraft facility. None of these facilities were drawn upon as at the year end.

In November 2020, the Royal Academy Trust pledged a £2.0m donation to the Royal Academy, which may be
drawn down over the period to 31 August 2023 as emergency support funding to mitigate the financial impact
of Covid-19. This pledge has not yet been called upon by the Royal Academy but will be during 2023.

In addition, the Royal Academy Trust, an independent charity established to specifically provide support to
the Royal Academy, held funds of £53.1m at 31 August 2022 in trust for the Royal Academy, of which £18.3m
are unrestricted, including £11.9m that is both unrestricted and not designated, and £0.7m of restricted funds
held in the Paul Melion Endowment fund, which may be used for the general purposes of the Royal Academy.
The £2.0m pledge will be drawn from these funds.

In view of the level of current liquid resources; the long term loan funding and short term facilities in place;
and the pledged donations and ongoing support of the Royal Academy Trust, the trustees consider that the
Group has both sufficient funding and liquidity for the foreseeable future. The charity therefore continues to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.

c. Total return investment accounting

The trustees have elected to adopt the total return approach for the investment of its permanent
endowments. Under this approach, the permanently endowed funds are invested to produce an investment
return without regard to whether that return is in the form of income or capital appreciation; the investment
return forms a component of the endowment fund called the unapplied total return. The trustees periodically
determine how much of the unapplied total return is released to income for spending and how much is
retained for investment. This allocation is made equitably to balance the need for income to meet current
requirements and to hold funds as part of the endowment to produce investment returns for the future.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

d. Funds structure

Where there is a legal restriction on the purpose to which a fund may be put, the fund is classified either as a
restricted fund or an endowment fund.

Restricted funds are those where the donor has provided for the donation to be spent in furtherance of a
specified charitable purpose.

Endowment funds arise when the donor has expressly provided that the donation is to be invested and only
the income of the fund may be spent. These funds are sub analysed between those where the trustees have
the discretion to spend the capital, an expendable endowment, and those where there is no discretion to
expend the capital, a permanent endowment.

Those funds which are neither endowment nor restricted income funds, are unrestricted income funds which
are sub analysed between designated funds, where Council have set aside amounts to be used for specific
purposes or which reflect the non-binding wishes of donors; and unrestricted funds, which are used at the
trustees' discretion in furtherance of the general objectives of the Royal Academy, including the general fund
which represents the Group's reserves. The major funds held in each of these categories are disclosed in notes
24 to 26.

Transfers between funds represents the funds transferred between restricted funds to the general
unrestricted fund on completion of projects and restrictions being satisfied.

e. Burlington House

The Royal Academy holds a 999 year lease on Burlington House, of which almost 850 years remain, title to
which is vested in the Secretary of State for the Department of Communities and Local Government. The rent
of the property is nominal but it is the responsibility of the Royal Academy to maintain the property in a sound
condition. The property is inalienable in that its ownership reverts to the Government if it is no longer used by
the Royal Academy. The property works carried out on the galleries, Royal Academy Schools and Library are
principally to maintain the fabric in its original condition and ensure an adequate environment for the exhibits.
As the value of these works is part of the fabric of the building and cannot be realised, these are not
recognised in the balance sheet except in the case of building improvements as detailed in the fixed assets and
depreciation policy described below.

f. Heritage assets

The Royal Academy holds a collection of works of art, which consists of paintings, sculptures and prints,
together with a library of books acquired by the Royal Academy by donation, bequest and from members on
election to the Royal Academy ("Diploma Works").

The trustees do not consider that reliable cost or valuation information can be obtained for the vast majority
of heritage assets held by the Royal Academy. In particular, the Diploma Works have an intrinsic value to the
Royal Academy collection as an embodiment of the development of the Royal Academy as an institution. The
manner in which they are given to the Royal Academy makes the valuation of these items very subjective, such
that a reliable value cannot be arrived at. Furthermore, the cost of valuing the entire collection would be
onerous compared with the benefit derived by users of the financial statements in assessing the Royal
Academy’s stewardship of these assets.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

f. Heritage assets (continued)

As such, the Royal Academy does not recognise these assets on its balance sheet other than acquisitions made
since 1 April 2010 with a value of £10,000 or more. These are reported at cost where the asset is purchased or
at the curator’s best estimate of current value where the asset is donated. Such assets are not depreciated but
are reviewed for impairment in the event of physical deterioration. Any impairment in the value of an asset is
treated as charitable expenditure in the year in which it arises.

Expenditure which is required to preserve or prevent further deterioration of the collection is recognised in the
SOFA when it is incurred.

g. Foreign currency

Investment transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate ruling at the balance sheet
date.

h. Intangible assets

Computer software and website costs are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. These are amortised over their estimated useful life, of three years, on a straight line basis.

i. Tangible assets

Expenditure on building improvements, new machinery and equipment is capitalised as fixed assets and stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation. The Royal Academy applies a £1,000 threshold to the capitalisation of
fixed assets. Depreciation is charged at the following rates on a straight line basis:

Building improvements 5to 25 years
Computers over 3 years
Office fixtures and fittings 3to 10 years
Plant and equipment 5to 15 years
Motor vehicles over 3 years

Short leasehold property improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease.

Freehold property has been capitalised and included in fixed assets at cost. Depreciation has not been
provided after taking into account the value of the land, the residual value of the property and the estimated
useful life of the asset. The property is reviewed annually for any potential impairment.

Investment property has been capitalised and included in fixed assets initially at cost and subsequently at fair
value at the reporting date. Changes in fair value are recognised in the SOFA.

No depreciation is charged on assets in course of construction. Where assets are constructed as part of a
project for which specific identifiable assets are brought into service before the overall project is completed,
such assets will be transferred from assets in course of construction to building improvements or fixtures,
fittings and equipment as appropriate and depreciated from the date these are placed in service.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

j. Operating leases

Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Payments
under operating leases are charged to the SOFA on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Incentives received to enter into operating leases are credited to the SOFA to reduce the lease expense, on a
straight line basis over the period of the lease.

k. Stock

Stock principally consists of shop and e-commerce products and is valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. In the case of artworks provided by an artist these items are recognised in the financial
statements at their anticipated sales price, less anticipated cost of sales and any subseguent impairment.

. Income

Income, which is stated net of VAT where applicable, and intra-group transactions, consists of box office
takings, sponsorship, donations and grants.

Income received for an activity taking place in a subsequent period is deferred to that period in accordance
with FRS 102, except where that income relates to an exhibition where the accounting policy outlined below is
followed.

i. Exhibitions

The results of exhibitions are recognised in the financial statements of the year in which the majority of the
exhibition takes place. Costs incurred and income received, including sponsorship income, in connection with
forthcoming exhibitions, where the majority of the exhibition falls after the year end, are deferred at the
balance sheet date. If a decision is made not to proceed with an exhibition, the costs are written off.
Commission on art sales at the Royal Academy's Summer Exhibition is recognised at the point of sale by the
artist.

ii. Donated services

Where an artist has donated their services, for example, in the creation of artworks or artworks themselves, to
be sold alongside an exhibition, the donated services or artworks are recognised in the financial statements in
accordance with the policy for exhibitions income disclosed above.

Other donated services are recognised when these have been delivered and are valued at the amount the
Royal Academy would be prepared to pay for a similar service.

iii. Patrons
Patrons income is recognised in the financial statements on a cash received basis.

iv. Grants

For performance related grants, income entitlement is considered to be conditional upon the meeting of
conditions imposed by the grant. Income is therefore recognised in the financial statements to the extent that
the Royal Academy has demonstrably met any grant conditions imposed.

Non-performance related grants are recognised when there is evidence of entitlement, receipt is probable
(more likely than not) and its amount can be measured reliably.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
I. Income (continued)

v. Donations

Donations and related Gift Aid are accounted for when the donation is received. If donations are specifically in
connection with a future event, these are restricted; if specifically in connection with a future exhibition, these
follow the policy set out in 2.Li..

vi. Trading subsidiary income
Turnover is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amount
receivable for goods supplied or services rendered, net of discounts and VAT.

Turnover is recognised at the point of sale for goods and when services have been delivered. Subscriptions are
accounted for in the period in which membership commences.

m. Legacies

Legacies are accounted for as income where there is clear entitlement; the amounts can be measured reliably;
and receipt is probable.

Receipt is probable when:

- Confirmation has been received from the representatives of the estate(s) that probate has been granted;
and

- The executors have established there are sufficient assets in the estate to pay the legacy; and

- All conditions attached to the legacy have been fulfilled or are within the charity's control.

Measurement is based on the value listed in the will for pecuniary gifts, provided the estate has sufficient
funds, and on the estate accounts for residuary gifts.

n. Expenditure

Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis inclusive of any VAT which cannot be recovered. Expenditure
is recognised when there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is
probable a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement and the amount can be measured
reliably.

Expenditure on raising funds consist of costs of trading subsidiaries and fundraising expenditure. These include
the direct costs of the department, including the running costs of sponsorship, fundraising and events,
together with a share of the support costs of the Royal Academy.

Charitable activities include all costs related to the main purpose of the Royal Academy and include: direct
costs of exhibitions and the associated education programme; running the Royal Academy Schools; and the
conservation of the permanent collection and the Library. Publicity costs are allocated to Exhibitions, Royal
Academy Schools, Collections and Education based on the income from each area.

Support costs are the costs of departments which are shared by the various activities of the Royal Academy:
Finance, Human Resources, Information Technology, Facilities and governance costs. These costs are allocated
to activities on a basis that is appropriate to the nature of the expenditure and have therefore been allocated
over headcount.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
0. Employee benefits

The Royal Academy provides a range of benefits to employees, including paid holiday arrangements and
defined contribution pension plans.

i. Short term benefits
Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the service is received.

ii. Defined benefit pension plan

The Royal Academy of Arts Pension Scheme (“the Scheme”) is a defined benefit pension scheme closed to
future accrual on 30 September 2016. Pension assets and liabilities are recorded in line with Section 28 of FRS
102. With scheme valuations undertaken by independent actuaries, FRS 102 measures the value of pension
assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and determines the benefits accrued in the year and the interest
on assets and liabilities. Current service costs, together with the net interest for the year, are allocated to
relevant expenditure headings within the SOFA. Scheme assets are measured at fair value at the balance sheet
date. Scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis at the balance sheet date using the projected unit
method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of
equivalent term to the Scheme liabilities. The change in value of assets and liabilities arising from asset
valuation, changes in benefits, actuarial assumptions, or change in the level of deficit attributable to members
is recognised in unrestricted funds in the SOFA within remeasurement of defined benefit pension scheme asset.
The resulting defined benefit pension scheme asset or liability is presented separately on the face of the
balance sheet in unrestricted funds. The Royal Academy recognises an asset for its Scheme to the extent this is
considered recoverable through reduced contributions in the future, or through refunds from the Scheme. The
trustees of the Scheme believe that the Scheme currently meets the minimum funding requirements. The
assets of the Scheme are held completely independently from the Royal Academy.

The income and expense related to the Scheme is allocated entirely to the unrestricted ongoing activities of the
Group.

iii. Defined contribution pension plans
The Royal Academy operates two defined contribution plans for its employees. The contributions are
recognised as an expense when these are due. Amounts not paid are shown in accruals in the balance sheet.

iv. Termination payments

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Royal Academy before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The
Royal Academy recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either (i) terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or (ii)
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.

p. Administered funds

Investments held by the administered funds are stated at market value at the balance sheet date. Dividend
income from investments is recognised on an accruals basis.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments

i. Investment properties
Investment properties comprise those held solely for either their rental income and/or capital appreciation. They
are carried at fair value.

ii. Other investments

Listed investments are stated at market value at the year end. The market value of securities is based on the bid
market quotation on the relevant stock exchange and investments that are held in units are stated at the average
of the unit bid and offer prices. Unlisted investments are stated at cost as no market value is available. The SOFA
includes any realised or unrealised gain or loss during the year. Investment income, including the related tax
credit, and interest on bank and short-term deposits are accounted for on a receivable basis.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised in the Royal Academy's balance sheet when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Royal Academy after deducting all of its liabilities.

i. Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are initially
measured at transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost less any
impairment.

ii. Other financial assets

Other financial assets, including investments in equity instruments which are not subsidiaries, are initially
measured at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value
and the changes in fair value are recognised in the SOFA.

Trade debtors and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as "debtors". Debtors are measured at amortised cost less any impairment.

iii. Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through the SOFA, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each reporting end date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows have been affected. The impairment loss is recognised in the SOFA.

iv. Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to another entity.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

r. Financial instruments (continued)

v. Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables and bank loans are initially recognised at
transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is
measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. These are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If
not, these are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

vi. Other financial liabilities

Derivatives, including forward foreign exchange contracts, are not basic financial instruments. Derivatives are
initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in the SOFA in finance costs
or finance income as appropriate. Hedge accounting is not currently applied.

3 Critical accounting judgments and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

a. Useful economic lives of tangible and intangible assets

The annual depreciation and amortisation charge for fixed assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful
economic lives of the assets. The useful economic lives are re-assessed annually. These are amended where
necessary to reflect current estimates, based on technological advancement, future investments, economic
utilisation and the physical condition of the assets. See notes 17 and 18 for the carrying value of assets and note
2.h and 2.i for the useful economic lives.

b. Impairment of debtors

The Royal Academy makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade and other debtors. When assessing
impairment of trade and other debtors, management considers factors including the current credit rating of the
debtor, the ageing profile of debtors and historical experience.

c. Defined benefit pension scheme asset
The determination of the assumptions used in calculating the defined benefit pension scheme asset is the

responsibility of the trustees of the Royal Academy, with delegated authority to the Director of Finance. The
assumptions are set with regard to advice given by the scheme actuary.
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4 Prior year comparatives by type of fund

The Royal Academy of Arts
Notes to the Financial Statements

The SOFA provides the restated prior year comparatives in total; this note provides prior period comparatives for each of the types of

funds.
Burlington
Ongoing activities Project
ted Desi d  Restricted Endowment Restricted
funds funds funds funds funds Total
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Income from:
Donations and legacies
General donations from RAT* - - 351,196 - - 351,196
Other donations from RAT*:
Burlington Project - - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Cataloguing project - - 16,828 & - 16,828
Other projects - - 601,474 - - 601,474
Donations from Friends of the RA 10,448,495 696,014 - - - 11,144,509
Other donations 5 1,048,918 1,626,023 953,719 E: 5,905,734 9,534,394
Grant income [ 2,574,682 - 182,083 - - 2,756,765
Charitable activities
Exhibitions 3,135,618 - - - - 3,135,618
Schools 21,092 - - - - 21,092
Library 11,100 - - - - 11,100
Education 82,097 - - - - 82,097
Other trading activities
Income from trading subsidiaries 7 4,959,471 - - - - 4,959,471
Sponsorship, rent and other receipts 2,113,737 - - - - 2,113,737
Investments
Bank interest 8 - - - 2 8
Dividends 462 - - - - 462
Total income 24,395,680 2,322,037 2,105,300 £ 7,905,734 36,728,751
Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Fundraising 9 (3,041,237) - - - - (3,041,237)
Expenditure from trading subsidiaries 7 (5,229,640) - - - - (5,229,640)
Charitable activities 10 (17,431,087) (2,350,845) (2,021,455) = - (21,803,387)
Other
Donation to RAT* - - (15,328) - - (15,328)
Diminution in value of investment
property - - (720,521) - - (720,521)
Total expenditure (25,701,964)  (2,350,845)  (2,757,304) 3 - (30,810,113)
Net gains on investments - - 19,591 119,193 - 138,784
Net income / (expenditure) 11 (1,306,284) (28,808) (632,413) 119,193 7,905,734 6,057,422
Transfers between funds 24-26 2,828,028 - 229,013 (37,020) (3,020,021) -
Other gains
Tax credit 15 137,385 - - - - 137,385
Remeasurement of defined
benefit pension scheme asset 29 1,921,000 - - = - 1,921,000
Net movement in funds 3,580,129 (28,808) (403,400) 82,173 4,885,713 8,115,807
Total funds brought forward 85,110,135 701,170 3,875,341 806,305 6,880,106 97,373,057
Total funds carried forward 88,690,264 672,362 3,471,941 888,478 11,765,819 105,488,864

* RAT denotes Royal Academy Trust
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Restricted Endowment

funds funds funds funds Total
£ £ £ £ £

2022
Exhibitions 723,071 - 859,223 - 1,582,294
Schools 3,000 - 689,600 - 692,600
Collections 250 . - - 250
Education 151,584 - 185,421 - 337,005
General - Other 776,775 - - - 776,775
Burlington Project - Phase II/1ll . - 5,141,811 - 5,141,811
Presidents Fund * - 41,769 - - 41,769
Coronavirus Emergency Support Fund ("CESF") - 203,760 - - 203,760
Legacies - CESF * - 214,431 - - 214,431
Total 1,654,680 459,960 6,876,055 - 8,990,695

2021
Exhibitions 255,555 - 270,121 - 525,676
Schools 10,634 - 576,491 - 587,125
Collections 350 = - - 350
Education 61,021 - 72,357 - 133,378
General - Other 721,358 - 34,750 - 756,108
Burlington Project - Sackler lift - - 250,000 - 250,000
Burlington Project - Phase /Il - - 5,655,734 - 5,655,734
Coronavirus Emergency Support Fund ("CESF") - 783,904 - - 783,904
Legacies - CESF * - 842,119 - - 842,119
Total 1,048,918 1,626,023 6,859,453 - 9,534,394

* With effect from 1 September 2018, Council has determined that unrestricted legacies will be set aside as part of
the "Presidents' Fund" which is a designated fund held for the general purposes of the Royal Academy. In March
2020, the Royal Academy established a Coronavirus Emergency Support Fund (“CESF”). At its 31 March 2020
meeting, Council approved that unrestricted legacy income received until further notice should be designated to the
CESF and used for the general purposes of the Royal Academy.
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6 Income from grant income

Unrestricted Restricted

funds funds Total
£ E £
2022
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme 55,056 - 55,056
Digital infrastructure * - 980,000 980,000
Exhibitions 17,915 1,000 18,915
Schools 14,225 15,926 30,151
Education 2,750 - 2,750
Total 89,946 996,926 1,086,872
2021
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme 2,546,202 - 2,546,202
Schools 28,480 14,583 43,063
Education - 167,500 167,500
Total 2,574,682 182,083 2,756,765

The Royal Academy took advantage of the Government's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (“CIRS”) from
inception in March 2020 up until its closure in September 2021.

* The Royal Academy received grant income of £980k from the Bloomberg Philanthropies’ Digital Accelerator
Fund during the year. This will fund updating the user experience and infrastructure of the main Royal Academy
website; delivering a digital studio for online events; and researching the Royal Academy’s requirements for
digital asset management.
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7 Results from subsidiaries

The Royal Academy has three wholly owned trading subsidiaries: R.A. Enterprises Limited, which operates a shop and e-
commerce business, a restaurant and cafés, a publications and art sales business and commercial learning; RA (Arts)
Limited, which provides entertainment services to the corporate sector; and Burlington House Limited, which raises funds
from the corporate sector and individuals through ticketed events. These companies have entered into deeds of covenant to
donate their distributable profits to the Royal Academy. The registered offices of all subsidiaries is Burlington House,
Piccadilly, London. A summary of their trading results is shown below. Audited financial statements for these subsidiaries
are filed annually with the Registrar of Companies.

Profit and Loss: Total R.A. Enterprises Limited RA (Arts) Limited  Burlington House Limited

2022 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

£ £ £ E £ £ £

Turnover 9,383,026 6,295,283 4,120,885 1,954,379 822,736 1,133,364 15,850

Cost of sales (3,645,152) (2,948,110) (2,301,990) (83,803) (29,881} (613,239) -

Administrative expenses (3,023,038) (2,557,643) (2,644,446)  (404,941) (224,448 (60,454)  (28,875)

Total expenses (6,668,190) (5,505,753) (4,946,436) (488,744) (254,329) (673,693) (28,875)

Net result 2,714,836 789,530 (825,551) 1,465,635 568,407 459,671 (13,025)
Distribution to the Royal

Academy (1,912,281) - - (1,465,635) (568,407)  (446,646) .

No charge to taxation will arise as the companies have entered into deeds of covenant to donate their distributable profits
to the Royal Academy.

Balance Sheet:

Fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets 3,057 3,057 28,431 - - - -
Tangible fixed assets 18,990 18,930 21,727 - - - -
Total fixed assets 22,047 22,047 50,158 - - - -
Current assets

Stock 961,730 961,730 916,916 - - - -
Debtors 1,007,903 707,208 376,501 292,170 209,159 8,525 242,104
Cash and cash equivalents 217,588 164,388 18,721 - - 53,200 53,200
Total current assets 2,187,221 1,833,326 1,312,138 292,170 209,159 61,725 295,304

Current liabilities
Creditors - amounts falling

due within one year (2,245,181) (1,891,390) (2,187,843) (292,166) (209,155) (61,625) (308,229)
Net current assets /

(liabilities) {57,960) (58,064) (875,705) 4 4 100 (12,925)
Total assets less

total liabilities * (35,913) (36,017)  (825,547) 4 4 100 {12,925)
Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 108 4 4 4 4 100 100
Profit and loss reserves (36,021) (36,021)  (825,551) - - - (13,025)
Total equity (35,913)  (36,017) (825,547) 4 4 100 (12,925)

* Following the emergence from the Covid-19 pandemic, R.A. Enterprises Limited made a profit for the year of £789,530
reducing the net liabilities position to £36,017 at the balance sheet date. Since the year end, the company has continued to
trade profitability and has returned to a net assets position.
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Support costs
2022 Finance IT  Personnel Facilities Governance Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Exhibitions 1,068,297 600,917 199,136 1,802,965 260,352 3,931,667
Schools 224,904 126,509 41,923 379,571 54,811 827,718
Collections 182,735 102,789 34,063 308,402 44,534 672,523
Education 196,791 110,696 36,683 332,125 47,960 724,255
Publicity (note 10) 435,752 245,112 81,226 735,420 106,196 1,603,706
Fundraising (note 9) 337,357 189,764 62,885 569,357 82,216 1,241,579
2022 total 2,445,836 1,375,787 455,916 4,127,840 596,069 9,001,448

Personnel costs include legal, professional and consultancy costs of £4,050 (2021: £145,284) pertaining to the
restructuring which took place in 2021. Finance costs include interest payable and similar charges of £438,370

(2021: £483,703).

2021 Finance IT  Personnel Facilities Governance Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Exhibitions 1,033,603 578,248 277,797 1,613,185 227,899 3,730,732
Schools 208,514 117,212 56,310 326,997 46,196 756,229
Collections 195,546 109,398 52,556 305,197 43,116 705,813
Education 237,449 132,841 63,818 370,596 52,355 857,059
Publicity (note 10) 432,996 242,239 116,374 675,794 95,471 1,562,874
Fundraising (note 9) 377,125 210,982 101,358 588,594 83,152 1,361,211
2021 total 2,486,233 1,390,920 668,213 3,880,363 548,189 8,973,918
Fundraising 2022 2021
£ £
Direct fundraising costs 1,521,278 1,680,026
Support costs (note 8) 1,241,579 1,361,211
Total 2,762,857 3,041,237
Charitable activities
2022 Support Publicity
Direct costs costs costs (i) Total
£ £ £ £
Exhibitions 10,216,891 3,931,667 4,054,085 18,202,643
Schools 1,173,054 827,718 11,120 2,011,892
Collections 991,891 672,523 7,841 1,672,255
Education 878,144 724,255 84,851 1,687,250
Total 13,259,980 6,156,163 4,157,897 23,574,040
(note 8)
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10 Charitable activities (continued)

Direct Support Publicity

2 costs costs costs (i) Total

£ £ £ £
Exhibitions 8,475,416 3,730,732 3,719,587 15,925,735
Schools 1,202,129 756,229 25,020 1,983,378
Collections 1,123,376 705,813 13,167 1,842,356
Education 1,097,472 857,059 97,387 2,051,918
Total 11,898,393 6,049,833 3,855,161 21,803,387

Exhibitions expenditure includes the direct costs of mounting all loan exhibitions and the Summer Exhibition
and all associated costs, such as curatorial staff, art handling, security, press and box office.

Direct publicity costs
Support costs (note 8)

Total

1

-

Net income / (expenditure)

This is stated after charging:

Amortisation

Depreciation

Auditors' remuneration:

External auditors

Audit services - group undertakings
Audit services - defined benefit pension scheme
Other services

Interest payable and similar charges (see note 8)

External auditors other services relate to tax compliance and other advice.

The total lease expenditure incurred in the year was £170,623 (2021: £138,931).

12 Role of volunteers

. Publicity costs comprise direct publicity costs and an allocation of support costs analysed as follows:

2022 2021

£ £
2,554,191 2,292,287
1,603,706 1,562,874
4,157,897 3,855,161
2022 2021

£ £

218,730 417,980
3,422,745 3,482,493
58,925 51,305
8,100 8,650
14,635 11,729
438,370 483,703

Like all charities, the Royal Academy, uses a team of volunteers. In 2022 the Royal Academy engaged 13 (2021:
148) volunteers across both its Learning and Collections departments. This was much reduced from 2021 due

to minimised activity as a result of the restructure and Covid-19 pandemic.

In accordance with the SORP, due to the absence of any reliable measurement basis, the contribution of these

volunteers is not recognised in the financial statements.
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13 Officers' and Council members' remuneration

2022 2021
£ £

Officers' remuneration, excluding pension contributions, is as follows:
President 67,660 65,340
Keeper 50,000 50,000
Secretary and Chief Executive 191,244 183,689
Treasurer 40,000 40,000
Total 348,904 339,029

The Royal Academy of Arts
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022

14 Staff costs (continued)

The number of employees, including officers, whose remuneration exceeded £60,000, is shown below:

Remuneration for officers is set by the People and Remuneration Committee.
One officer (2021: one) received pension contributions totalling £19,124 {2021: £18,369).

Council members are only reimbursed for expenses incurred in the performance of their duties, except for
those individuals who are remunerated for their duties as officers. Two (2021: one) trustees received

reimbursed expenditure of:

2022 2021

£ £

Travel 1,055 249

Other 1,097 1,721

Total 2,152 1,970
Trustee indemnity insurance costs for the year totalled £14,246 (2021: £25,063).

14 Staff costs

2022 2021

£ £

Salaries and wages 10,775,933 11,165,470

Social security costs 1,030,156 1,116,478

Redundancy and termination payments 12,692 1,515,921

Pension contributions - defined contribution schemes 760,007 823,399

Pension service income - defined benefit scheme (140,000) (101,000)

Total 12,438,788 14,520,268

Staff costs include payroll for temporary as well as permanent staff.

As disclosed in note 6, grant income of £55,056 (2021: £2,546,202) was claimed in respect of the Coronavirus

Job Retention Scheme.

The organisation undertook a significant restructuring in 2021. The total cost of the restructuring was £2.2m. In
addition to the £1.5m redundancy and termination payments in 2021, a further £0.2m of redundancy costs
were incurred and recharged to the Friends of the Royal Academy. There were further holiday pay, social
security costs and pension contributions of £0.4m and legal, professional and consultancy costs of £0.1m (see
note 8). Due to the impact of this, salaries and wages and the number of full-time equivalent employees have
reduced significantly compared to last year.

The key management personnel of the Royal Academy, and Group, comprise the Senior Leadership Team,
trustees and officers. Total remuneration of key management personnel during the year was £1,267,891 (2021:
£1,186,063).
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Band: 2022 2021
No. No.
£60,000 to £69,999 5 6
£70,000 to £79,999 7 6
£80,000 to £89,999 2 4
£90,000 to £99,999 1 1
£110,000 to £119,999 - 2
£120,000 to £129,999 2 1
£130,000 to £139,999 1 -
£180,000 to £189,999 - 1
£190,000 to £199,999 I -

Pension contributions for the above employees were £156,176 (2021: £161,932).

The average number of permanent employees and full-time equivalent ("FTE") permanent employees,

including officers, during the year was:

Headcount FTE

2022 2021 2022 2021

No. No. No. No.

Charitable activities 119 120 97 101
Fundraising and publicity 55 58 52 56
Trading activities a4 44 38 38
Governance 4 4 4 4
Support 81 86 78 85
Total 303 312 269 284

The number of part-time staff employed by the Royal Academy varies throughout the year, depending on the

exhibition programme.

Taxation

The Royal Academy is entitled to a tax credit under the Museums and Galleries Tax Relief scheme from 1 April

2017.
2022 2021
£ £
Taxation credit
- For the current year 340,649 124,332
- Adjustment in respect of prior year 32,205 13,053
Total 372,854 137,385
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16 Heritage assets

The Royal Academy holds assets that fall under the definition of "Heritage Assets". These fall into three broad
collections: The Works of Art Collection, The Royal Academy Library and The Royal Academy Archive. Each of
these is considered in turn.

All items in these collections are available to view by appointment. Items are also from time to time included
in exhibitions at the Royal Academy, as well as being loaned out to other exhibitors.

The Works of Art Collection

The Works of Art Collection consists of works of art and other objects of historic, artistic or associational
significance owned by the Royal Academy, namely: paintings, sculpture (including medals, dies, cameos, and
intaglio gems); drawings; artists' sketchbooks; individually issued prints; photographs; plaster casts (including
pastes of gems); historic skeletons relating to teaching in the Royal Academy Schools; objects of memorabilia,
including artists' tools and materials; historic silver and silver-plate; historic items of furniture; picture frames;
and certain fittings and fixtures within Burlington House. The Royal Academy holds around 990 paintings in its
permanent collection and over 25,000 prints and drawings.

The majority of works and objects in the collections date from the foundation of the Royal Academy in 1768 to
the present day. Exceptions include the Taddei Tondo, the only marble by Michelangelo in the UK; early copies
after the Old Masters, such as those by Giampietrino, Rosso Florentino and Sir James Thornhill; as well as
some prints and drawings.

The core of The Works of Art Collection is the Diploma Works. These are given by Academicians on election to
the institution and are predominantly by British artists and architects. Other works of art were purchased,
bequeathed or given to the Royal Academy and range from drawings to plaster casts and from photographs to
paintings. There is also a collection of silver given to the Royal Academy by Academicians, which is of historical
importance to the Royal Academy.

The Royal Academy Library (Special Books Collection)

The Library comprises the Historic Books Collection dating from the 16" century to approximately 1920, and
the Special lllustrated Books Collection.

The Royal Academy Archive

The Archive holds papers and documents and copies of electronic correspondence relating to the institution's
history as well as artists' letters and archives. The Archive also includes photographic prints, transparencies,
glass slides and negatives, films and videotapes which relate to the history and activities of the institution.
More information about the Royal Academy's collection is available at www.racollection.org.uk.

Capitalisation of the collections

In the opinion of the trustees, reliable information on cost or value is not available for the Royal Academy
permanent collection. This is owing to the lack of reliable information on purchase cost; the lack of
comparable market values; the diverse nature of the objects; and the volume of items held.

The collections have a significant intrinsic value relating to the way they provide a unique insight into the
history of art and the study of art over the past 250 years. The manner in which items are given by
Academicians makes valuation of these items difficult as there is no original cost to the item. In addition there
is an intrinsic value to the collections as an embodiment of the history of the Royal Academy as an institution,
which would also be far too subjective and unique to place any reliable value upon. For this reason, the
permanent collection, large proportions of which were gifted to the Royal Academy at nil cost, are
incomparable in nature and are not recognised as assets in the Royal Academy's balance sheet.
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16 Heritage assets (continued)

Acquisitions and disposals

Diploma Works are proposed by newly elected members in discussion with the Director of Collections and
Learning, and accessioned into the collection following approval by Council. The approval of non-diploma
works (by purchase, bequest or donation) is by the Director of Collections and Learning, in consultation with
the relevant curator. If the acquisition is more than £5,000 in value, a case for accessioning must be made by
the Director of Collections and Learning to Council. All acquisitions are reported annually to Council by the
Director of Collections and Learning. The list is subsequently submitted to Council as part of an annual report
and the Director of Collections and Learning attends Council to discuss any matters arising from the report.

Disposals will only take place in accordance with the Acquisitions and Disposals Policy. No disposals were made
in the year. Objects will only be deaccessioned by way of exchange (in the case of Diploma Works) or if there is
irreparable damage to or total loss of an object. Due to the accreditation by the Arts Council, and the Royal
Academy’s internal procedures and policies (described under “Collections management”, below), disposals can
only be for “financially motivated” reasons in exceptional circumstances. Any such disposal must be as part of a
wider review of the Collection, and then proceeds must be used only for the benefit of the Collection.

In the financial year, Diploma Works were presented by Amanda Levete RA and Jane and Louise Wilson RA.

Gifts made to the Royal Academy in the current financial year include a painting by Peter Greenham valued at
£4,000 and a box set of 64 woodcut prints by Christopher Le Brun PPRA valued at £32,000 in total. No gifts in
this financial year included any individual works over the value of £10,000. Valuations are made at fair value,
either provided by the artist or their gallery or based on an assessment made by the curator taking into
consideration current market values.

The Collections Development Policy covering acquisitions and disposals is available for review on the Royal
Academy's website www.royalacademy.org.uk/page/collections-and-research.

Preservation

The Royal Academy is committed to the preservation of its Collections. It aims to ensure the longest possible
life of the Collections. This includes security, financial, environmental, storage and staffing that all help to
preserve the collections for posterity.

Works of art are ordinarily stored and displayed in conditioned spaces. Some sculpture is stored in spaces
without environmental controls; however, these have proven to be naturally stable environments. The Royal
Academy complies as closely as it is able with BS 5454:2000 "Recommendations for the Storage and Exhibition
of Archival Documents 7.3" for the storage of its archives. Some items are held off-site in specialist

For the works of art, most conservators employed by the Royal Academy are on the ICON Conservation
Register. For other areas of the collections, a variety of conservation experts are consulted.

Collections management

The Works of Art Collection, Special Books Collection and Archive are catalogued in a series of discrete but
interconnected databases, each fully conforming to their relevant professional standards, i.e. Spectrum for
museum objects; AACR2 and MARC21 for books; and ISAD(G) for archives. The three databases are linked to a
series of shared authority files and thesauri against which terms such as personal names, corporate names,
materials and techniques, and production roles must be validated. This ensures consistency in data entry and in
data searches.

The Collection, Library and Archive are designated as collections of national importance as awarded by the Arts
Council in 2011. In order to meet the stringent requirements for this award, an extensive list of procedures and
policies for the management of the collection, informed by nationally and internationally recognised standards,
were approved by Council. These documents can be consulted in the Collections' Office.
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Heritage assets (continued)

Analysis of heritage assets (Group and Royal Academy)

Works of art
2022 2021 2020 2018 2017
£ £ £ £ £
Carrying amount at 1 September 1,392,110 1,392,110 1,142,110 679,000 391,000
Purchases - - - 14,360 -
Gifts - - 250,000 448,750 288,000
Carrying amount at 31 August 1,392,110 1,392,110 1,392,110 1,142,110 679,000

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets include the Royal Academy's website and intranet costs, core system software and R.A.

Enterprises Limited's Epos, e-commerce and stock management software.

Group

Cost
At 31 August 2021 and 31 August 2022

Amortisation
At 31 August 2021
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2022

Net book value
At 31 August 2022

At 31 August 2021

Royal Academy

Cost
At 31 August 2021 and 31 August 2022

Amortisation
At 31 August 2021
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2022

Net book value
At 31 August 2022

At 31 August 2021

Software
£

2,572,223

2,259,786

218,730

2,478,516

93,707

312,437

Software
£

1,948,495

1,664,489

193,356

1,857,845

90,650

284,006
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18 Tangible fixed assets

a. Group

Cost

At 31 August 2021

Additions

Reclassifications

Transfers to 6 Burlington Gardens
Disposals

At 31 August 2022

Depreciation

At 31 August 2021
Disposals

Charge for the year

At 31 August 2022

Net book value
At 31 August 2022

At 31 August 2021

b. Royal Academy

Cost

At 31 August 2021

Additions

Reclassifications

Transfers to 6 Burlington Gardens
Disposals

At 31 August 2022

Depreciation

At 31 August 2021
Disposals

Charge for the year

At 31 August 2022

Net book value
At 31 August 2022

At 31 August 2021

Assets in Fixtures,
Building course of Motor fittings and
improvements construction vehicles equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £
23,669,638 3,806,540 58,629 24,081,195 51,616,002
479,134 3,154,234 - 178,041 3,811,409
503,680 (503,680) b - »
- (1,446,547) - - (1,446,547)
- - (258,439) (258,439)
24,652,452 5,010,546 58,629 24,000,797 53,722,425
8,259,656 - 58,629 13,543,829 21,862,114
- - - (258,439)  (258,439)
1,290,849 - - 2,131,896 3,422,745
9,550,505 - 58,629 15,417,286 25,026,420
15,101,947 5,010,546 - 8,583,511 28,696,005
15,409,982 3,806,540 - 10,537,366 29,753,888
Assets in Fixtures,
Building course of Motor fittings and
improvements construction vehicles equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £
23,407,236 3,794,411 36,944 23,651,563 50,890,154
479,134 3,154,234 - 178,041 3,811,409
503,680 (503,680) - - -
- (1,446,547) - - (1,446,547)
- - - (258,439) (258,439)
24,390,050 4,998,418 36,944 23,571,165 52,996,577
7,997,254 - 36,944 13,123,792 21,157,990
» - - (258,439) (258,439)
1,290,849 - - 2,129,159 3,420,008
9,288,103 - 36,944 14,994,512 24,319,559
15,101,947 4,998,418 - 8,576,653 28,677,018
15,409,982 3,794,411 - 10,527,771 29,732,164
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<. 6 Burlington Gardens (Freehold property)

6 Burlington
Group and Royal Academy Gardens
£
Cost
At 31 August 2021 65,201,863
Capital Goods Scheme adjustments (1,508)
Transfers from assets in course of construction 1,446,547
At 31 August 2022 66,646,902

In the opinion of the trustees, based on a valuation as at 31 August 2021 by an independent third party, the
open market value of the Royal Academy's interest in & Burlington Gardens exceeds the book value by
approximately £8.9m. The Royal Academy would have no liability to taxation if the asset was sold at open
market value on the basis that the proceeds were used to further the company's charitable activities.

. 7 Pembroke Studios (Investment property)

In 2020, the RA received a donation of £2.2m for the purchase of 7 Pembroke Studios for £1.65m, with the
balance to be used for other costs of purchase and the ongoing repairs and maintenance of the property. As
part of the gift there is a requirement that the artist who has been using the studio since 2012 is able to have
exclusive, rent free use of the studio for as long as she is able to continue to actively use it as an artist up to a
maximum of 25 years. At the end of this period the Royal Academy has the right to use or dispose of the
studios and use the proceeds for its general charitable purposes. The completion of the purchase of the studio
took place in September 2020 for £1.65m plus legal and professional costs. A significant refurbishment was
completed in 2021, such that the total cost as at 31 August 2021 was £1.9m.

Group and Royal Academy 7 Pembroke
Studios
£
Fair value
At 31 August 2021 1,155,000
Additions (at cost) 8,173
Diminution in value due to restriction in use (8,173)
At 31 August 2022 1,155,000

As the use of the property by this artist is not for the Royal Academy's charitable purposes and the property is
primarily held for its capital appreciation, it is being accounted for as an investment property. The Charities
SORP requires that investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value at the
reporting date.

Based on a valuation as at 31 August 2022 by an independent third party, the current open market value (with
vacant possession) of the property is £1.65m. However, due to the requirement for the artist to be able to use
the property rent free for up to 25 years from September 2020, the valuation on this basis is much lower at
£1.155m. In accordance with the Charities SORP, this lower valuation is deemed to be the fair value for
accounting purposes and the diminution in value due to this restriction in use has been recognised as “other
expenditure” in the SOFA.
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19 Other investments Group Royal Academy
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Investments at market value 1,742,057 1,870,089 1,742,057 1,870,089
Investments in subsidiaries at cost - B 108 108
Total 1,742,057 1,870,089 1,742,165 1,870,197

The Royal Academy beneficially owns all of the called up share capital of RA (Arts) Limited (02836364), R.A.
Enterprises Limited (01666333) and Burlington House Limited (02216104), each of which is registered in
England and Wales. See note 7 for the financial results of these entities during the year.

Movement in market value of investments: 2022 2021

£ £
Market value of investments at 1 September 1,870,089 806,305
Additions - 925,000
Unrealised (losses) / gains (128,032) 138,784
Market value of investments at 31 August 1,742,057 1,870,089
Market value of investments by type: 2022 2021

£ £
Fixed income 155,558 112,932
Equities 1,104,729 892,992
Property 111,464 45,240
Alternative investments 278,819 110,151
Liquid assets 91,487 708,774
Total market value of investments (Historic cost of investments £1,700,000 (2021: 1,742,057 1,870,089

£1,700,000))

Investments are held under management with Sarasin & Partners LLP and are invested in the Sarasin Climate
Active Endowments Fund. The fund seeks to provide growth (through increases in investment value and
income) of 4% per year more than the Consumer Price Index over a rolling five year period. It has a global multi-
asset portfolio with an integrated socially responsible investment policy that also favours investments that
may benefit from a move to a lower carbon economy.

The fund will not invest in tobacco and will also avoid investment in companies that have more than 10% of
their turnover in armaments, gambling and pornography. The fund has additional restrictions including no
investment in companies with 5% or more of their turnover involved in the mining of thermal coal or tar sands;
following engagement, no investment in companies that needlessly emit significant quantities of carbon into
the atmosphere, or which do not take seriously the transition to a low carbon economy; and qualitative
judgments to be considered on a regular basis by the fund’s Climate Active Advisory Panel.
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Debtors

Group Royal Academy

2022 2021 2022 2021

£ £ £ £
Trade debtors 1,343,757 434,597 729,049 259,712
Royal Academy related entities - - 1,363,239 1,812,132
Royal Academy Trust 69 407,388 39,195 435,941
Taxation 497,186 582,734 497,186 582,734
Staff loans 6,977 6,718 6,977 6,718
Sundry debtors 1,245,389 532,924 1,040,184 328,927
Prepayments and accrued income 1,214,697 901,373 1,016,292 764,413
Total 4,308,075 2,865,734 4,692,122 4,190,577
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year

Group Royal Academy

2022 2021 2022 2021

£ £ £ 3
Bank loan 219,600 219,600 219,600 219,600
Revolving credit facilities - 3,700,000 - 3,700,000
Trade creditors 729,631 1,040,343 498,809 863,549
Royal Academy related entities - - 4,009 308,984
The Friends of the Royal Academy 246,433 81,635 246,433 81,635
Taxation and social security 577,231 403,667 425,051 275,215
Sundry creditors 276,446 120,309 276,597 118,721
Accruals 1,605,446 1,477,519 1,395,351 1,351,383
Deferred income (i) 1,417,270 2,108,546 1,156,684 1,673,776
Total 5,072,057 9,151,619 4,222,534 8,592,863

A Masterplan Revolving Credit Facility of £5.0m was taken out in May 2017 to manage working capital
requirements in relation to the Burlington Project. The £5.0m facility runs to June 2023, thereafter reducing
to a £3.5m commitment to 31 August 2025. The facility can be drawn down in advances with a minimum
value of £0.5m. Each advance is repayable after one month; at the end of the one month period the advance
can either be rolled over for another one month period or repaid. As at 31 August 2022 this facility was not
drawn down (2021: £3.7m).

An Operating Revolving Credit Facility of £2.5m was taken out in March 2018 to manage operating working
capital requirements. The £2.5m facility runs to March 2023, thereafter reducing to a £1.5m commitment to
31 August 2025. This facility can be drawn down in advances with a minimum value of £0.15m. Similarly, each
advance is repayable after one month; at the end of the one month period the advance can either be rolled
over for another one month period or repaid. As at 31 August 2022, this facility was not drawn down (2021:
£nil).
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21 Creditors - amounts falling due within one year (continued)

2

~N

Deferred income in 2022 includes ticket sales and sponsorship income for exhibitions in the next financial year,
including William Kentridge , Making Modernism and Herzog & de Meuron and is analysed as follows:

Brought Amount Amount Carried
forward added released forward
£ £ £ £
Deferred income 2022 2,108,546 1,317,270 (2,008,546) 1,417,270
Deferred income 2021 2,071,354 2,108,546 (2,071,354) 2,108,546
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Royal Academy
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Bank loan 382,723 602,323 382,723 602,323
Unsecured loan 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Total 10,382,723 10,602,323 10,382,723 10,602,323
Creditors include amounts not wholly repayable within 5 years as follows:
Unsecured loan 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000

The bank loan was taken out in 2009 and is repayable in instalments by 2025. Interest of £12,990 (2021:
£12,749) was charged in the year.

In December 2014, the Royal Academy entered into an unsecured £10.0m loan facility agreement. This amount
was advanced in December 2014 and is repayable in ten instalments of £1.0m each from 2035 until 2044, and
has a fixed rate of interest of 4.21% p.a.. This facility was used to fund exceptional operating costs during the
Burlington Project construction phase and the plant upgrade/renewal programme for conditioning the
Burlington House galleries. Interest of £421,000 (2021: £421,000) was charged in the year. The Royal Academy
remnains compliant with its various loan covenants.
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Endowment Restricted Designated Unrestricted
funds Burlington Other funds General  Pension
Project funds funds reserve Total
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
a. Group
Investments 792,110 - 367,736 582,211 - - 1,742,057
Heritage assets - - 1,392,110 - - - 1,392,110
Intangible assets - - - - 93,707 - 93,707
Tangible assets - 4,669,747 1,155,000 - 90,673,160 - 96,497,907
Current assets - 10,748,925 1,120,617 60,303 10,858,448 - 22,788,293
Current liabilities - {126,633) - - (4,945,424) - (5,072,057)
Long term liabilities - - - - (10,382,723) - (10,382,723)
Pension asset - - - - - 6,444,000 6,444,000
Total 792,110 15,292,039 4,035,463 642,514 86,297,168 6,444,000 113,503,294
b. Royal Academy
Investments 792,110 - 367,736 582,211 108 - 1,742,165
Heritage assets - - 1,392,110 - - - 1,392,110
Intangible assets - - - - 90,650 - 90,650
Tangible assets - 4,669,747 1,155,000 - 90,654,174 - 96,478,921
Current assets - 10,748,925 1,120,617 60,303 10,066,881 - 21,996,726
Current liabilities - (126,633) - - (4,095,901) - (4,222,534)
Long term liabilities - - - - (10,382,723) - (10,382,723)
Pension asset - - - - - 6,444,000 6,444,000
Total 792,110 15,292,039 4,035,463 642,514 86,333,189 6,444,000 113,539,315
24 Analysis of endowment funds
Group and Royal Academy Investment Unapplied
losses less total
fund return
Opening managers allocated Closing
funds fees toincome funds
£ £ £ £
Dunard Scholarship: a.
- Trust for investment 625,000 - - 625,000
- Unapplied total return 91,515 (51,099) (26,617) 13,799
Exhibitions fund: b.
- Trust for investment 150,000 - - 150,000
- Unapplied total return 21,964 (12,264) (6,388) 3,312
Total 888,478 (63,363) (33,005) 792,110

a. Dunard Scholarship: the fund was established in 2020 by a donation of £625,000 from the Dunard Fund. It is held
as a permanent endowment and is being accounted for on a total return basis. The purpose of the fund is to
endow a student scholarship at the Royal Academy Schools in perpetuity.

b. Exhibitions fund: the fund was established in 2019 by a donation of £150,000 from the Thompson Family

Charitable Trust, and reclassified as permanent endowment in 2020, and is being accounted for on a total return
basis. The purpose of the fund is to support ongoing exhibition costs from investment returns.
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Analysis of restricted funds
Group and Royal Academy Unapplied
Income and total return
Opening fund growth from Fair value Closing
funds inyear Expenditure endowments losses Transfers funds
£ £ £ £ £
Other funds a. 585,307 2,167,059  (2,231,236) - - {175,881) 345,249
Bloomberg fund b. - 980,000 (172,279) - - - 807,721
7 Pembroke Studios  c. 1,457,504 (21,880} (7,093) - (8,173) - 1,420,358
Heritage assets 16 1,392,110 - - - - - 1,392,110
Dunard Scholarship  24.a 29,855 - - 26,617 - - 56,472
Exhibitions fund 24b 7,165 - - 6,388 = - 13,553
Burlington Project d. 11,765,819 5,141,811 (169,044) - - (1,446,547) 15,292,039
Total 15,237,760 8,266,990 (2,579,652) 33,005 (8,173) (1,622,428) 19,327,502

Other funds include donations of £415,889 (2021: £969,498) received from the Royal Academy Trust, other donations of
£1,734,244 (2021: £1,203,779) and grants of £996,926 (2021: £182,083) received for specific and general activities as disclosed
in notes 5 and 6 respectively. The closing balance relates to the following restricted funds:

The Royal Academy architecture awards £98,459 (2021: £229,142): established in 2018 from a donation of £60,000; a further
donation of £255,000 was received in 2019. The awards take place annually for five years and the monies are being used
towards the management and running costs of the Royal Academy architecture awards, including architecture awards week
where the winner of the Royal Academy Architecture Prize and the finalists for the Royal Academy Dorfman Award come to
London from around the world to partake in a week of events and activities and receive their prizes. £10,000 of the money is
given to the winner of the Royal Academy Dorfman Award each year.

Young Artists' Summer Show £42,452 (2021: £36,020): established in 2018 from a donation of 567,620 (£51,516), with further
donations of £90,187 in 2019, £97,390 in 2020 and £112,600 in 2022. Inspired by the Summer Exhibition, the Young Artists’
Summer Show brings together work by primary and secondary-level students from across the UK and beyond in an annual
exhibition.

Artist in residence exchange progr £18,352 (2021: £18,352): established in 2018 with a donation of £80,000; a further
£27,494 was received in 2019. The funds are being used towards the costs of an artist exchange programme between students
of the Royal Academy Schools and the K11 Art Foundation ("KAF") in China.

Swanston bequest £24,564 (2021: £24,564): established in 2014 from a legacy of £60,000. The bequest is being used for curating
and publishing costs associated with the Taddei Tondo.

Cataloguing project £5,084 (2021: £5,084): established through donations from trusts, foundations and private individuals. The
purpose of the project is to catalogue the Royal Academy's collection, including conservation and the creation of a collections
website, and the creation and publication of a volume on the history of the Royal Academy and its collection, which was
published in 2018.

Architecture professorship £27,611 (2021: £69,200): established in 2019 from two donations totalling £150,000. The donations
will be spent on funding the position of the Professor of Architectural History for four years from 1 September 2019 to 31 August
2023.

Collections conservation project £nil (2021: £27,051): established in 2019 from donations totalling £31,551, with a further
donation of £12,500 in 2020. The funds were used for the conservation, digitisation and publication of elements of the Royal
Academy archives.

Rothschild Digital Learning Fund £nil (2021: £20,323): established in 2021 from a grant of £67,500, with a further £7,500
received in 2022 upon completion of the final grant report. The grant was used to support and develop the Royal Academy's
digital learning activities and resources.

Clore Cultural Learning Fund £49,094 (2021: £84,737): established in 2021 as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic with a grant of
£100,000, the fund supports the delivery of learning and community activities, especially those delivered onsite at the Royal
Academy.
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25 Analysis of restricted funds (continued)

[e]

Dunard Schools Fund £79,633 (2021: £70,834): established in 2020 from a donation of £333,333, with a total
of £1,000,000 pledged over three years. A futher donation of £333,333 was received in 2022. The fund provides
£50,000 per annum towards Royal Academy Schools bursaries and £283,333 towards Royal Academy Schools
tutors' salaries.

. Bloomberg Digital Accelerator Fund £807,721 (2021: £nil): established in 2021 from grant income of £980,000

from the Bloomberg Philanthropies’ Digital Accelerator Fund. This will fund updating the user experience and
infrastructure of the main Royal Academy website; delivering a digital studio for online events; and researching
the Royal Academy’s requirements for digital asset management. The project is due to complete in 2023,

. 7 Pembroke Studios: the fund was established in 2020 from a donation of £2,159,884 ($2,790,720), of which

£1,650,000 was used to purchase Pembroke Studios in September 2020, an artist's studio in London, with the
balance of the fund to be used for the legal and professional fees associated with the purchase and repairs and
maintenance of the property for a period of up to 25 years. It was the donor’s wish that an artist, who has been
using the studios since 2012, should be able to continue to have exclusive, rent free use of the studios for as
long as she is actively and regularly using the studios for up to a maximum of 25 years. At the end of the said
period, the Royal Academy will have full and free use of the studios and have the right to sell the studios and
apply the proceeds of the sale towards its general charitable purposes.

. Burlington Project - Phase | was completed in 2018, with all Burlington Project - Phase | restricted and

designated funds being transferred to unrestricted funds as specific identifiable assets were brought into
service and as such, the restrictions on these funds have been satisfied. The remaining restricted funds are in
respect of Phases Il and |1l and other projects, which form part of the overall Burlington Project (see note 30).

26 Analysis of designated funds

Group and Royal Academy Opening Investment Closing
funds Income Expenditure Transfers losses funds

£ £ £ £ £ £

Total designated 672,362 517,927 (504,986) - (42,789) 642,514

Council have designated the funds detailed below out of unrestricted funds:

Schools architect fund £77,248 (2021: £82,725): the fund was established in 2018 from a legacy of £88,039.
The funds are held on investment with Sarasin & Partners LLP, with the investment returns being used to fund
an annual event as part of the RA Architecture Programme in Sir Richard MacCormac's name.

Schools annual travel prize £14,000 (2021: £16,000): a legacy of £20,000 was received in 2018 and designated
as an annual travel prize of £2,000 for students of the Royal Academy Schools. The first prize was awarded in
2018, with further awards in 2019 and 2022. It is anticipated this will be spent over a period of 10 years.

Student support fund £nil (2021: £26,828): due to the impact of Covid-19, donations totalling £55,636 received
in 2020 were designated towards a support fund for students of the Royal Academy Schools.

Future Academy £551,266 (2021: £546,809): unrestricted donations and legacies received in 2019, 2020 and
2022 have been designated by Council for expenditure on the Royal Academy Schools (£33,828), the Collection
(£14,016), education (£500) and the Presidents' Fund (£502,921), which is held to support the Royal Academy
in periods when there is unexpected volatility in income or expenditure.
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27 Administered funds

The Royal Academy has six funds which have not been consolidated within the financial statements of the
Royal Academy, on the basis that while the Royal Academy is administering the funds, it is not the ultimate
beneficiary. However, as the funds are administered by the Royal Academy, these have been disclosed
separately below for information.

These funds consist of the following:

Frampton Fund

Agnes Ethel MacKay Fund
Jack Goldhill Sculpture Fund
Charles Wollaston Award Fund
Pitchforth Scholarship Fund
Sir John Reeves Ellerman Fund

2022 2021
£ £

Income from investments 274 88,407
Expenditure (166,326) (130,109)
Net (losses) / gains on investments (484,154) 831,397
Net (loss) / income (650,206) 789,695
Total funds brought forward 4,972,243 4,182,548
Total funds carried forward 4,322,037 4,972,243
Represented by:
Investments 4,014,322 4,554,914
Cash at bank 153,412 132,874
Debtors 180,187 307,649
Creditors (25,884) (23,194)
Total funds 4,322,037 4,972,243
Reconciliation of net income to net cash inflow from operating activities

2022 2021

£ E

Net income 10,071,576 6,057,422
Amortisation of intangible assets 218,730 417,980
Depreciation of tangible assets 3,422,745 3,482,493
Diminution in value of investment property 8,173 720,521
Current pension service income (140,000) (101,000)
(Increase) / decrease in stock (44,814) 161,899
(Increase) / decrease in debtors (1,337,848) 1,001,181
Decrease in creditors (379,562) (1,436,556)
Interest paid 438,370 483,703
Interest received (5,618) (8)
Net losses / (gains) on fixed asset investments 128,032 (138,784)
Net cash provided by operating activities 12,379,784 10,648,851
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29 Pension costs 29 Pension costs (continued)

The Royal Academy, together with its subsidiary undertakings, participates in a funded defined benefit pension The assets in the Scheme were: 2022 2021
scheme, operated by the Royal Academy of Arts Pension Scheme ("the Scheme"), providing benefit based on £ £
final pensionable salary. The assets of the Scheme are held independently from those of the Royal Academy.
Equities or equivalent 10,779,000 14,373,000
The Scheme provides pensions in retirement and death benefits to members. Pension benefits are linked to the Corporate bonds 18,970,000 25,183,000
members' final salary at retirement and their length of service up to the date on which the Scheme closed to Cash 479,000 844,000
future accrual, being 30 September 2016. LDI funds 7,801,000 13,356,000
The Scheme is a registered scheme under UK legislation and was not contracted out of the State Sector Pension Fair value of Scheme assets 38,029,000 53,756,000
prior to the cessation of contracting out from 6 April 2016. Present value of funded obligations (31,585,000)  (45,068,000)
i 6,444,000 8,734,000
The Scheme is subject to the scheme funding requirements outlined in UK legislation. Surplus in funded Scheme
in bal heet 6,444,000 8,734,000
The Scheme was established from 3 January 1985 under trust and is governed by the Scheme's definitive trust Net asset in balance shee
:e:d and‘ rulle:‘dated 3-1 M;rc‘hIIQQS, The;rus::essa;e res!:uofnﬁ:‘Ie for t;h.e cpe‘ratlo:l a:ndt the governance of the Raconcifistion of opaning and dlosing balances of the present valiis 2022 2021
cheme, including making decisions regarding the Scheme's funding and investment strategy. of the defined benefit obligation: £ £
A full actuarial valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at 31 August 2019 and has been updated to 31 Benefit obligation at beginning of year 45,022,000 45,068,000
August 2022 by a qualified independent actuary. The next full actuarial valuation of the Scheme will be as at 31 Interest cost 712,000 665,000
August 2022, Actuarial (gains) / losses (13,146,000) 827,000
Benefits paid (1,003,000) (1,538,000)
The value of the liabilities at the reporting date have been estimated by updating the results of the actuarial
valuation as at 31 August 2019 to allow for the passage of time, actual inflation experience, benefits paid out of Benefit obligation at end of year 31,585,000 45,022,000
the Scheme and changes in actuarial assumptions over the period from 31 August 2019 to 31 August 2022.
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of 2022 2021
Since June 2006 the Scheme has been closed to new members and closed to future accrual on 30 September Scheme assets: £ £
2016.
Fair value of Scheme assets at beginning of year 53,756,000 51,780,000
The major assumptions used by the actuary were (in nominal terms) as follows: 2022 2021 Interest income on Scheme assets 852,000 766,000
Return on assets, excluding interest income (15,576,000) 2,748,000
Discount rate 4.2% 1.6% Benefits paid (1,003,000) (1,538,000)
Inflation assumption (RPI) 3.5% 3.3%
Inflation assumption (CP1) 2.7% 2.4% Fair value of Scheme assets at end of year 38,029,000 53,756,000
Rate of increase in salaries 3.5% 3.3%
Pension increases for service accrued: The amounts recognised in the SOFA: 2022 2021
Pre 6 April 1997 2.5% 2.4% £ £
6 April 1997 to 30 September 2006 3.3% 3.2%
Post 30 September 2006 2.2% 2.1% Net interest on the defined benefit pension scheme asset (140,000) {101,000)
Assumed life expectancies on retirement at age 60 are: Total income (140,000) (101,000)
Retiring in 2022 - Males 26.3 26.7
Ret!ring !n 2022 - Females 8 492 Remeasurement of the defined benefit pension scheme asset: 2022 2021
Retiring in 2042 - Males 27.8 28.2 £ £
Retiring in 2042 - Females 30.4 30.8
. . L A . Actuarial (gains) / losses on the liabilities (13,146,000) 827,000
The assumptions used in determining the overall expected return of the Scheme's assets have been set with Return on assets, excluding interest income 15,576,000 (2,748,000)
reference to yields available on government bonds and appropriate risk margins.
Total remeasurement of the defined benefit pension scheme asset 2,430,000 (1,921,000)
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30 Authorised and contracted capital expenditure 31 Contingent liabilities
vy he Royal Acad d its subsidiaries had tingent liabilities as at 31 August 2022 (2021: none)
Costs Assetsin  Authorised The Royal Academy and its subsidiaries had no contingent liabilities as ugu : ;
Total project expensed to Assets in course of but not 32 i ial iitinenits
cost the SOFA service construction contracted for fnancial commitmen
£ £ £ £ £
a. Group
FNE: ojece S0 e . i 340,755 X At 31 A t total commitments under operating leases were as follows:
Burlington Project - Phase Il 17,800,000 169,044  1,446547 4,138,940 12,045,469 HBMS PefgiE 5
- S . < 486, 4,513,797
koo fmell - 5000 e 4 Land and 022 Landand 2021
’ buildings Other Total buildings Other Total
. : 44,604 705,396
Facade 750,000 p £ £ p " €
Total 23,890,799 169,044 1,446,547 5,010,546 17,264,662
o Under one year 223,636 455,002 678,638 38,012 432,618 470,630
i 949,988
b. Royal Academy Two tc:n five years 790,189 496,082 1,286,271 114,036 835,952 9
Costs Assets in Authorised Over five years 1,856,595 - 1,856,595 - - -
Total project expensed to Assets in course of but not
cost  the SOFA SR - Total 2,870,420 951,084 3,821,504 152,048 1,268,570 1,420,618
£ £ £ £ £
b. Royal Academy
Other projects 328,672 - - 328,672 - . ) " ]
Burlington Project - Phase Il 17,800,000 169,044 1,446,547 4,138,940 12,045,469 At 31 August total commitments under operating leases were as follows:
Burlington Project - Phase IlI 5,000,000 - - 486,203 4,513,797 dand 5031
Other Burlington Projects: Land .and 2022 Lar_lt _an it -~
Facade 750,000 ) _ 44,604 705,396 buildings Other Total buildings ther ota
£ £ £ £ £ £
Total 23,878,672 169,044 1,446,547 4,998,419 17,264,662
Under one year 223,636 413,896 637,532 38,012 398,568 436,580
Burlington Project - Phase Il is the redevelopment of the Royal Academy Schools. The work has been split into Two tc:'o five years 790,189 494,467 1,284,656 114,036 814,687 928,723
Over five years 1,856,595 - 1,856,595 - - -

two phases. A smaller first phase created new workshop spaces in 6 Burlington Gardens. These were
completed to budget in early 2022. A more significant second phase will refurbish the Royal Academy Schools

main footprint in Burlington House starting in late 2022 and due to complete in early 2024. Knight Harwood Total 280420 ol I L 10324 A0k 302
were the main contractors for the 6 Burlington Gardens works and a contract appointing them for the second
phase was signed in December 2022. General inflation has pushed up costs and there are procurement issues
with certain materials such that an increased total budget of £22.0m was approved by Council in November
2022, £4.2m higher than the previous £17.8m budget approved in April 2021.

33 Financial instruments

The financial statements include the following financial instruments at 31 August:

Burlington Project - Phase Ill is the redevelopment of the Collection Gallery. This is currently at an early design zog;wp 2021 Ro;;;:cademv 2021
stage with the intention that the construction phase commences no later than July 2025. Total costs are £ £ £ £
estimated at £5.0m and this has been fully fundraised, with the funds held by the Royal Academy Trust until

required by the Royal Academy. £0.5m was donated by the Royal Academy Trust in 2018, with a further £0.5m Financial assets measured at amortised cost 2,492,581 1,261,541 3,075,033 2,723,344
in 2019 in respect of costs incurred to date with the balance being held in cash at bank. The remaining £4.0m

is being held and invested by the Royal Academy Trust until required by the Royal Academy. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 13,460,279 17,241,729 13,023,522 17,246,195
The fagade project is in respect of the restoration and the cleaning of the Burlington House fagade. This project Financial assets measured at fair value 1,742,057 1,870,089 1,742,057 1,870,089

is at a preliminary design stage but a £0.7m budget was approved by Council in April 2021. This has been fully
fundraised for and is included in cash at bank less project costs incurred to date.
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34 Related party transactions

Those in positions of authority within the Group, including trustees, Council members and directors, use
facilities of the Group on the same terms as other Royal Academicians, Friends, Patrons or external customers.
This includes access to exhibitions, purchases from shops, Summer Exhibition, and auctions, and also the use
of catering facilities. For the year ended 31 August 2022, all transactions with related parties are considered
within the scope of normal transactions.

Income of £nil (2021: £nil) was received from R.A. Enterprises Limited, as 100% of their net income for the year
was offset by prior year losses. In addition, R.A. Enterprises Limited was recharged salaries of £1,576,604
(2021: £1,928,041) and other expenses of £482,014 (2021: £85,610), including a share of central support costs
and a licence fee for the use of the RA name, data and rights. At the year end, £1,324,616 (2021: £1,808,884)
was owed and included within the Royal Academy's debtors.

Income of £446,646 (2021: £nil) was received from Burlington House Limited, being a distribution of 100% of
their net income for the year, offset by prior year losses. In addition, Burlington House Limited was recharged
expenses of £142,238 (2021: £nil). At the year end, £38,623 (2021: £227,697 creditor) was owed and included
within the Royal Academy's debtors.

Income of £1,465,636 (2021: £568,407) was received from RA (Arts) Limited, being a distribution of 100% of
their net income for the year. In addition, RA (Arts) Limited was recharged salaries of £103,649 (2021: £65,878)
and other expenses of £88,903 (2021: £128,263 recharged to RA), including a share of central support costs
and a licence fee for the use of the RA name, data and rights. At the year end, £4,009 (2021: £81,287) was
outstanding and included within the Royal Academy's creditors.

Income of £11,157,287 (2021: £11,144,509) was received from The Friends of the Royal Academy, of which
£57,967 (2021: £696,014) relates to unrestricted legacy income received by The Friends of the Royal Academy
and donated to the Coronavirus Emergency Support Fund, with the balance of £11,099,320 (2021:
£10,448,495) being 100% of their net income for the year. In addition, The Friends of the Royal Academy
reimbursed salary and other expenses recharged of £554,750 (2021: £802,240). At the year end, £246,433
(2021: £81,635) was outstanding and included within creditors.

In order to optimise cash management efficiency, the sterling current accounts of the Royal Academy, its
subsidiary undertakings and The Friends of the Royal Academy are pooled, such that overnight all cleared debit
and credit balances on the current accounts of these entities are set off into a single Royal Academy account.
The debtor and creditor balances between each of the entities in this pooling group at the year end in part
reflects this pooling arrangement.

During the year, the Royal Academy received income of £1,055,889 (2021: £2,969,498) from the Royal
Academy Trust with donations of £nil towards Burlington Project - Phase | (2021: £2,000,000) and £1,055,889
(2021: £969,498) further donations to support various campaigns and projects undertaken. Donations of
£1,648 to the Royal Academy Trust (2021: £15,328) relates to unspent funds from the cataloguing project. At
the year end, £39,195 (2021: £435,941) was owed and included within the Royal Academy's debtors.

The trustees donated a total of £nil (2021: £nil) to the Royal Academy during the year.
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Senior Royal Academicians

Prof Norman Ackroyd CBE (1988)
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Prof Dame Phyllida Barlow DBE
(2011)
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Prof Gordon Benson OBE (2000)
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Royal Academicians
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Prof Fiona Banner (2017)
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Sir David Chipperfield CH CBE (2007)
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Prof Sir Tony Cragg CBE (1994)
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Clare Woods (2022)
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Prof El Anatsui (2014)
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Jim Dine (2014)

Marlene Dumas (2013)
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Jenny Holzer (2016)
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Anselm Kiefer (1996)
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Mimmo Paladino (1999)
Senator Renzo Piano (2007)
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Richard Serra (1995)
Cindy Sherman (2010)
Kiki Smith (2017)

Frank Stella (1993)
Rosemarie Trockel (2013)
James Turrell (2002)

Bill Viola (2017)

Kara Walker (2019)

Al Weiwei (2011)

Wim Wenders (2018)
Peter Zumthor (2014)

Honorary Fellows

Svetlana Alpers (2014)

Sir David Attenborough OM GCMG
CH CVO CBE FRS (1992)

Alan Bennett (2000)

Prof Dame Sarah Gilbert FMedSci
(2021)

Hisham Matar (2021)

Prof Sir Timothy Berners-Lee OM
(2019)

Prof Sir Quentin Blake CH CBE RDI
(2001)

Alfred Brendel HON KBE (2009)

Dame Antonia S Byatt DBE FRSL
(2009)
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(2016)

Edward Fox OBE (1993)
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Sir Nicholas Hytner (2014)

Pierre Rosenberg (2000)

Prof Joseph Rykwert CBE (2011)

Zadie Smith (2019)

Sir John Tusa (2011)

Marina Warner CH DBE CBE FBA
FRSL (2018)

Jeanette Winterson OBE (2011)

Honorary Members Ex Offi

President of the Royal

Scottish Academy

Joyce Caims PRSA RSW (2018)
President of the Royal Hibernian
Academy

Abigail O'Brien PRHA (2018)
President of the Royal West of
England Academy

Fiona Robinson PRWA (2019)

Honorary Members

Chaplain

The Revd Lucy Winkett (2010)

Professor of Ancient History

Prof Sir John Boardman FBA (1989)

Professor of Ancient Literature

Prof Dame Mary Beard OBE (2013)

Professor of Law

The Rt Hon Sir Alan Moses (2006)

Antiquary

James Fenton (2002)

Professor of History of Art

Prof Dawn Ades CBE FBA (2008)

Secretary for Foreign

Correspondence

Lord Ricketts of Shortlands GCMG
GCVO (2018)

Corresponding Members

Sir Simon Robertson (2008)

Scott Mead (2019)

Professors

Architecture

Prof Peter St John

(Adam Caruso and Peter St John RA)
(2022)

Eranda Professor of Drawing

Prof Alison Wilding OBE RA (2018)
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Prof Lubaina Himid CBE RA (2020)
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Prof Fiona Banner RA (2020)

Sculpture

Prof Mike Nelson RA (2019)

Emeritus Professor of Anatomy

Prof Gerald Libby FRCP FRCPSYCH
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Prof Roger Kneebone (2019)

Chemistry

Prof Bronwyn Ormsby (2019)
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Prof Roberto Cipolla (2004)
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Honorary Curator

Prof Stephen Farthing RA (1999)
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Prof Adrian Forty
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Dr Andrew Witton FSA HON RWS
FRSA (2003)

Honorary Surveyor

Roger Zogolovitch RIBA (2015)

Professor of Architectural History

Sir Charles Saumarez Smith CBE
(2019)

Council

President (Chair)

His Honour Judge Tony Baumgartner
Helen Boaden

Prof Sonia Boyce OBE RA
Richard Deacon CBE RA
Stephen Chambers RA

Louisa Hutton OBE RA

Simon Friend

Sir Isaac Julien KBE RA

Prof Lubaina Himid CBE RA
Gary Hume RA

Jock McFadyen RA

Emma Stibbon RA

Grayson Perry CBE RA

Eva Rothschild RA

Prof Alison Wilding OBE RA
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Secretary and Chief Executive,
Natasha Mitchell)

Committees of Council
(as at 31 August 2022)
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President
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Secretary and Chief Executive

Eric Parry RA

David Remfry MBE RA

Richard Wilson RA

Helen Boaden

(In attendance: Charlotte Appleyard,
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Architecture Committee
Louisa Hutton OBE RA (Chair)
Vicky Richardson (Secretary)
President
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Secretary and Chief Executive
Eliza Bonham-Carter

Prof Sir Peter Cook RA

Prof Melanie Dodd

Prof Adrian Forty

Rebecca Lyons

Niall McLaughlin MBE RA
Prof Farshid Moussavi OBE RA
Andrea Tarsia

Buildings Committee

Niall McLaughlin MBE RA (Chair)
President
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Secretary and Chief Executive
Richard Baldwin

Piers Gough CBE RA

(In attendance: Natasha Mitchell, Eliza
Bonham Carter, Carl Hitchcock)
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Committee

Emma Stibbon RA (Chair)

Rebecca Lyons (Secretary)
President

Keeper

Secretary and Chief Executive

Prof Stephen Farthing RA

Prof Roger Kneebone

Humphrey Ocean RA

(In attendance: Mark Hampson, Vicky
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Exhibitions Committee
Stephen Chambers RA (Chair)
President

Keeper

Treasurer

Secretary and Chief Executive
Prof Dawn Ades CBE FBA
John Akomfrah CBE RA
Anne Desmet RA

Dr Ben Thomas

Prof Dorothy Price

Prof Chantal Joffe RA

(In attendance: Rebecca Lyons,
Andrea Tarsia)

Finance Committee
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Bill Woodrow RA

Simon Friend

Andrea O'Keeffe

Peter Williams

Pesh Framjee
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Learning Committee
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President
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Eileen Cooper OBE RA
Vanessa Jackson RA

Prof Lubaina Himid CBE RA
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Remuneration Committee
Helen Boaden (Chair)
President
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Secretary and Chief Executive
John Collier
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Eric Parry RA

Bill Woodrow RA
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Prof Fiona Banner RA

Mark Hampson
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RA School Student Representative
(In attendance: David Cooper, Michael
Eldred, Rebecca Lyons)

Summer Exhibition Committee

President (Chair)

Secretary and Chief Executive
(acting Secretary)
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Other Committees
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Desirée Bollier
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Simon Friend
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Prof Farshid Moussavi OBE RA
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President (Chair)
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Dr Judith Collins

The Rt Hon Sir Alan Moses

Dr Alison Smith

Desmond Shawe-Taylor

(In attendance: Secretary and Chief
Executive, Carl Hitchcock)

Trustees of the Royal Academy
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Andrew Threadgold (Chair)
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and Mrs Taida
Mr Shuji Takashina and Mrs Takashina
HE Ambassador Tsuneharu Takeda
and Mrs Takeda
Mr Hiroyasu Tomita and Mrs Tomita
Mrs Toshio Yamazaki

Director
Mrs Yu Serizawa

Secretariat
Mrs Yuko Tadano
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The Friends of the
Royal Academy
(as at 31 August 2022)

Honorary Patron of the
Friends of the RA

HRH The Duchess of Cornwall
(2016-)

The Friends Board of Directors
Clive Humby OBE (Chair)
Secretary and Chief Executive
Nigel Abbas

Verity Harding

Neil Jeffries RA

Siobhan Moriarty

Andrea O'Keeffe (Treasurer)
Richard Philipps

Peter Randall-Page RA

Oliver Rawlins

(In attendance: Jo Prosser, Michelle
Kettner)

Presidents’ Circle
Blavatnik Family Foundation
Bloomberg Philanthropies
The Clore Duffield Foundation
Mervyn & Jeanne Davies
The Dorfman Foundation
Dunard Fund
Mrs Drue Heinz Hon DBE
Christophe and Valérie
Jungels-Winkler
Mrs Gabrielle Jungels-Winkler
Sir John Madejski OBE DL
Ronald and Rita McAulay
The McLennan Family
The Mead Family Foundation
Mr and Mrs Robert Miller
The Monument Trust
National Lottery Heritage Fund
Julia and Hans Rausing
Simon and Virginia Robertson
The Rothschild Foundation
Dame Jillian Sackler DBE
The Garfield Weston Foundation
The Maurice Wohl
Charitable Foundation
The Wolfson Foundation

Major Benefactors
Ambassador Matthew Barzun
& Brooke Brown Barzun
Aryeh & Elana Bourkoff, LionTree
Sir Francis & The Hon Lady Brooke
Mrs Linda Brownrigg
The Cadogan Charity
Sir Richard and Lady Carew Pole
Adrian Cheng
Jeremy Coller Foundation
John and Gail Coombe
Lady Deighton
Sir Harry Djanogly
The Eranda Rothschild Foundation
The Evolution Education Trust
The Fidelity UK Foundation
The Foyle Foundation
Ms Brenda Garza
Genesis Foundation
J Paul Getty Jnr Charitable Trust
Glenbevan Trust
Horace W. Goldsmith Foundation
Mr and Mrs Jim Grover
The Alexis and Anne-Marie
Habib Foundation
Charles & Kaaren Hale
Nicolette and Frederick Kwok
The Kirby Laing Foundation
Lord Leverhulme's Charitable Trust
Christian Levett and Mougins Museum
of Classical Art
The Linbury Trust
Miss Rosemary Lomax-Simpson
The Lord Mayor's Appeal
Mr William Loschert
David and Molly Lowell Borthwick
Philip and Valerie Marsden
The 29th May 1961 Charitable Trust
The Paul Mellon Estate
Milner Educational Trust
The Idan and Batia Ofer
Family Foundation
Christina Ong

Mr and Mrs James Paradise
The estate of the late
Miss Constance Anne Parker
P F Charitable Trust
The Schroder Foundation
Mr Sean Scully RA
Jake and Hélene Marie Shafran
Mr Richard Sharp
William and Maureen Shenkman
Dasha Shenkman
The estate of the late
Mrs Pauline Sitwelll
David and Deborah Stileman
The Swire Charitable Trust
The late Sir Anthony Tennant
and Lady Tennant
The Band Trust
The Thompson Family Charitable Trust
Sir Siegmund Warburg's
Voluntary Settlement
The Welton Foundation
The late Mr W. Galen Weston
and the Hon Mrs Hilary Weston

Benefactors

Aldama Foundation

Lord and Lady Aldington

Mrs Allen-Huxley

Joan and Robin Alvarez

The Anson Charitable Trust

The Band Trust

Veronica and Lars Bane

Ms Linda Bennett and Mr Philip Harley

Sir Win Bischoff

Stefan Bollinger

llaria Bulgari

Charlotte Bonham-Carter
Charitable Trust

The William Brake Charitable Trust

The Deborah Loeb Brice Foundation

The Consuelo and Anthony Brooke
Charitable Trust

Garvin & Steffanie Brown

Mr and Mrs John Burns

Peter and Sally Cadbury

Carew Pole Charitable Trust

Dr Edmund Carter

Mr Richard Chang

Sir Trevor and Lady Susan Chinn

CHK Foundation

Mr and Mrs Jonathan Clarke

Mr Andrés Clase

John S Cohen Foundation

Ms Elizabeth Crain

Crankstart

The David Ellis Marlow Trust

Mr Michael Cowper

The Manny and Brigitta Davidson
Charitable Trust

Ina De & James Spicer

The Roger De Haan Charitable Trust

Ron Dennis

The Gilbert and Eileen Edgar
Foundation

The John Ellerman Foundation

Mr Richard Elman

Epson

Jennifer Esposito

The Lord Farringdon Charitable Trust

Mr and Mrs Stephen Fitzgerald

Mrs Jill Garcia.

Mrand Mrs M Gee

The Golden Bottle Trust

Grete Goldhill

Nicholas and Judith Goodison's
Charitable Settlement

Antony Gormley & Vicken Parsons

The late Mr Stephen Gosztony

Yoav Gottesman

The late Sir Ronald Grierson

Sir Nicholas Grimshaw CBE PPRA

Fiona and Peter Hare

Hauser & Wirth

Ms Katrin Henkel

Mr & Mrs Julian Heslop

Holbeck Charitable Trust

The Charles Michael Holloway
Charitable Trust

Mrand Mrs Jeremy Hosking

Huo Family Trust

Harry Hyman and family

The Inchcape Foundation

Japanese Committee of Honour
of the Royal Academy of Arts

Alistair DK. Johnston CMG FCA

Mr van Katzen

Simon Krok

Mr Lagrange and Mr Burnough

Sir Christopher Le Brun PPRA
and Charlotte Verity

The David Lean Foundation

Mr Nelson Leong

Mr and Mrs Mark Loveday

The Maccabaeans

Dr. Lee MacCormick Edwards
Charitable Trust

Marian Goodman Gallery

J P Marland Charitable Trust

The Rt Hon The Lord & Lady Marland

Mrs P M McAlpine

The late Mr Minoru Mori Hon KBE

The John R Murray Charitable Trust

Michael Moritz

Lady Alison Myners

Normanby Charitable Trust

HRH Princess Marie-Chantal
of Greece

Dr and Mrs Orentreich

Mr Charles Outhwaite

The Earl and Countess of Plymouth

Stanley Picker Charitable Trust

The Pilgrim Trust

Mr and Mrs Maurice Pinto

The Polonsky Foundation

Mrs Tineke Pugh

Red Butterfly Foundation

The estate of the late Mr lvor Rey

Peter Rippon

Sir Simon and Lady Robey OBE

Richard and Ruth Rogers

The Rose Foundation

Sir Paul and Lady Ruddock

The Basil Samuel Charitable Trust

Mrs Coral Samuel CBE

Edwina Sassoon

Anders Schroeder

Louisa Service OBE

David and Sophie Shalit

Archie Sherman Charitable Trust

Mr Christopher Smith

Mr Brian Smith

Sir Paul and Lady Smith

Fundaci6 Sorigué

The South Square Trust

Mrand Mrs Roger Staton

Sir Hugh and Lady Stevenson

The Nina and Roger Stewart
Charitable Trust

Faisal & Sara Tamer

The late Sir David Tang KBE

Tavolozza Foundation

Tileyard Studios

Julian Treger

Tresidor Investment Management

Mr Adriaan Van Otterloo

Celia Walker Art Foundation

Martin and Anja Weiss

Sian and Matthew Westerman

Chris Wilkinson OBE RA
and Diana Edmunds

Mr Peter Williams

Ivor and Caroline Windsor

The Harold Hyam Wingate Foundation

Manuela and Iwan Wirth

The Lennox and Wyfold Foundation

The P H G Cadbury Charitable Trust

Mr Yuzo Yagi

And those who wish to remain
anonymous

Xiv



RA Schools Ambassadors

Cathie Pilkington RA
Keeper of the Royal Academy

Robert Suss
Chair of the RA Schools Campaign

Royal Academician Ambassadors
Marina Abramovi¢ Hon RA

Basil Beattie RA

Eileen Cooper OBE RA

Gary Hume RA

Vanessa Jackson RA

Prof Farshid Moussavi OBE RA

Prof Chris Orr MBE RA

David Remfry MBE RA

Yinka Shonibare CBE RA

Ambassadors
Hannah Bays
Charlie Billingham
Lady Sarah Chatto
May Calil

Matthew Darbyshire
Lord Davies of Abersoch
Lady Deighton
Emilia Fox

Kira Freije

Kit Kemp

Tarka Kings
Christopher Kneale
Nicolette Kwok
Aarti Lohia

Helena Morrissey
Hannah Perry
Sarah Pickstone
Prem Sahib

Sir Paul Smith
Marie Hélene Shafran
David Stileman
Emma Vernetti

Jan Verwoert

Sarah Walter

Tom Worsfold

RA Patrons

Chair of Patrons
Mr Matthew Langton

International Circle
Mrs Niloufar Bakhtiar-Bakhtiari
Mr Lars Bane
Antigone Theodorou

and Stefan Bollinger
Alexander and lka Green
Bella Kesoyan
Ms Ida Levine
Mr Nick Loup
Mr Sebastien Mazella di Bosco
Mrs Suling Mead
Gaukhar Nurgalieva
Mr Thaddaeus Ropac
Yukiko and Anders U. Schroeder
Jake and Marie Hélene Shafran
Ms Chizuko Yashiro
Mr and Mrs Basil Zirinis
Mercedes Zobel

and those who wish to remain
anonymous

Platinum

Tim Ashley

Celia and Edward Atkin CBE
Paul Baines

The Deborah Loeb Brice Foundation
Mrs Sophie Diedrichs-Cox
Mrs Willemien Downes

Hugo Eddis

Mr Jim Grover

Mrs Margaret Guitar

Charles and Kaaren Hale

Mr Yan Huo

Mrs Elisabeth Lenz

Mrs Bianca Roden

Mr Howard Shore

Alex Beard and Emma Vernetti

and those who wish to remain
anonymous
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Gold
Mr Stephen Allcock
Joan and Robin Alvarez
Ms Vanessa Aubry
Sam and Rosie Berwick
Molly Lowell Borthwick
Richard Bram and Monika Machon
Sir Francis Brooke Bt
Mr Thomas E Cantwell
Ms Lisa Carrodus
Varun and Emma Chandra
Ms Natasha Cheung
Mr Andrés Clase
The Lady Renwick of Clifton
Christopher and Alex Courage
Dr Juli Crocombe
Susan Elliott
Kate de Rothschild Agius
and Marcus Agius CBE
Swag and Nupur Ganguly
Mrs Carol Gibson Jackson
Mr Stephen Griggs
Mr Joshua Harris
Rosalyn and Hugo Henderson
Mrs Elizabeth Hosking
Dame Vivian Hunt DBE
Mr Kevin Kane
Sir and Lady Khalili
Mr Christopher Kneale
Ms Maxine Kohn
Sir Sydney Lipworth KC
and Lady Lipworth CBE
Mr William Loschert
Olena Lutsenko
Mr Nicholas Maclean
Scott and Laura Malkin
Mr Stephen Marquardt
Mr Michael Marx
Lady Alison Myners
Louise Nathanson
Simon and Sabi North
Mr and Mrs Simon Oliver
Ms Asta Paulauskaite
Yana and Stephen Peel
Paulo and Caroline Pereira
Mr Stuart Piercy
Mrs Ivetta Rabinovich
Melanie Rademacher
Dianne Roberts
Lady Rayne Lacey
Tania Rotherwick
Mr Richard Simmons CBE
Tim and Lynda Smith
Mr Kevin Sneader
and Ms Amy Muntner
Jane Spack
Mrs Raksha Sriram
Mr Michael Stiff
David and Deborah Stileman
Robert and Simone Suss
Rebecca Taylor
Kathryn Uhde
Miss M L Ulfane
Countess Cornelia Von Rittberg
Erica Wax
Mr Neil Westreich
Mr Peter Williams
Mrs Janet Winslow
Manuela and lwan Wirth
David Yates and Yvonne Walcott Yates
Mr Robert John Yerbury
Mr Riccardo Zacconi

and those who wish to remain
anonymous

Silver

Mrs Spindrift Al Swaidi

Ms Ruth Anderson

Mr John Attree

Mrs Leslie Bacon

Catherine Baxendale

Mr and Mrs Jonathan
and Sarah Bayliss

Mrs J KM Bentley, Liveinart

Ms Sara Bianchi

Mr Stefan Bollinger

Ms Miel de Botton

Eleanor E Brass

Viscountess Bridgeman

Mrs Basia Briggs

Mrs Marcia Brocklebank

Mrs Charles Brown

Simon Morris and Annalisa Burello
Mr Jack Burgess
Ms Debra Burt
Mrs J Martin
Mrs Ann Chapman-Daniel
Sir Trevor and Lady Chinn
Damian and Anastasia Chunilal
Mr John Clappier
Mrs Jane Clark
Rosalind Clayton
Mr Richard Clothier
Denise Cohen Charitable Trust
Sir Ronald and Lady Cohen
Andrew M Coppel CBE

and June V Coppel
Cathy Corbett
Edmund Coulthard
Mrs Caroline Cullinan
Monica and Knut Dahl
Mrs Georgina David
Mr Daniel Davies
Mr and Mrs Jim Downing
Mrs Maurice Dwek
Mrs Marianna E Simpson
Maryam Eisler
Mrs Samira Govers-El Hachioui
Jeff and Jennifer Eldredge
Thomas de Noronha e Silva
Mr David Fawkes
S Isern-Feliu
Mrs Stroma Finston
Virginia Gabbertas
The Garcia Family Foundation
Mr Stephen Garrett
Jacqueline and Jonathan Gestetner
Mrs Melanie Gibson
The Hon Piers Gibson
Caroline and Alan Gillespie
Mr Mark Glatman
Peter and Elizabeth Goulds, LA. Louvre
Lady Amanda Gowing
John Gruzelier, Prof Emeritus
Ms Kim Habraken
Alex Haidas and Thalia Chryssikou
Mr Christopher Harrison
Mrs Sarah Harvey-Collicott
Sir John and Lady Hegarty
Sir Michael and Lady Heller
Mrs Katrin Henkel
Lady Heseltine
Mr and Mrs Jonathan Hindle
Mrs Pat Heslop
Soo Hitchin
Mary Hobart
Anne Holmes-Drewry
Mr Philip Hudson
Mr and Mrs Jon Hunt
Mrs Caroline Jackson
Sir Martin and Lady Jacomb
Mr Tom Jacomb
Mrs Raymonde Jay
Fiona Johnstone
Mrs Marcelle Joseph
Mrs Ghislaine Kane
Dr Elisabeth Kehoe
Mrs Kit Kemp MBE
Paul and Susie Kempe
Rebecca Kemsley
Simon and Emma Keswick
Mr Gerald Kidd
Mr and Mrs James Kirkman
Mrs Anna Kirrage
Mrs Latifa Kosta
Mrs Alkistis Koukouliou
Mr and Mrs Herbert Kretzmer
Ms Isabella Lauder-Frost
Jessica Lavooy
Ms Patricia Lawrie
Mrs Anna Lee
Lady Lever of Manchester
Richard Burger and Rachel Lipson
Mr Jeremy and Dr Julie Llewelyn
Miss R Lomax-Simpson
Mr and Mrs Robin Lough
Sir John MacTaggart
Mr George Maher
Ms Julie Major
Olivier & Priscilla Malingue
Mr Richard Mansell-Jones
Mr Charles Martin
Gillian Mclntosh
Andrew and Judith McKinna
ltxaso Mediavilla-Murray

The Anthony and Elizabeth Mellows
Charitable Settlement

Victoria Miro

Shalini Misra

Ms Bona Montagu

Mr Alan Morton

Mr Blair Morton

Mrs Alexandra Nash

Mrs Tessa Nicholson

Patrick and Bénédicte de Nonneville

Emma O'Donoghue

Flavia Ormond

Neil Osborn and Holly Smith

Sir Michael Palin

Maria N. Peacock

Mrand Mrs D J Peacock

The Hon Julian Phillimore

Mr Adam and Mrs Michelle Plainer

Mary Pollock

Ms Susan Prevezer QC

Lady Purves

Ms Mouna Rebeiz

Mrs Catherine Rees

Peter Rice Esq

Erica Roberts

Miss Elaine Rowley

Sir Paul and Lady Ruddock

Sarah Ryan

Skarstedt Gallery

Mr Robert N Shapiro

David & Heather Shaw

Mrand Mrs S Kahan

Mrs Janice Sacher

Mr Adrian Sassoon

Christina Countess of Shaftesbury

Ms Elena Shchukina

Dr Shirley Sherwood OBE

Mrs Jane Smith

Lady Henrietta St George

Marc and Julie St John

Anthony Thornton

Miss Sarah Straight

Mrs Ziona Strelitz

Ms Catherine Sutton

Mr Matt Symonds

Ms Kim Samuel

Mrs Sirkka Sanderson

Mr Paul Sandilands

Anne Elizabeth Tasca

Mr Anthony J Todd

Mrs Kirsten Tofte Jensen

Mrs Narmali Utley

Ms Roxane Vacca

Mrs Madhavi Vadera

Petri & Jolana Vainio

Tamara Varga

Waqas Wajahat

Mrs Charlotte Warshaw

John and Carol Wates

The Duke and Duchess of Wellington

Ms Christine Westwood-Davis

Mrs Adriana Winters

Marek and Penny Wojciechowski

Mr and Mrs Maurice Wolridge

David Zwirner

and those who wish to remain
anonymous

Patron Donors

Geoffrey Ainsworth
and Johanna Featherstone

The de Laszlo Foundation

The Breathe Project

Mrs Patricia Franks

Robin Hambro

Dr Bruce Horten

The William Brake Foundation

Mr D H Killick

The Michael and Nicola Sacher
Charitable Trust

Melanie and Michael Sherwood
Charitable Foundation

Mr. Martin J. Sullivan OBE

Mr and Mrs Anthony Williams

Ms Cynthia Wu

and those who wish to remain
anonymous

Appendices

Young Patrons
Kalita al Swaidi

Mr Daniel Boehm

Mr Nicholas Bonsall
Mr Matthew Charlton
Miss XiaoMeng Cheng
Sophie Dickson
Ariana von der Heyde
Dr Brian Fu

Rebecca Glenapp
Adam Gordon

Miss Lemara Grant
Miss Amelia Hunton
Mr Phoebus Istavrioglu
Peter Jones

Miss Min Kemp

Mr Callum Kempe

Mr Sergey Kozlov
Miss Matilda Liu

Mrs Louisa Macmillan
Christina Makris

Mr Jean-David Malat
Patrick McCrae
Marcos De Menezes
Miss Yekaterina Munk
Mr Thomas Mustier
Miss Mimi Nguyen

Mrs Harriet O'Rourke
Mr Gergely Battha-Pajor
Mr James A Peacock
Mr Gaudenz Probst
Ms Julie Scotto

Fazilet Secgin

Lily Stone

Ms Gigi Surel

The Honourable Clarence Tan
Miss Marine Tanguy
Mr Milan Tomic

Miss Ayse Unluturk

and those who wish to remain
anonymous

Legators and In Memoriam

We wish to remember those who have
supported the Royal Academy of Arts
with a gift in their will and those whose
loved ones have given in their memory.
These special gifts help to protect

our future, ensuring that the RA can
be a voice for art and artists, inspiring
generations to come. This year we
would like to thank and commemorate
the following:

Wendy Elizabeth Archer
Dame Elizabeth Blackadder
DBE RARS
Mrs Rosemary Anne Chiles
John Henry Cunningham — Dexter
Ann Rosemary Davies
James Edwards
Dorothy Field
Mrs Margaret Finch FRIBA
Mollie Doreen Gafney and her sister,
Kitty Margaret Gafney
Susan Rae Harvey
Patrick Valentine
Eliot Howard
Rosemary Elizabeth Hughes
Dr Jean Margaret Kennedy
Mrs Thelma Joyce Legge
Julia Marshall Davies
Joan Helena Patterson
Johanna Rodley
Elizabeth Mary Joyce
Smith Broadbridge
Lynne Stern
Mr Alfred Oscar Thompsett
Thomas Wade — West
Mrs Margaret Eluned Waide
Elizabeth Wallace
Victoria Wisher

Appendices

Corporate Membership of the
Royal Academy of Arts

Launched in 1988, the Royal
Academy’s Corporate Membership
Scheme has proved highly successful
Corporate membership offers
company benefits for staff, clients and
community partners and access to the
Academy’s facilities and resources. We
thank all members for their valuable
support and continued enthusiasm.

Associate

Bank of America

Beaumont Nathan

Bonhams 1793 Ltd

BAT

Deutsche Bank AG London
Imperial College Healthcare Charity
Lazard

Morgan Stanley

Pentland Group PLC

SMBC Corporation Europe Ltd
Ten Lifestyle Group

The Boston Consulting Group UK LLP
Tulchan

Corporate

Bloomberg LP

Chanel

Christie’s

Clifford Chance LLP

Edelman

Generation Investment Management
LLP

Hakluyt & Company

Index Ventures

The John Lewis Partnership

Lindsell Train

Marie Curie

Pictet

Rathbone Investment Management Ltd

Rolex

Sisk

Sky

The Cultivist

The Royal Society of Chemistry

Trowers & Hamlins

UBS

Value Retail

Weil Gotshal & Manges LLP

Premier

BNY Mellon

Cazenove Capital

Charles Stanley

Chestertons

Convex UK Services Limited
(Convex Group)

Evelyn Partners

FTI Consulting

JMFinn & Co

JTl

KPMG

Linklaters

Rothschild & Co

Sotheby’s

Teneo

The Arts Club

Van Cleef & Arpels

C F i Benef
BNY Mellon

Index Ventures

Newton Investment Management
Ralph Lauren

Sisk

Sky

Corporate Partners
Bloomberg Philanthropies
BNP Paribas

Burberry

Edwardian Hotels

Insight Investment

Viking

Corporate supporters

Amathus

BNY Mellon, Anniversary Partner
of the Royal Academy of Arts

CDUK

Christie’s

Fortnum & Mason

Hermées

JFOODO

Kajima

Louis Roederer

Sotheby's

Stewarts

Tileyard London

Benefactors of the

RA Learning Programme

The Nicholas Bacon Charitable Trust

Jeanne and William Callanan

Capital Group

Dunard Fund

Robin Hambro

The Margaret and Richard Merrell
Foundation

The Clore Duffield Foundation

Alexandra Nash

Peacock Charitable Trust

Peter Storrs Charitable Trust

The Rothschild Foundation

Lord Leonard and Lady Estelle
Wolfson Foundation

Worshipful Company of
Chartered Architects

Benefactors of the
RA Exhibition Programme
Art Mentor Foundation Lucerne
Blavatnik Family Foundation
Brooke Brown Barzun
Cate Olson and Nash Robbins
Cockayne Grants of the Arts
Dunard Fund
Francis Bacon MB Art Foundation
Garcia Family Foundation
Genesis Foundation
Ivor Braka
Kathryn Uhde
Lars Bane
Omer Kog
Peter and Geraldine Williams
Pro Helvetia
Rosemary Lomax Simpson
Scott and Laura Malkin
Tavolozza Foundation
The Daiwa Anglo Japanese
Foundation
The Great Britain Sasakawa
Foundation
The Japan Foundation
The Magic Trust
The Terra Foundation for American Art
The Thompson Family Charitable Trust
The Fanzhi Foundation
for Art and Education
Victoria Miro
Dr. Lee MacCormick Edwards
Charitable Foundation
Jill & John Garcia Foundation
The Milton and Sally Avery
Arts Foundation
The International Music and
Arts Foundation
Ford Foundation

and those who wish to remain
anonymous

of the RA C
The Samuel H. Kress Foundation
The Polonsky Foundation

RA Benefactors
The Atlas Fund
CHK Foundation
Joseph Strong
Frazer Trust

Appendix 3
Staff of the Royal
Academy of Arts

Employees on permanent and
fixed term contracts as at 31
August 2022

President’s Office

Rebecca Salter PRA

President

Peter St John RA

Treasurer

Philippa Waller

Executive Assistant to the President

Secretary and
Chief Executive’s Office

Axel Ruger

Secretary & Chief Executive

Doireann Cott

Executive Assistant to Secretary
& Chief Executive

Alexandra Collini

Head of Membership Affairs

Exhibitions

Andrea Tarsia

Director of Exhibitions

Marie De Rooy

Departmental Administrator -
Exhibitions

Giulia Ariete
Rights & Reproduction Manager
Caroline Arno
Senior Rights &

Reproduction Manager
Rebecca Bailey
Exhibitions Manager
Idoya Beitia
Head of Exhibitions
Sinta Berry
Summer Exhibition Managing Curator
Rebecca Bray
Assistant Curator
Stephanie Bush
Senior Exhibitions Manager
Catherine Coates
Assistant Exhibitions Manager
Helena Cooper
Assistant Exhibitions Manager
Nancy Cooper
Summer Exhibition Manager
Bronté Earl
Summer Exhibition Coordinator
Flora Fricker
Senior Exhibitions Manager
Rhiannon Hope
Assistant Curator
Sylvie Broussine
Assistant Curator
Sarah Howard
Curator
Guy Carr
Assistant Exhibitions Manager
Abbie Latham
Assistant Exhibitions Manager
Florence Mytum
Assistant Exhibitions Manager
Adrian Locke
Chief Curator
Isabella Gooch
Summer Exhibition Assistant
Lorenz Ecker
Summer Exhibition Assistant
Per Rumberg
Curator
Paul Sirr
Senior Database &

Summer Exhibition Manager
Rose Thompson
Assistant Curator
Susana Vazquez Fernandez
Rights & Reproductions Manager
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Richard Ashcroft

Art Handling Manager
Max Holder

Art Handling Manager
Peter Bellamy

Art Handler

Patricia Venancio De Oliveira
Art Handler

Philip Drewry

Art Handler

Simon Streather

Art Handler

Kieron Simms

Art Handler

Exhibitions — Architecture

Vicky Richardson
Head of Architecture
& Drue Heinz Curator
Helen Ikla
Architecture Programme
& Awards Manager
Hana Nihill
Architecture Awards Manager

Collections & Learning

Rebecca Lyons
Director of Collections & Learning
Annika Hasselgren Harney
Executive Master Programme Manager
& EAto Director of Collections
& Learning

Collections & Learning —
Academic Programmes

Imelda Dooley Hunter
Programmer (Art History & Culture)
William Iron
Academic Programmes Manager
Marie Tavinor
Programme Director —
Executive Master
Paloma Tendero Mesa
Adult Learning Programme
Coordinator

Collections & Learning —
Collections

Jennifer Camilleri

Picture Library Administrator
Martha Graves

Registrar

Katharine St Paul
Registrar: Collections Management
Linda Macpherson
Assistant Librarian

Edwina Mulvany

Senior Registrar

Mark Pomeroy

Archivist

Miranda Stead

Assistant Librarian

Laura Valentine

Picture Library Manager
Adam Waterton

Head of Library Services
Annette Wickham

Curator of Works on Paper
Jennifer Powell

Curator of Paintings & Sculpture
Louise Davison

Sculpture Cleaner

Collections & Learning —
Learning

Lily McGuire
Family & Community
Programme Manager
Molly Bretton
Head of Families, Access & Schools
Kira Milmo
Adult Learning Programme Manager
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Anna Smallman

Young People's Programmer

Olutayo Obasanya

Young Artist's Summer Show Assistant
Cornelius Prior

Learning Editor & Producer

Audience & Experience

Jo Prosser
Director of Audience & Experience
Phoebe Exon
Executive Assistant & Audience
& Experience Administrator

Audience & Experience -
Commercial

Eduardo Brigagao

Merchandiser & Range Manager

Stephen De Costa

Warehouse Assistant

Bethany Naylor

Buying & Merchandise Assistant -
Omnichannel

Susan Noonan

Head of Commercial

Pouya Motallebzadeh

Content & Production Coordinator

Olga Kyrmou

Merchandise Assistant

Honor Oliver-Dansie

Commercial Content Assistant

Anne-Louise Peckham

Book Buyer & Merchandiser

Ryan Lawer

Warehouse Manager

lan Sankey

Fulfilment Manager/Assistant

Emma Mills

Customer Service Assistant

Alison Acampora

Art Sales & Commercial Content Lead

Donatella Marzola

Customer Services Supervisor

Audience & Experience - Retail

Yoo-Kyung Shin

Retail & Art Sales Assistant

Elizabeth Fretty

Retail & Art Sales Assistant

Alison Poon

Retail & Art Sales Assistant

Sarah Perkins

Retail & Art Sales Assistant

Laura Morris-Kingham

Retail Supervisor — Visual & Stock

Britta Vetta

Retail Assistant

Federico Florian

Retail Assistant

Nicolas Godbold

Retail Assistant

Elsa Money

Retail Assistant

Karen Asker

Retail Assistant

Laura Watts

Retail Assistant

Patrick Stratton

Retail Assistant

Peter Crack

Retail Assistant

Fi Grew

Retail Assistant

Afomya Beyene

Retail Supervisor — Stock &
Visual Presentation

Linda Fu

Deputy Retail Manager

Rianna Whiter

Deputy Retail Manager

Paul Bruneski

Senior Floor Manager, Retail

Audience & Experience —
Communications

Johanna Bennett

Head of Communications
Alexandra Bradley

Senior Press Officer

Annabel Potter

Senior Press Officer

Jessica Armbrister

Press & Communications Officer

Audience & Experience —
Digital Content

Fionnuala Deasy

Digital Content Producer
Charlie Murray

Video Producer

Edward Bankes
Website Content Manager

Audience & Experience - Design,
Production & Environment

Georgia Linn

Head of Design, Production
& Environment

Jen Devonshire

Interim Head of Design, Production
& Environment

Charlotte Riley

Assistant Studio Manager

Matthew Hunt

Graphic Designer

Audience & Experience —
Infrastructure, Product &
Analytics

Rachel Walker
Head of Digital Product
& Infrastructure
Jessica Webb
Young Artists' Project Manager
Alicia Scheibner
Digital Programme Manager
Sarah Fuller
Digital Product Lead
Julian Jans
Technical Lead
Lily Ackroyd-Willoughby
Website Operations Manager
Adrian Lloyd
Web Developer
Kevin Madeira
Tessitura Database Manager
Katharina Joos
Digital Project Manager
Liam Palmer
Software Developer
Carlo Palazzi
Insight & Analytics Lead

Audience & Experience - Visitor
Management & Welcome

Nicholas Barrett
Visitor Management Coordinator
Karen Bomprezzi
VFE Duty Manager
Eleni Kitsou
Scheduling Manager — VMW & Retail
Alexander Price
Senior Floor Manager, VFE
Bella McKinnon-Evans
Duty Manager, VFE
Kate Topham
Head of Visitor Management

& Welcome
Marcal Cuberta
Visitor Experience Host
Aleksandra Durman
Visitor Experience Host
Konstantinos Giannopoulos
Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Flora Bradwell
Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Rebecca Youseffi
Visitor Experience Host — Welcome

Mia O'Toole

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Chantel Brown

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Carol Holt

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Monika Tobel

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Marie Gallagher

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Daniel Cohen

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Scott Lawrence

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Omoyeni Ogunmilade

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Consuelo Munoz

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Carole Villain

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Jake Chatzipantos

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Christopher Simpson

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Karolina Raczynska

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Miriam Marianni

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Caroline Maynard

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome
Yma De Almeida Johnson

Visitor Experience Host — Welcome

Audience & Experience —
Publishing

Catherine Cartwright

Design & Production Manager,
RA Magazine

Florence Dassonville

Production & Distribution Co-ordinator,
RA Publications

Imogen Greenhalgh

Deputy Editor, RA Magazine

Jane Grylls

Advertising Manager, RA Magazine

Carola Krueger

Production & Distribution Manager,
RA Publications

Samuel Phillips

Editor and Publisher, RA Magazine

Peter Sawbridge

Head of Publishing
& Editorial Director

Audience & Experience — Sales,
Marketing & Loyalty

Michelle Kettner
Head of Sales, Marketing & Loyalty

Audience & Experience - Sales,
Marketing & Loyalty — Marketing
& Loyalty

Harriet Dalton

Senior Marketing Manager, Loyalty

Alicia Eames

Interim Senior Marketing Manager,
CRM

Helen Hurran

Senior Marketing Manager, Campaigns

Gabriella Colombo

Senior Marketing Manager,
Commercial

Amber Albani

Marketing Officer, Loyalty

Rowan Foulkes

Marketing Officer

Meena Kaur

Marketing Officer, Campaigns

Laura Childs

Senior Marketing Manager, Loyalty
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Audience & Experience - Sales,
Marketing & Loyalty — Data

Rania Clark

Data Manager, Fundraising &
Membership

Biswadeep Das

Database Officer

Audience & Experience - Sales,
Marketing & Loyalty - Ticketing
& Membership

Loren Field

Senior Ticketing & Membership
Services Manager

Thomas Waters

Ticketing & Membership Manager

Noman Ahmed

Supervisor: Ticket Sales

Shannon Fox

Assistant Manager, Membership
Services

Clarissa Lim

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Andrew Chatterton

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Daniel Honan

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Jack Murphy

Ticketing & Membership
Assistant Manager

Philippa Merrett

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Mariaivona Correiacamacho

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Rosalinda Bacciu

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Alessia Milone

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Michael Simpson

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Cihan Yildiran

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Alex Lundstrdm

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Antonio Fasano

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Andrew Reid

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Lucy Todhunter

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Emily Sills

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Sharon Doyle

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Sung Young Hamilton

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Susan Reitsis

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Angelica Vallone

Ticketing & Membership Assistant

Development

Charlotte Appleyard
Director of Development
& Business Innovation
Michael Eldred
Deputy Director of Development
Penelope Fortune
Executive Assistant to the
Director of Development

Development — Major Gifts
& Campaigns

Maria-Helena Gimlik-Quiroa
Legacy and Campaigns Officer
Frances Giriffiths

Senior Legacy Manager
Joseph Green

Head of Major Gifts & Campaigns
James Hobson

Senior Major Gifts Manager
Emily Payne

Major Gifts Administrator
Isobel Morris

Head of Patrons
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Katy Scrivener
Patrons Manager
llka Kemp-Hall
Patrons Manager
Olivia Cheung
Patrons Administrator

D — New Busi &
Sponsorship

Simon Armstrong

Head of Corporate Partnerships
& Memberships

Clementine Bevan

Senior Corporate Membership
Manager

Angela Wright

Senior Events Manager

Sophie Parkin

Senior Sponsorship &
Partnership Manager

Eithne Brennan

Sponsorship & Partnerships Manager

Nina Relf

Sponsorship & Partnerships
Administrator

Patrick Frazier Wood

Head of Events

Alice Robinson

Events Manager

Eleanor Price

Events Manager

Daisy Goddard

Senior Events Manager

George Brodie

Senior Events Manager

Ned Smith

Trust and Foundations Manager

Harriet Jarman

Senior Research &
Resources Manager

Stacey Langham

Head of Corporate Partnerships,
Luxury, Fashion & Business
Innovation Lead

Alice Morrison

Senior Corporate Membership
Manager

Emmanouil Rammos

Events Assistant

Bradley Harris

Events Assistant

lona Penrice

Research Officer

Corporate Services

Natasha Mitchell

Director of Corporate Services

Sofia Lundberg

EA to the Director of Finance &
the Director of Corporate Services

Corporate Services — HR & Legal

Katy Grélé

Head of Human Resources
Kathryn Rowe

HR Business Partner
Katherine Power

HR Operations Manager
Simran Dhillon

HR Assistant

Benedict Anstey
General Counsel

Annie Leonard

Legal Counsel

Corporate Services - IT

Vladislav Antonov

IT Systems Administrator

Manju Chhantyal

IT Security & Network Administrator
Dominic Evans

Senior IT Support Officer

Navjeet Hullen

IT Support Officer

Surjeet Hullen

IT Network and Security Manager
Pavlos Kanakis

IT Systems Manager

Danijela Marjanovi¢

IT Support Team Leader

Gary Philip

Senior T Support Officer

Igor Saucek

Head of IT

Corporate Services —
Estates — Surveying

Ozlem Behic

Operations Estates Service Manager
Elinor McDonald

Architect and Senior Build Manager
Philip Pearce

Head of Surveying

Sigrid Muller

Architect and Build Manager

Emily Whitaker

Major Projects Manager

Corporate Services —
E. _E P
David Vobes

Head of Estates Operations
Remi Allman

Estates Coordinator

Francine Williams

Help Desk & Post Room Coordinator
Beniji Fox

Head of Audio Visual

Daniel Gunning

Audio Visual Exhibitions Manager
Fiona Perrin

Health & Safety Manager

Corporate Services —
Estates — Cleaners & Porters

Malgorzata Andrulewicz
Cleaner/Porter

Daniel Burnage
Cleaner/Porter

Bernardo Jr. Evasco
Cleaner/Porter

Tomasz Hajduk
Cleaner/Porter

Terence Hamilton
Supervisor, Cleaners & Porters
Rona Hamilton
Cleaner/Porter

James Howe

Supervisor, Cleaners & Porters
Andrew Kiswiriri Nsiiro
Cleaner/Porter

Taoufik Louardi

Cleaner Supervisor

Victor Pablo Mendez-Muzia
Cleaner/Porter

Dejan Mitrovikj
Cleaner/Porter

Joseoziel Camacho
Cleaner/Porter

Delia Camacho
Cleaner/Porter

James O’'Connell
Cleaner/Porter

John O'Reilly

Facilites Manager
Margarida Reis
Cleaner/Porter

Harry Yorke
Cleaner/Porter

Gongbo Lu

Morning Cleaner

Atsuko Matsumoto
Morning Cleaner

Corporate Services —
Estates — Security

Beata Burdelak

Security Guard/Blue Collar
Anthony David

Security Guard/Blue Collar
Nicola Elworthy

Security Guard/Blue Collar

Tiago Godinho

Security Guard/Blue Collar Nights
Luca Golino

Security Guard/Blue Collar

Carl Harris

Security/Duty FOH Manager
Rinardo Khan

Security Guard/Blue Collar

Abel Kiros

Security/Duty FOH Manager
Peter Lukwata

Security/Duty FOH Manager
Sherwyn Mason

Security/Duty FOH Manager
Gonzalo Mateos Tores
Security/Duty FOH Manager
Amer Najmaden

Security/Duty FOH Manager
Daniel Phillips

Security/Duty FOH Manager
Victor Pinto

Security/Duty FOH Manager
Steve Rampasard
Security/Duty FOH Manager
Nicholas Bowen

Security Guard/Blue Collar Nights
Stancilous Katakwe

Security Guard/Blue Collar Nights
Donatus Egenti

Security Guard/Blue Collar
Johan Olivier

Control Room Operator/Red Collar

Finance

Carl Hitchcock

Director of Finance

Sofia Lundberg

EA to the Director of Finance & the
Director of Corporate Services

Wieslawa Amidu

Finance Assistant

Lee Bennett

AP & Purchasing Supervisor

Michael Casartelli

Head of Procurement

Paul Cooper

Payroll and Pensions Manager

Maria Cristina Drake Arrojo

Senior Finance Analyst —
Masterplan and Capital Expenditure

Kenny Lock

Senior Financial Accountant & Analyst

Man Wai Yik

Finance Analyst

Monica Hossain

Senior Finance Analyst

Jordan Hickman

Accounting Services Manager

Robyn Jeffery

Finance Assistant

Danyel Madrid

Junior Finance Analyst

Nicola Mills

Deputy Director of Finance —
Decision Support

Wioletta Olszewska

Accounts Payable Assistant

Lauren Seaton

Friends Finance Assistant

Ismail Shah

Finance Assistant —
Sales Ledger & Credit Controller

Theresa Webster

Friends Finance Manager

Rose Wright

Head of Accounting Services
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RA Schools

Cathie Pilkington RA

Keeper of the Royal Academy
Eliza Bonham Carter

Curator & Director RA Schools
Geraldine Vaughan

RA Schools Team Administrator

Guler Ates
Digital Print Tutor
Leigh Clarke
Print Tutor
Katherine Van Uytrecht
Print Tutor
David Cooper
RA Schools Programme
and Alumni Relations Manager
Richard Elliott
Sculpture and Workshop Manager
Margarita Gluzberg
Senior Lecturer
Brian Griffiths
Senior Lecturer
Mark Hampson
Head of Fine Art Processes
James Irwin
Digital Media Tutor
Richard Kirwan
Senior Lecturer
Martha Todd
Sculpture Technician
Madalina Zaharia
Digital Print and Photography Tutor
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Appendix 4

Summer Exhibition
Prize Winners

Our first Summer Exhibition this year
was held between 22 September
2021— 2 January 2022

Charles Wollaston Award
£25,000 for the most distinguished
work in the exhibition

Winner: Naomi Wanjiku Gakunga,
Wetereire — Waiting (cat no. 1218,
Lecture Room)

Judges: David Remfry RA, Sarah
Howe and Carol Tulloch

The Jack Goldhill Award for Sculpture
£10,000 for a sculpture

Winner: Emmanuel Awuni, OFF IC3
(cat no. 1242, Lecture Room)
Judges: Sophie Goldhill, David
Liddicoat and Mike Ballard

The British Institution Awards

for Students

The British Institution Fund was
established to promote excellence in
the arts through the awarding of prizes
to students. Work is assessed across
a comprehensive range of disciplines
from painting to architecture. Two
prizes of £5,000 and £3,000 were
awarded by the trustees.

Winners: £5,000 Prize, Mary Whitlock,
Lockdown: A Self Portrait (cat no. 506,
Gallery IV), £3,000 Prize, Pam Evelyn,
Anchor (cat no. 762, Gallery VI)
Judges: Michael Claridge, Betty Brown,
Rosa Sepple and Andrew Stahl

The Hugh Casson Drawing Prize
£5,000 for an original work on paper
in any medium, where the emphasis
is clearly on drawing. The prize was
split between:

Winners: Nelly Dimitranova,
Experiencing British Art History (cat
no. 1303, Wohl Central Hall), David
Winthrop, The Final Assembly (cat no.
301, Gallery Il)

Judges: Nicky Hessenberg, Mia Cassie
and Anne Desmet RA

Sunny Dupree Family Award
for a Woman Artist
£4,000 for a painting or sculpture

Winner: Angela de la Cruz, Loop
(Yellow) (cat no. 373, Gallery Ill)
Judges: Sunny Dupree, Karen Akhtar,
Eva Jiricna RA and Hettie Judah

The Arts Club Award

£2,500 awarded to an artist aged 35
or under for a work in any medium
except architecture

Winner: Ofunne Azinge, Dis Wan Na
Clone, (cat no. 326, Gallery 1)
Judges: Aurore Ankarcrona Ogden
and Humphrey Ocean RA

Our second Summer Exhibition
this year was held between
21 June — 21 August 2022

Charles Wollaston Award
£25,000 for the most distinguished
work in the exhibition

Winner: Uta Kégelsberger, Cull
(cat no. 356, Small Weston Room)
Judges: Martha Kapos, Prof

lan McKeever RA and Caroline
Worthington

The Thomas Burberry Prize
for Print
£10,000 for a print in any medium

Winner: Gaia Cains, Forgotten Cans
(cat no. 496, Gallery IV)

Judges: Burberry Chief Marketing
Officer, Rod Manley and Grayson
Perry RA

The Jack Goldhill Award
for Sculpture
£10,000 for a sculpture

Winner: Oliver Smart, 5 6 7 Blue (cat

no. 354, Large Weston Room)
Judges: Debbie Abrahams, Rana
Begum RA and Judy Goldhill

The British Institution Awards
for Students
The British Institution Fund was

established to promote excellence in
the arts through the awarding of prizes
to students. Work is assessed across
a comprehensive range of disciplines

from painting to architecture. Two
prizes of £5,000 and £3,000 were
awarded by the trustees.

Winners: £6,000 Prize, Ting-En Chen,

Why Do You Keep Changing in My
Mind? (cat no. 671, Gallery IV)

£3,000 Prize, Yoonjoong Cho, Where is

My Chair? (cat no. 1287, Gallery IX)
Judges: Michael Claridge, lan Kiaer,

Jennifer Powell, Rosa Sepple, Andrew

Stahl

The Hugh Casson Drawing Prize
£56,000 for an original work on paper
in any medium, where the emphasis is

clearly on drawing.

Winner: Peter Matthews, 9 Hours In

And With The Atlantic Ocean (England)

(cat no. 1226, Gallery IX)

Judges: Norman Ackroyd RA, Diana

Edmunds and Carola Zogolovitch

The CDUK Award for Architecture

£5,000 for a work that best
demonstrates the capacity of
architecture to signal hope:

Winner: Webb Yates Engineers
and The Stonemasonry Company,
Equanimity (cat no. 204, Gallery 1)

Judges: Andy Noble, Niall McLaughlin
MBE RA, Tom Ravenscroft and Vicky

Richardson

Sunny Dupree Family Award
for a Woman Artist
£4,000 for a painting or sculpture

Winner: Sikelela Owen, Untitled
(Aaliyah) (cat no. 727, Gallery V)
Judges: Clara Amfo, Sunny Dupree,
Vanessa Jackson RA and Charlene
Prempeh

The Arts Club Award
£2,500 awarded fo an artist aged 35
or under for a work in any medium.

Winner: Ethan Caflisch, Young
Evergreen (cat no. 10, Gallery )

Judge: Alayo Akinkugbe, Eliza Bonham
Carter, Otamere Guobadia and Aurore
QOgden
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Appendix 5

Loans from the
Collections,

1 September 2021 -
31 August 2022

Loans for Exhibition
(All loans are oil on canvas unless
otherwise stated)

Exhibition

Harry Potter: A History of Magic
Venue 1

Hyogo Prefectural Museum of Art,
Kobe, Japan

Dates:

11 September — 7 November 2021
Venue 2

Tokyo Station Gallery, Tokyo, Japan
Dates

18 December 2021 — 27 March 2022
Loans

John William Waterhouse RA,

A Mermaid (03/805)

Exhibition

In the Light of Cuyp, Aelbert Cuyp &
Gainsborough — Constable — Tumner
Venue

Dordrechts Museum, Dordrechts, The
Netherlands

Dates

3 October 2021 — 8 May 2022
Loans

John Constable RA, Hampstead
Heath looking towards Harrow (1),

Oil on paper laid on board (03/562);
John Constable RA, Landscape Study:
Hampstead looking West, Oil on
paper laid on canvas (03/454); John
Constable RA, Hampstead Heath
looking West towards Harrow (II), Oil
on paper laid on canvas (03/485)

Exhibition

Laura Knight: A Panoramic View
Venue 1

MK Gallery, Milton Keynes, UK

Dates

9 October 2021 — 20 February 2022
Loans

Dame Laura Knight RA, Sketchbook
(Ballet Dancer Applying Make-up),
Black crayon on wove paper, leaf

from a sketchbook (07/4739); Dame
Laura Knight RA, Study of a moorland
landscape, Watercolour and pencil

on paper (07/3297); Dame Laura
Knight RA, Study of a fairground, Soft
pencil on cream wove paper, leaves
from a sketch (07/5182); Dame Laura
Knight RA, Quick sketch of a ballerina
with wrists tured downwards, Black
crayon on cream laid paper, leaf from
a sketchbook (08/519); Dame Laura
Knight RA, Ballerina from the Bolshoi
Ballet, Pen and black ink on white
wove paper (07/4597); Dame Laura
Knight RA, Study of a skater, relating
to ‘Blackpool Ice-drome’, Ink over
pencil on card (07/2707); Dame Laura
Knight RA, Press Notices, Pen and
brown ink on cream wove paper, leaf
from a sketchbook (08/117); Dame
Laura Knight RA, Study of three female
figures getting dressed, Pen and black
ink over black chalk on textured white
wove paper (07/4447); Dame Laura
Knight RA, Standing nude with Her
Arms Behind her head, Red and black
chalk on white wove paper (07/4323);
Dame Laura Knight RA, Trapeze
Artists, Pen and brush with dark blue
ink on white card (07/4405); Dame
Laura Knight RA, Circus Performers,
Study for The Trick Act, Pen and black
ink with wash over pencil on paper,
sketchbook (07/5188); Dame Laura
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Knight RA, Vignette of three female
trapezists, design for the ‘Circus’
dinner service, Pen and pink ink with
watercolour over pencil on cream wove
paper (07/4452); Dame Laura Knight
RA, Drawing of a Boxer, Pen and

black ink on mid-blue card (07/4377);
Dame Laura Knight RA, Drawing for
poster for the 1937 Royal Academy
Summer Exhibition, Lithograph with
black ink and gouache (03/3554);
Dame Laura Knight RA, Sketchbook
used by Dame Laura Knight RA, Pencil
on cream wove paper, sketchbook
(07/4877); Dame Laura Knight RA,
Portrait Study of Harold Knight RA,
Soft dark pencil on very thin blue wove
paper (07/3302); Dame Laura Knight
RA, Sketchbook used by Dame Laura
Knight RA, Black chalk on wove paper,
sketchbook (07/3892); Dame Laura
Knight RA, A Misty Sunrise, (03/116);
Dame Laura Knight RA, Portrait of
Joan Rhodes (11/1168); Dame Laura
Knight RA, Portrait of Vijayalakshmi
Pandit, Mrs. Pandit Nehru (unfinished)
(04/2054)

Exhibition

Inferno

Venue

Scuderie del Quirinale, Rome, ltaly
Dates

15 October 2021 — 23 January 2022
Loans

Sir Thomas Lawrence PRA, Satan
summoning his Legions (03/1094)

Exhibition

Late Constable

Venue

Royal Academy of Arts, London, UK
Dates

30 October 2021 — 13 February 2022
Loans

Charles Robert Lesle RA, Portrait

of John Constable RA, Oil on panel
(03/681); John Constable RA,
Flatford Lock: A Path by the River, Oil
on canvas laid on board (03/1392);
John Constable RA, Cloud Study,
Hampstead, Tree at Right, Oil on
paper laid on board (03/455); John
Constable RA, Cloud Study: Horizon
of Trees, Oil on paper laid on board
(03/1994); John Constable RA,
Distant View of the Grove, Hampstead,
Oil on paper laid on canvas (03/385);
John Constable RA, The Leaping
Horse, (03/1391); John Constable
RA, A Boat passing a Lock, (03/923);
John Constable RA, Seascape Study:
Boat and Stormy Sky, Oil on paper laid
on board (03/830); John Constable
RA, Rainstorm Over the Sea, Oil on
paper laid on canvas (03/1390);
John Constable RA, Sketch of
Michelangelo's Taddei Tondo, Pen and
brown ink on paper (04/205)

Exhibition

Outgrowing: Flowers and female
artists, 1700 to now

Venue

Leamington Spa Art Gallery and
Museum, Leamington Spa, UK
Dates

28 January — 24 April 2022
Loans

Mary Moser RA, Spring (03/684)

Exhibition

Reciprocal Loan for RA exhibition
Francis Bacon: Man and Beast
Venue

Aberdeen Art Gallery, Aberdeen,
Scotland, UK

Dates

29 January — 17 April 2022
Loans

Sir John Everett Millais Bt PRA,
A Souvenir of Velazquez (03/721)

Exhibition

Reciprocal loan for RA exhibition
Whistler's Woman in White: Joanna
Hiffernan

Venue

Ashmolean Museum, Oxford, UK
Dates

23 February — 22 May 2022
Loans

Sir Lawrence Alma-Tadema RA, Miss
Anna Alma-Tadema (03/908)

Exhibition

Fashioning Masculinities: The Art of
Menswear

Venue

Victoria & Albert Museum, London, UK
Dates

19 March 2022 — 6 November 2022
Loans

After Agasias of Ephesus, Cast of
the Borghese Gladiator, plaster cast,
(03/1484)

Exhibition

Laura Knight and Caroline Walker: A
Female Gaze

Venue 2

Nottingham Castle, Nottingham, UK
Dates:

19 March — 5 June 2022

Loans:

Dame Laura Knight RA, Portrait

of Vijayalakshmi Pandit Nehru
(Unfinished) (04/2054); Dame Laura
Knight RA, Quick sketch of a ballerina
with wrists turned downwards, Black
crayon on cream laid paper, leaf from
a sketchbook (08/519); Dame Laura
Knight RA, Vignette of three female
trapezists, design for the ‘Circus’
dinner service, Pen and pink ink with
watercolour over pencil on cream wove
paper (07/4452); Dame Laura Knight
RA, Ballerina from the Bolshoi Ballet,
Pen and black ink on white wove paper
(07/4597)

Exhibition

Delight in Nature, Stanley Spencer's
World

Venue

Stanley Spencer Gallery, Cookham,
Berkshire, UK

Dates

31 March — 6 November 2022
Loans

Sir Stanley Spencer RA, The Dustbin,
Cookham, (03/197)

Exhibition

Me, Myself, I: Artists’ Self-Portraits
Venue

Royal West of England Academy,
Bristol, UK

Dates

2 May — 19 June 2022

Loans

Attributed to Richard Wilson RA,
Self-portrait of Richard Wilson RA
(03/3134); Nathanial Hone RA,
Self-portrait of Nathaniel Hone RA
(03/211); Angelica Kauffman RA,
Woman resting her head on a book,
etching on paper (06/5024); Benjamin
West PRA, Self-portrait of Benjamin
West PRA, oil on panel (03/285);
Sir Lawrence Aima-Tadema RA, A
Family Group, oil on panel (03/408);
Sir Michael Craig-Martin RA, Self-
portrait (Aqua), acrylic on aluminium
(07/5150); Tom Bevan RA, Head and
Neck, acrylic on canvas (07/5148)

Exhibition

Postwar Modernism: New Art in Britain
1945-1965

Venue

Barbican Art Gallery, London, UK
Dates

3 March — 26 June 2022

Loans

Jean Cooke RA, Early Portrait of John
Bratby RA (03/850); Jean Cooke

RA, Blast Boadicea (03/1192); Jean
Cooke RA, Through the Looking Glass
(03/269)

Exhibition

Reframed: The Woman in the Window
Venue

Dulwich Picture Gallery, London, UK
Dates

4 May — 4 September 2022

Loans

Hans Baldung Grien, Bewitched
Groom, woodcut (03/6193)

Exhibition

Earth: Digging Deep in British Art
1781-2022

Venue

Royal West of England Academy,
Bristol, UK

Dates

9 July - 11 September 2022
Loans

Thomas Gainsborough RA, Romantic
Landscape with sheep at a Spring
(03/1396)

Exhibition

Mary Fedden: Simple Pleasures, a
retrospective exhibition

Venue

Victoria Art Gallery, Bath, UK
Dates

9 July — 16 October 2022

Loans

Mary Fedden RA, Reflection, oil on
board (03/228)
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Long Term Loans Renewed

Borrower

Palace of Westminster, London, UK
Dates

1 November 2021 — 30 November
2023

Loans

John Gibson RA, Narcissus, Marble
(04/730); Patrick MacDowell RA, A
Nymph, Marble (03/3713); Edward
Stephens ARA, Shielding the Helpless,
Marble, (03/1825)

Borrower

Oxford and Cambridge Club, London,
UK

Dates

1 December 2021 — 31 December
2023

Loans

Sir Martin Archer Shee PRA, Portrait of
Queen Victoria (03/1309); Sir Martin
Archer Shee PRA, after Sir Thomas
Lawrence PRA, Portrait of George IV
(03/1307); Sir Martin Archer Shee
PRA, Portrait of William IV (03/1308);
Head of the Farnese Hercules, Plaster
cast (03/7017); Head of Hermes,
Plaster cast (03/1517); Head of Niobe
from the Niobe Group, Plaster cast
(03/1516); Head of Lucius Junius
Brutus, Plaster cast (03/1515); Head
of Augustus, Plaster cast (04/312);
Head of Nero, Plaster cast (04/310)

Borrower

Trinity Laban College of Music,
Greenwich, London, UK

Dates

1 December 2021 — 31 December
2023

Loans

Sir James Thornhill, Miraculous
Draught of Fishes (03/1229)

Borrower

Watts Gallery-Artists' Village, Surrey,
UK

Dates

1 January 2022 - 30 January 2024
Loans

George Frederic Watts RA,

The Death of Cain (03/1348)

Borrower

Cambridge University, Sedgwick Site,
Cambridge, UK

Dates

1 July 2022 - 31 July 2024

Loans

Phillip King PRA, Span Painted
14-guage steel (03/3638); Nigel Hall
RA, Bigger Bite, Phosphor bronze
(10/1347)
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Appendix 6

Immunity from Seizure

The DCMS approved the Royal
Academy of Arts for the purposes of
Part 6 of the Tribunals, Courts and
Enforcement Act 2007 (protection of
cultural objects on loan) with effect
from 17 September 2008.

During the year under review, the Royal
Academy was granted Immunity from
Seizure for 49 artworks as follows:

Late Constable

The Gabrielle Jungels-Winkler
Galleries

30 October 2021 ~ 13 February 2022
Works on Paper: 3

Paintings: 5

Francis Bacon: Man and Beast
Main Galleries

29 January — 17 April 2022
Paintings: 11

Whistler’s Woman in White:
Joanna Hiffernan

The Jillian and Arthur M. Sackler Wing
of Galleries

26 February — 22 May 2022

Works on paper: 14

Paintings: 9

Milton Avery: American Colourist
The Gabrielle Jungels-Winkler
Galleries

15 July - 16 October 2022
Paintings: 7

Due diligence was carried out by
following Royal Academy procedures,
which include identifying areas for
further research and holding internal
staff meetings to review and discuss
any issues arising as appropriate, as
well as consulting external specialists
as required. The Royal Academy’s
Exhibitions Office has received no
enquiries or claims under Section 7 of
the Protection of Cultural Objects on
Loan (Publication and Provision

of Information) Regulations 2008
(provision of information: potential
claimants).

Appendix 7

Acquisitions by the
Collections

1 September 2021 -
31 August 2022

September 2021

Three works on paper by
Rebecca Salter PRA

Lockdown diary 1, 2020

Sumiink on Japanese kozo paper
mounted on Somerset paper
23x 193 cm

Lockdown diary 2, 2021

Gouache on Japanese kozo paper
mounted on Somerset paper
234 x 193 cm

Untitled (White and grey print on

card), 2021

Woodblock print, waterbased relief
print ink on Chinese paper mounted on
Somerset paper,15.4 x 14 cm
Presented by the artist

October 2021

Peter Greenham RA

The Dogana, Venice, early one
September Morning, 1970

Qil on canvas on board

28.1 x 45.8 cm (framed)

Gift from the Estate of
Josephine Harris

An album of photographs,

three watercolours and ephemera
assembled by former RA Schools
student Kate Olver, early 1900s
33x39x5cm

Gift from Sue and John Manning

John Flaxman RA

Nausicaa throwing the ball, scene from
the Odyssey, 1790s

Pencil and pen and ink on wove paper
24.4 x 338 cm

Giift from Lady Marsden

Sir Christopher Le Brun PPRA

Ideas of March (i-iv), 2019

Four handmade woodcut prints on
Fabriano Artistico hot pressed 645gsm
paper

21x3565cm

Presented by the artist in recognition of
his Presidency of the RA, 2011 - 2019

February 2022

Michael Armitage RA Elect

The Long Walk Home (Xala), 2020
Seven-colour lithograph on Somerset
warm white velvet 400msg paper
Artist's Proof

595 x 33 cm

Presented by the artist

Grayson Perry RA

Boring meeting, 7th December 2021
Pen and black ink on A4 RA letterhead
paper

295 x 21 cm

Presented by the artist

Alison Wilding RA

A sheet of doodles and inscriptions,
7th December 2021

Black biro on A4 RA letterhead paper
295x 21 cm

Presented by the artist

Jock McFadyen RA

A sheet of doodles, 7th December
2021

Black and blue biro on A4 RA
letterhead

295 x21 cm

Presented by the artist
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April 2022

Jeffrey Camp RA

Life drawing of Norman Rosenthal
seated

Black chalk on paper

70x 558 cm

Gift from Annette Bradshaw

June 2022

Kobby Adi

Workshop Fire, 2022

16mm positive film in a Cecolite plastic
film container

150 ft (6 mins 33 sec)

Presented by the artist

June 2022

Amanda Levete RA

Victoria & Albert Museum Exhibition
Road Quarter — Gallery, 2017
Digital print on paper, acrylic frame
84.1 x 1189 cm

Victoria & Albert Museum Exhibition
Road Quarter — Courtyard, 2017
Digital print on paper, acrylic frame
84.1 x 1189 cm

Diploma Work

July 2022

Jane and Louise Wilson RA

Undead Sun, 2014

Video, 12 mins 39 seconds, gauze
cube, gauze wall elements and vertical
gauze Fins.

Diploma Work

Matthew Peers

Untitled, 2022

Sandcast aluminium, BN6 9RT,
graphite, paint, steel

18x32x 17 cm

Keeper's Purchase Prize

Nicola Gunnarsson

Maryam Nassir Zadeh, 2022
Qil, PVC Fabric, Aluminium Tape:
and Wood

140x 100 x 25 cm

Keeper's Purchase Prize
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Appendix 8

Trusts and Special
Funds Administered
by the Royal Academy
Trust, 1 September
2021 — 31 August 2022

The British Institution Fund

The British Institution Fund was
established to promote excellence in
the arts through the awarding of prizes
to students. Work is assessed across
a comprehensive range of disciplines
from painting to architecture. Two
prizes of £6,000 and £3,000 are
awarded annually by the trustees.

The Sir Hugh Casson

Drawing Award

Given annually in recognition of the
best drawing in the Summer Exhibition,
in memory of Sir Hugh Casson PRA.

The Chantrey Bequest

Received under the will of Sir Francis
Chantrey RA. Provides for the
purchase of works of art of the
highest merit in painting and sculpture,
executed entirely within the shores of
Great Britain, in order to form a public
national collection of British fine art.

The Selina Cheneviére

Travel Award

Established in 2000 by Antoine
Cheneviére in memory of his late wife
Lady Selina Cheneviere. Awards an
annual bursary to a third-year student
in the RA Schools to help further his or
her practice through travel.

The Sir John Reeves Ellerman
Picture Purchase Fund Bequeathed by
Sir John Reeves Ellerman, 1st Baronet.
The purpose of the Ellerman Fund is

to support the growth of The Royal
Academy of Arts Collection by applying
the income to the purchase of works of
art, in accordance with the Acquisitions
and Disposals policy.

The Eranda Drawing Professorship
Awarded by the Eranda Foundation
to establish a professorship of
drawing in the RA Schools.

The Eranda Scholarship

Received from the Eranda Foundation
in 2013 to provide a scholarship
allowing three students to pursue a
three-year postgraduate course of
study at the RA Schools.

The Richard Ford Award

Received from Brinsley Ford in 1976,
in memory of his great-grandfather
Richard Ford, to enable British
figurative painters to visit Spain for
the purpose of studying paintings,
particularly in the Prado.

The Frampton Fund

Bequeathed by Sir George Frampton
RA for executing in permanent
material works by British sculptors
currently existing only in material of a
non-permanent nature, to be presented
to the nation or placed in any park,
open space, museum or art gallery in
the United Kingdom or its dominions,
colonies or dependencies.

The Jack Goldhill Award

for Sculpture

Donated by Jack Goldhill, an award
is made annually in recognition of
the best sculpture in the Summer
Exhibition.

The Peter Greenham Fund

Donated in memory of Peter
Greenham RA, former Keeper of the
Royal Academy, the fund provides a full
three-year bursary for a student in the
RA Schools.

The de Grey Memorial Fund
Established in memory of Sir Roger
de Grey PRA to provide maintenance
grants to students in the RA Schools
and the City and Guilds of London
Art School.

The Drue Heinz Endowment

for Architecture

Donated by Mrs Drue Heinz in 1993.
The Drue Heinz Endowment for
Architecture supports the development
of the Architecture Programme of The
Royal Academy of Arts.

The McAulay Scholarship Fund
Originally established by a donation
from Mr Ronald McAulay and the Hon
Mrs McAulay in 1997, with a further
donation in 2019. Provides fees and
maintenance to two students in the
RA Schools.

The Paul Mellon Endowment Fund
Received following a bequest in 2000,
the Paul Mellon Endowment Fund
supports the general purposes of The
Royal Academy of Arts.

The Agnes Ethel Mackay Fund
Received in 1981 from the estate of
Miss Agnes Ethel Mackay, in memory
of André Dunoyer de Segonzac Hon
RA, to award travelling scholarships to
students in the RA Schools.

The Pitchforth Fund

Proceeds from the sale of pictures
donated by (Roland) Vivian Pitchforth
RA to provide a scholarship fund for
the RA Schools.

The Pauline Sitwell Bursary Fund
Received in 2012 from the estate of
the late Pauline Sitwell, the fund
awards an annual maintenance bursary
to a student in the RA Schools.

The Ivor Rey Scholarship Fund
Established following a gift in the will of
the late Ivor Alan Rey. An annual award
is made to students of the RA Schools
to visit Paris, France for the purpose of
studying art.

The Salaman-Seelig Art Fund
Established in 2016 by a legacy
from Auriol Seelig. The purpose of
the fund is to make an annual award
to a second-year student of the RA
Schools.

The Starr Fellowship Fund

Donated by the Starr Foundation to
endow an artist-in-residence fellowship
for an American national in the RA
Schools.

The Patricia Turner Award
Bequeathed by James Turner, in
memory of his wife Patricia, to
provide a bursary to a graduating
sculpture student to support his or
her professional development in
his or her first year after leaving the
RA Schools.

The Edna Rose Weiss Award
Donated by Edna Rose Weiss.
Provides an annual prize to a student
in the RA Schools working in a
figurative style.

The Charles Wollaston Award
Donated by Charles Wollaston in 1977.
Provides an annual award for the most
distinguished exhibit in the Summer
Exhibition, on the recommendation of a
specially appointed panel.
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Appendix 9

Royal Academy Schools Awards, Scholarships and Maintenance Funds

Premiums 2022 | Prizes and Awards

Sponsor/Name of Award Amount (£) Awardee(s)

Edna Rose Weiss Award’ 500 Mary Stephenson

E Vincent Harris Prize 1,130 Anna Higgins

E Vincent Harris Prize 1,130 Enej Gala

Ivor Rey Scholarship 7266 Elinor Stanley

The Keeper's Prize’ 610 Daniel Davies

The Dame Laura Knight RA Prize’ 610 Divine Southgate-Smith

Landseer Prize 795 Thirza Smith

Landseer Prize 795 Motunrayo Akinola

The Maccabaeans Prize’ 500 Louis Morlze

Peter T Rippon Travel Scholarship 3000 Rachel Hobkirk

Sir Frank and Lady Short Award 830 Nancy Allen

Celia Walker Art Foundation Prize’ 610 Daria Blum

Stannus Grey Robinson Travel Prize 2,000 Oliver Tirre

Salaman-Seelig Art Prize 3,500 Clark Keatley

Salaman-Seelig Art Prize 3,500 Max Boyla

" In addition to various other awards

RA Schools Show 2022 | Prizes and Awards

Sponsor/Name of Award Amount (£) Awardee(s)

The Selina Cheneviere Travel Award 4,266 Kobby Adi

Almacantar Studio Award -

André Dunoyer de Segonzac Hon RA Prize 903 Sofia Clausse
Hannah Lister
James Lomax
Catinca Malaimare
Andrew Maughan
Millie Layton
Lene Vollhardt
Divine Southgate-Smith
Luke Samuel

The Keeper's Award 1,500 Luke Samuel

Paula Rego RA Award 1,000 Emmanuel Awuni

Stewarts Prize 5,000 Pascal Sender

Patricia Turner Sculpture Award 4,476 Rebecca K. Halliwell-Sutton
Matthew Peers

Xenia Residency Prize 7000 Nicola Gunnarsson

Royal Academy Collection Purchase

Matthew Peers

Gold Medal

Kobby Adi

Dissertation Distinction
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Rebecca K. Halliwell-Sutton
Catinca Malaimare

Lene Vollhardt

Appendices

Other Prizes and Awards 2022

Sponsor/Name of Award Amount (£) Awardee(s)
Chelsea Arts Club Trust Award 2,000 Millie Layton
Bursary and Scholarship Funds 2021-22
Sponsor Scholarship Amount (£) Bursary Amount (£) Name
The Charlotte Bonham Carter Trust 4500 Materials Fund
William Brake Charitable Trust 15,000 5,000 Motunrayo Akinola
Ermest Cook Fund 1,570 Norberto Spina
SIV Cooke Fund 2390 Pascal Sender
Dr Juli Crocombe 3800 Racheal Crowther
Dunard Scholarship Fund 20,000 5,000 Mary Stephenson
Gilbert & Eileen Edgar 6,000 Pascal Sender
The Peter Greenham Scholarship Fund 6,510 Lizzie Munn
Sir Roger de Grey Fund 3529 Andrew Maughan
Hermes 20,000 5,000 Massimiliano Gottardi
Charles Michael Holloway Charitable Trust 15,000 5,000 Millie Layton
Nelson Leong 6,000 Emmanuel Awuni
Hannah Lister
Rebecca K. Halliwell-Sutton
The Leverhulme Trust 3704 Kevin Brennan
Racheal Crowther
Norberto Spina
Kobby Adi
Matthew Peers
Soffa Clausse
Billy Smith-Morris
Elinor Stanley
Louis Morlee
Victoria Levin Fund 210 Norberto Spina
The McAulay Scholarship 20,000 5,000 James Lomax
Nicola Gunnarsson
Heritage Peters Fund 5500 Max Boyla
Stanley Picker Charitable Trust 2500 Daria Blum
Oliver Tirre
Pitchforth Fund 5,000 2,000 Fleur Dempsey
Rothschild Foundation
Christopher Le Brun PPRA Scholarship Fund 20,000 10,500 Fischer Mustin
Ivor Rey Scholarship 7266 Catinca Malaimare
The Archie Sherman Charitable Trust 11,000 6,000 Fungai Benhura
Pauline Sitwell Bursary Fund 14,060 Anna Higgins
Paul Smith & Pauline Denyer-Smith 10,000 5,000 Luke Samuel
South Square Trust 6,000 Hannah Lister
Matthew Peers
Catherine Sparkes 410 Elinor Stanley
Stewarts 20,000 5,000 Rachel Hobkirk
Alma Tadema Fund 1,930 Elinor Stanley
Vandaleur Fund 4,660 Tanoa Sasraku
Celia Walker Art Foundation 1,900 Fleur Dempsey
Oliver Tirre
The Harold Hyam Wingate Foundation 5,000 Lene Vollhardt
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